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PART NOTIFICATION

Business Address

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Park One Eleven

409 Alfred Street

Biddeford ME 04005

181 Elm Street 132 Hills Beach Road

Biddeford ME 04005 Biddeford ME 04005

181 Elm Street Pilgrim Lane

Biddeford ME 04005 Saco ME 04072

The issuers officers

Clifford Mansfield Jr

President and Treasurer

Robert Theriault

Assistant Treasurer

The issuers general partners

Not applicable

Record owners of percent or more of any class of the issuers equity securities

Cede Co 53.85%

do Depository Trust Co

P.O Box 863 Bowling Green Station

New York NY 42716

Meredith McLaughlin 7.84%

Business Address

2801 Ocean Drive Room 102

Vero Beach FL 32963

Residential Address

635 Clarks Tract Route 648

Keswick VA 22947

ITEM Significant Parties

List the full names and business and residential addresses as applicable for the following persons

The issuers directors

Clifford Mansfield Jr

David Briggs

Richard Hull III

Michael Morel

Wayne Sherman

Residential Address

Glenhaven Circle

Saco ME 04072

51 Wild Dunes Way Unit

Old Orchard Beach ME 04064

429 Goodwins Mills Road

Lyman ME 04002

Business Address

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Residential Address

Glenhaven Circle

Saco ME 04072

156 Lyman Street Ext

Westbrook ME 04092



Beneficial owners of percent or more of any class of the issuers equity securities

The issuers common stock is traded in the over-the-counter market The issuer is not aware of any persons who are

beneficial owners of more than percent of any class of the issuers equity securities except as follows

Meredith McLaughlin 8.60%

Business Address

2801 Ocean Drive Room 102

Vero Beach FL 32963

Residential Address

635 Clarks Tract Route 648

Keswick VA 22947

Promoters of the issuer

Not applicable

Affiliates of the issuer

The issuer has no affiliates other than its directors and executive officers identified in Item 1a and above

Counsel to the issuer with respect to the proposed offering

Verrill Dana LLP One Portland Square P.O Box 586 Portland ME 04112-0586

Each underwriter with respect to the proposed offering

None

The underwriters directors

Not applicable

The underwriters officers

Not applicable

The underwriters general partners

Not applicable

Counsel to the underwriter

Not applicable

ITEM Application of Rule 262

State whether any of the persons
identified in response to Item are subject to any of the disqualification

provisions set forth in Rule 262

They are not



If any such person is subject to these provisions provide full description including pertinent names dates

and other details as well as whether or not an application has been made pursuant to Rule 262 for waiver of such

disqualification and whether or not such application has been granted or denied

Not applicable

ITEM Affiliate Sales

If any part of the proposed offering involves the resale of securities by affiliates of the issuer confirm that the

following description does not apply to the issuer The issuer has not had net income from operations of the

character in which the issuer intends to engage for at least one of its last two fiscal years

Such description does not apply to the issuer

ITEM Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

List the jurisdiction in which the securities are to be offered by underwriters dealers or salespersons

The issuer has not engaged any underwriter dealer or sales person to offer the securities in any jurisdiction

List the jurisdictions in which the securities are to be offered other than by underwriters dealers or

salesmen and state the method by which such securities are to be offered

The issuer plans to limit its offering of shares to those states in which its existing shareholders reside According to

the issuers records its shareholders reside in Alabama California Colorado Connecticut Florida Georgia Illinois

Maine Maryland Massachusetts Missouri Nevada New Hampshire New Jersey New York North Carolina

Ohio Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island Texas Vermont Virginia Washington West Virginia and Wisconsin

The issuer is regulated public utility and as such it believes that the offered shares will qualify as exempt

securities under the securities laws of California Colorado Connecticut Florida Georgia Illinois Maine

Maryland Massachusetts Missouri New York North Carolina Ohio Rhode Island Texas Vermont Virginia

Washington and Wisconsin and thus will not require registration In those states the issuer will offer shares to

existing shareholders and may choose to offer the shares to persons other than existing shareholders

Under the securities laws of Alabama Nevada New Hampshire New Jersey and West Virginia the issuer believes

that an offering to existing shareholders will qualify as an exempt transaction and thus will not require registration

The issuer does not plan to offer the shares in those states to persons other than existing shareholders

The securities laws of Oregon and Pennsylvania provide registration exemptions for pro rata offerings to existing

securities holders In those two states the issuer plans limit the number of shares offered to the holders
pro rata

share under applicable preemptive rights and does not plan to offer the shares to persons who are not existing

shareholders

ITEM Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

As to any unregistered securities issued by the issuer or any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers within

one year prior to the filing of this Form 1-A state the name of such issuer the title and amount of securities

issued the aggregate offering price or other consideration for which they were issued and basis for computing

the amount thereof the names and identities of the
persons to whom the securities were issued

Not applicable The issuer has not issued any unregistered securities within one year prior to the filing date

As to any unregistered securities of the issuer or any of its predecessors or affiliated issuers which were

sold within one year prior to the filing of this Form 1-A by or for the account of any person who at the time was

director officer promoter or principal security holder of the issuer of such securities or was an underwriter of any

securities of such issuer furnish the information specified in subsections through of paragraph



Not applicable

Indicate the section of the Securities Act or Commission rule or regulation relied upon for exemption from

the registration requirements of such Act and state briefly the facts relied upon for such exemption

Not applicable

ITEM Other Present or Proposed Offerings

State whether or not the issuer or any of its affiliates is currently offering or contemplating the offering of any

securities in addition to those covered by this Form 1-A If so describe fully the present or proposed offering

The issuer is not currently offering or contemplating the offering of any other securities

ITEM Marketing Arrangements

Briefly describe any arrangement known to the issuer or to any person named in response to Item above

or to any selling securityholder in the offering covered by this Form 1-A for any of the following purposes To

limit or restrict the sale of other securities of the same class as those to be offered for the period of distribution

To stabilize the market for any of the securities to be offered For withholding commissions or otherwise to hold

each underwriter or dealer responsible for the distribution of its participation

None

Identify any underwriter that intends to confirm sales to any accounts over which it exercises discretionary

authority and include an estimate of the amount of securities so intended to be confirmed

The issuer has not engaged any underwriter in connection with the offering

ITEM Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement

If any expert named in the offering statement as having prepared or certified any part thereof was employed for such

purpose on contingent basis or at the time of such preparation or certification or at any time thereafter had

material interest in the issuer or any of its parents or subsidiaries or was connected with the issuer or any of its

subsidiaries as promoter underwriter voting trustee director officer or employee furnish brief statement of the

nature of such contingent basis interest or connection

None

ITEM Use of Solicitation of Interest Document

Indicate whether or not publication authorized by Rule 254 was used prior to the filing of this notification If so

indicate the dates of publication and of the last communication with prospective purchasers

On or around December 2009 the issuer mailed Rule 254 solicitation of interest letter to all shareholders known

to the issuer as residing in selected states Maine Massachusetts and Florida copy of such letter was

simultaneously mailed to the Commission The most recent communication with any such prospective purchasers

regarding such solicitation occurred on or around February 2010



PART II OFFERING CIRCULAR

See attached Preliminary Offering Circular



$P Preliminary Offering Circular

Dated September 29 2010

JJ COVER PAGE

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY
Exact name of Company as set forth Charter

Type of securities offered Common Stock

Maximum number of securities offered 31000 shares

Minimum number of securities offered no minimum

Price per security $67.50 per
share

Total proceeds If minimum sold $0

See Question Nos and 10 If maximum sold $2092500

Is commissioned selling agent selling the securities in this offering Yes No

If yes what percent is commission of price to public Not applicable

Is there other compensation to selling agents Yes No

Is there finders fee or similarpayment to any person Yes No

See Question No 22

Is there an escrow of proceeds until minimum is obtained Yes No

See Question No 26

Is this offering limited to members of special group such as employees of

the Company or individuals Yes No

See Question No 25

Is transfer of the securities restricted Yes No

See Question No 25

INVESTMENT IN SMALL BUSINESSES INVOLVES HIGH DEGREE OF RISK AND INVESTORS SHOULD
NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN THIS OFFERING UNLESS THEY CAN AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE
INVESTMENT SEE QUESTION NO.2 FOR THE RISK FACTORS THAT MANAGEMENT BELIEVES PRESENT
THE MOST SUBSTANTIAL RISKS TO AN INVESTOR IN THIS OFFERING

MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE
ISSUER AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING INCLUDING THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED THESE
SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED OR APPROVED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY FURTHERMORE THESE AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT PASSED
UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY
IS CRIMINAL OFFENSE

THE U.S SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE MERITS OF ANY
SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR SELLING LITERATURE THESE SECURITIES ARE
OFFERED UNDER AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION HOWEVER THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE
AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THESE SECURITIES ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION

This Company

ii

Has never conducted operations

Is in the development stage

Is currently conducting operations

Has shown profit in the last fiscal year

Other Specify

This offering has been registered for offer and sale in the following states None The offering is being

made in selected states in reliance on available securities registration exemptions See Question No 25
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THE COMPANY

Exact corporate name Biddeford and Saco Water Company

State and date of incorporation Maine March 12 1881

Street address of principal office 181 Elm Street Biddeford ME 04005

Company Telephone Number 207 282-1543

Fiscal year December

monthlday

Persons to contact at Company
with respect to offering C.S Mansfield Jr

Telephone Number

if different from above same

RISK FACTORS

List in the order of importance the factors which the Company considers to be the most substantial risks to an

investor in this offering in view of all facts and circumstances or which otherwise make the offering one of high

risk or speculative i.e those factors which constitute the greatest threat that the investment will be lost in whole

or in part or not provide an adequate return

The failure of this offering to generate sufficient net proceeds could jeopardize the Companys
ability to issue additional mortgage bonds in the future Under its mortgage indenture the Company

may not issue additional bonds if the principal amount of bonds to be outstanding would exceed 66-

2/3% of the cost or fair value of permanent improvements extensions and additions to its plant or

the amount of long-term debt of the Company would exceed 66-2/3% of total capitalization of the

Company The limitations included in the indenture are intended to provide security to bondholders and

essentially require that the Company fund at least 33-1/3% of its construction budget with equity

including retained earnings or short-term debt The Companys current mortgage debt is$8757620

or 29% of the plant cost/value The Companys long-term debt is currently 67% of the Companys total

capitalization Because the Companys mortgage debt as percentage of total capitalization currently

exceeds 66-2/3% the Company is unable to issue any additional mortgage bonds or other long-term

debt until it increases its capital

The Companys costs of operation are significantly affected by governmental regulations The

Company must comply with local state and federal regulations pertaining to water utility operations

The United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Maine Drinking Water Program have

established water quality standards and rules and regulations for operating practices Failure to comply

with applicable rules and regulations could subject the Company and its employees to fines or other

penalties including possible license suspension For more information see Question 3i

The rates the Company may charge are subject to prior governmental approval The Companys

ability to earn profits is largely dependent upon the rates it charges its customers These rates are

regulated by the Maine Public Utilities Commission MPUC The Company files rate increase

requests with the MPUC from time to time to recover its investments in plant and equipment and

projected expenses The MPUC determines whether investments and expenses are recoverable the

length of time over which such costs are recoverable and the permitted rate of return on investments

Rate proceedings can be complex and expensive and the MPUC has very substantial discretion over

accounting measures that can significantly affect rate determinations

Due to the currently weak economic climate in the U.S and Maine there is risk that authorized

rates of return may be lower in upcoming rate adjustment proceedings than in prior proceedings

The Maine Public Utilities Commission authorized return on equity of 10.00% during the Companys
most recent rate proceeding which became effective as of March 2008 The authorized rates of

Offering Circular Page



return approved by the MPUC for other water utilities since that date has remained at 10.00%

However authorized rates of return do fluctuate for example the Company was authorized return on

equity of 9.7% in its rate proceeding completed on December 15 2003 and the MPUC has discretion

to consider current economic conditions in setting authorized returns recent example from outside

Maine is illustrative of this principle In that non-Maine case the regulatory commission ultimately

authorized return on equity of 10.00% which was below the 10.75% recommended by the commission

staff and the 11.00% that had been granted to the same utility in its most recent prior proceeding

Water consumption may continue to be hampered by economic weakness and unfavorable

weather patterns Water usage in the Companys service area has fallen well below expectations since

the Company completed its most recent rate adjustment proceeding in March 2008 The summer

weather in 2008 and especially 2009 was quite damp suppressing demand The economic slowdown

in Maine that began in 2008 has also reduced water demand both for industrial and commercial uses

Although the Companys operating revenues in 2010 have thus far exceeded 2008 and 2009 revenues

there can be no assurance that these improvements will continue

Economic recovery in Maine has in the past tended to lag the nation In recent prior recessions

Maines economy has not been affected as deeply as the nation as whole but has tended to recover

more slowly than the nation as whole The reported unemployment rate not seasonally adjusted for

Maine was 6.9% in August 2010 Although unemployment in Cumberland County and York County

Maine is lower than in the State as whole unemployment remains considerably higher than in 2000-

2008 The Maine State budget for its 2010-2011 fiscal year has been repeatedly adjusted downward to

reflect revenue shortfalls The current economic climate may create an unfavorable environment for

upcoming rate adjustment proceedings and may cause an increase in accounts receivable due to slower

than normal payments

The Company depends on the availability of capital for expansion construction and

maintenance The Companys ability to fund construction and maintenance depends on the availability

of adequate capital In recent years the Companys earnings have not been sufficient to fund necessary

replacements and improvements of its capital plant thereby requiring the Company to utilize debt as

source of funding for these expenditures The Company expects that various expansion construction

and maintenance projects will need to be undertaken in the near-term future for more information

regarding the expected projects see Question 9a As described in Question 3b below the Company
is not presently permitted under the terms of its bond indenture to incur additional debt There is no

guarantee that the Company will be able to obtain sufficient capital in the future to fund construction in

connection with the foregoing projects or that the cost of capital will not be too high for future

expansion and construction

The Companys unsecured line of credit expires annually The balance on the Companys unsecured

line of credit was $1674127 on December 31 2009 and $1633768 as of May 31 2010 The line

expires on June 30 2011 The Companys bond indenture limits the total amount of debt that the

Company may incur See Question 3b
Contamination of the Companys water supply could disrupt service and adversely affect its

revenues The Company obtains all of its water supply from the Saco River The river is susceptible to

possible contamination and pollution from man-made sources The Company has no ready alternate

source of supply and if the Saco River were to become seriously contaminated the Company could be

required to discontinue its operations until water quality is restored

10 Utilities are now considered possible target for terrorist attack The Company must consider what

measures may be taken to forestall future acts of sabotage vandalism or terrorism and endeavor to be

prepared with an appropriate emergency response plan Significant changes to plant and equipment

would require increased equity or if permitted increases in borrowings

11 The use of chlorine gas as disinfectant may be banned by federal regulation The Company
utilizes chlorine

gas as the primary disinfectant at its water treatment facility Legislation has been

considered in Congress to require utilities to use disinfectants that would pose less risk to the public in
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the event of an accident or terrorist attack Alternative disinfectants are more costly and could require

significant modification of the Companys disinfectant storage and feed facilities

12 The offering price of Company common stock is arbitrary The offering price of $67.50 per share

bears no relationship to established value criteria such as designated multiples of net tangible assets or

earnings per share and should not be considered an indication of the actual value of the Company

Regulated water utilities generally are not permitted to earn more than designated return on the book

value of their assets Historically when regulated water utilities are sold the purchase price has tended

to be at or near book value with adjustments depending upon market conditions the perceived capacity

for expansion and other factors

13 The price of share in this offering is significantly higher than the book value of the stock As of

May 31 2010 the tangible net book value per share was $35.07 This is approximately 1.96% of the

offering price As result investors participating in this offering will incur immediate and substantial

dilution Book value is determined by subtracting liabilities from tangible assets and dividing the

answer by the number of outstanding shares

14 There is very limited trading market for Company common stock you may not be able to resell

your shares at or above the price you pay for them The Companys common stock is traded

through an over-the-counter electronic quotation market operated by Pink OTC Markets Inc The stock

trades only sporadically usually in amounts of well less than 1000 shares per day Because of the

limited volume of trading sale of any significant number of shares of Company common stock in the

open market could cause the stock price to decline The Company is not subject to SEC public

reporting requirements and therefore market participants other than insiders typically have little

current information about the Company other than published stock trading prices and whatever annual

financial information was last provided to shareholders Due in part to these factors historical trading

prices for the Companys common stock may not reflect fair or accurate assessment of the market

value of the Companys stock

Note In addition to the above risks businesses are often subject to risks not foreseen or fully appreciated by

management In reviewing this Offering Circular potential investors should keep in mind other

possible risks that could be important

BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

With respect to the business of the Company and its properties

Describe in detail what business the Company does and
proposes to do including what products or

goods are or will be produced or services that are or will be rendered

The Company is privately-owned water company regulated as public utility by the State of

Maine Public Utilities Commission The Companys operations date back to 1881 The Company

draws water from the Saco River at intakes located in Biddeford Maine approximately one mile

west of the Maine Turnpike The Saco River begins as small stream high in the White Mountains

of New Hampshire and flows through about 124 miles of New Hampshire and Maine forest and

farmland before reaching the Companys intakes The majority of the area within the Saco Rivers

roughly 1700 square mile watershed remains undeveloped or underdeveloped The Saco River just

upstream from the Companys intakes and extending for several miles upstream is classified by the

Maine Department of Environmental Protection as Class AA which is the cleanest rating

allowed The river is source of hydroelectric power major recreation area and ultimately the

water supply for many southern Maine communities

The Company owns and operates complete water treatment facility The treatment process

includes coagulation flocculation sedimentation filtration and disinfection Operations at the

Companys treatment facility have received national recognition for excellence through the

Partnership for Safe Water Program which is sponsored by various agencies including the United

States Environmental Protection Agency and the American Water Works Association The
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Company sells this treated water to residential commercial municipal and industrial customers

located in the southern Maine communities of Biddeford Saco Old Orchard Beach and the Pine

Pont section of Scarborough Depending on the time of year the Company serves drinking water to

between 50000 and 200000 people through over 16000 service connections The Company also

occasionally sells water to the adjacent public water utility to the south Kennebunik Kennebunkport

Wells Water District primarily to enable that utility to satisf peak summertime demands The

Company maintains over 235 miles of water mains through its distribution system Over 1200

public fire hydrants are connected to the Companys distribution system

Describe how these products are to be produced or rendered and how and when the Company intends to

carry out its activities If the Company plans to offer new products state the present stage of

development including whether or not working prototypes is in existence Indicate if completion of

development of the product would require material amount of the resources of the Company and the

estimated amount If the Company is or is expected to be dependent upon one or limited number of

suppliers for essential raw materials energy or other items describe Describe any major existing

supply contracts

The Company operates in conformity with standards of quality practice and procedure established

by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Maine Drinking Water Program

and is further regulated by the Maine Public Utilities Commission primarily in the financial and

customer service aspects of its business operations The Saco River is the source of supply for the

water sold by the Company The Saco River watershed upstream from the Companys intakes

covers an area of roughly 1700 square miles The peak rate at which the Company has ever drawn

water from the Saco River is less than 5% of the minimum flow in the Saco River past the

Companys intakes and so there is always sufficient quantity of water available to meet the

Companys requirements The Company owns and operates treatment plant to process the water

drawn from the Saco River producing finished water that complies with all current drinking water

regulations established by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Maine

Drinking Water Program

Under its mortgage indenture the material terms of which are set forth in Note to the attached

financial statements the Company may not issue additional bonds if the principal amount of

bonds to be outstanding would exceed 66-2/3% of the cost or fair value of permanent

improvements extensions and additions to its plant or ii the amount of the Companys long-term

debt would exceed 66-2/3% of total capitalization of the Company The size of the Companys

mortgage debt as percentage of plant cost/value has increased over time and is currently 29% of

plant cost value meaning that is not approaching the limitations imposed by the indenture

However the Companys long-term debt currently represents 67% of the total capitalization of the

Company Given the Companys obligations under its mortgage indenture and the Companys
current financial position the Company will be unable to issue any additional long-term debt until it

increases its equity As result the Companys construction activities will be limited to those

projects that can be funded through operations and short-term borrowings which will slow the

Companys currently ongoing main replacement program See Question No

Since 2001 the Company has had line of credit through Biddeford Savings Bank Currently the

line of credit permits the Company to borrow up to $2250000 The interest rate on the line of

credit is either the highest prime rate minus 1% adjusted daily or the London Interbank Offering

Rate LIBOR plus 1.85% for 30 60 90 or 180 days Under the terms of the line of credit the

Company has the option to select the more advantageous rate for most of 2010 to date the

Company has used the LIBOR-based interest rate As of May 31 2010 the applicable interest rate

on the Companys outstanding balance of$ 1633768 was 2.10%

Describe the industry in which the Company is selling or expects to sell its products or services and
where applicable any recognized trends within that industry Describe that part of the industry and the

geographic area in which the business competes or will compete

The Company is authorized by legislative charter to provide services to the following communities

in southern Maine Biddeford Saco Old Orchard Beach Lyman Dayton and Scarborough The
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Company is also authorized to supply water to the Kennebunk Kennebunkport and Wells Water

District

Because of the monopoly held by the Company for the services it provides all rates charged by the

Company for water supply and fire protection services must first be approved by the Maine Public

Utilities Commission through highly regulated rate-adjustment process See Question 3i

Weather conditions tend to have dramatic impact on operating results for water utilities and the

Companys operating results are representative of this tendency There are two factors that cause

this effect First the Companys service area includes several miles of sandy beaches There is

significant summer usage in the beach areas both by people who own seasonal properties and by

visitors staying in area hotels and motels Usage by such seasonal customers is relatively higher

during summers when the weather is conducive to spending time on the beach When summer

weather is warm and relatively dry water usage also typically increases because people use

significant amounts of water to maintain their lawns and gardens In addition the Company serves

two 18-hole golf courses that use water from the Companys system to irrigate their greens and

fairways during the summer season

The strength of the local economy also has an impact on the water utility industry Usage by

industrial and commercial customers in the Companys service area is typically reduced during

times when the economy is depressed because people travel less go out to dinner less often and

reduce their discretionary purchases

Local weather and economic conditions have shown signs of improvement in 2010 The weather

during the summer of 2010 was relatively warm and dry and tourism activity in the area was strong

despite continued weakness in the economy The volume of water necessary to meet summer usage

during July and August this year increased by more than 20 percent when compared with usage

during the same period in 2009 The year-to-date volume of water pumped totaled 1574 million

gallons through August 31 2010 compared with 1403 million gallons through August 31 2009

representing an increase of approximately 12 percent

Indicate whether competition is or is expected to be by price service or other basis Indicate by
attached table if appropriate the current or anticipated prices or price ranges for the Companys

products or services or the formula for determining prices and how these prices compare with those of

competitors products or services including description of any variations in product or service

features Name the principal competitors that the Company has or expects to have in its area of

competition Indicate the relative size and financial and market strengths of the Companys competitors

in the area of competition in which the Company is or will be operating State why the Company
believes it can effectively compete with these and other companies in its area of competition

The Company is privately-owned water company regulated as public utility by the State of

Maine Public Utilities Commission The Company holds monopoly for the services it provides

within its designated territory Current technology is not conducive to the development of

substantial competition for the monopoly services now provided by the Company

Note Because this Offering Circular focuses primarily on details concerning the Company rather than the

industry in which the Company operates or will operate potential investors may wish to conduct their

own separate investigation of the Companys industry to obtain broader insight in assessing the

Company prospects

Describe specifically the marketing strategies the Company is employing or will employ in penetrating

its market or in developing new market Set forth in
response to Question below the timing and size

of the results of this effort which will be necessary in order for the Company to be profitable Indicate

how and by whom its products or services are or will be marketed such as by advertising personal

contact by sales representatives etc how its marketing structure operates or will
operate and the basis

of its marketing approach including any market studies Name any customers that account for or based

upon existing orders will account for major portion 20% or more of the Companys sales Describe

any major existing sales contracts
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The services provided by the Company are essential and provided under monopoly The

Company does not engage in advertising or marketing of its services Providing excellent customer

service is important to the Companys overall mission and Company employees are trained and

evaluated accordingly

The rates charged by the Company for public fire protection services are established by the Maine

Public Utilities Commission under formula for determining the percentage of
gross revenues that

water utilities should derive from fire protection charges Consistent with those rules

approximately 16% of the Companys revenues are derived from public fire protection charges

These charges are allocated proportionately in accordance with the applicable MPUC allocation

rules among the towns of Biddeford Saco Old Orchard Beach and Scarborough based upon the

number of fire hydrants located in each community

The Company provides its services to large and diverse set of residential commercial and

municipal customers and no one customer accounts for anywhere close to 20% of the Companys
annual revenues

State the backlog of written firm orders for products and/or services as of recent date within the last

90 days and compare it with the backlog of year ago from that date

The Company business is such that it does not have firm orders or backlogs As regulated public

water utility the Company is required to provide public water services within its service area to all

persons requiring such services

Explain the reason for significant variations between the two figures if any Indicate what types and

amounts of orders are included in the backlog figures State the size of typical orders If the Companys
sales are seasonal or cyclical explain

The Companys water sales are greater during the summer months There are two primary reasons

for this First water is used to irrigate lawns and gardens during the summer months Second there

is an increase in population in the coastal sections of the Companys service area during the summer

as well Typically revenues from winter quarters average between 22 and 24 percent of annual

revenues and summer quarters between 26 and 28 percent

State the number of the Companys present employees and the number of employees it anticipates it will

have within the next 12 months Also indicate the number by type of employee i.e clerical

operations administrative etc the Company will use whether or not any of them are subject to

collective bargaining agreements and the expiration dates of any collective bargaining agreements
If this Companys employees are on strike or have been in the past three years or are threatening to

strike describe the dispute Indicate any supplemental benefits or incentive arrangements the Company
has or will have with its employees

The Companys current permanent staff of 27 employees is divided into the following

classifications management employees office/clerical meter reading water treatment

and water distribution The Company does not anticipate any significant change in staffing

within the next 12 months and expects to continue to employ total of approximately 27

individuals within the next 12 months regardless of whether the offering is successfully completed

The Company believes it enjoys very good relations with its employees and that its workforce is

stable The average number of years of service for the Companys staff is approximately 16 years

The Company has not experienced any particular difficulty hiring workers when staff openings have

occurred in the past The Companys workforce does not belong to any union and the Company is

not subject to any collective bargaining agreement All employees are paid on an hourly or salaried

basis depending upon job responsibilities All employees receive package of benefits which

includes medical insurance dental insurance life insurance vacation leave sick leave and pension

benefits All wages and benefits for employees are approved by vote of the Companys Board of

Directors

Describe generally the principal properties such as real estate plant and equipment patents etc that

the Company owns indicating also what properties it leases and summary of the terms under those



leases including the amount of payments expiration dates and the terms of any renewal options

Indicate what properties the Company intends to acquire in the immediate future the cost of such

acquisitions and the sources of financing it expects to use in obtaining these properties whether by

purchase lease or otherwise

The Company owns an office building with associated lot in Biddeford construction garage with

associated lot in Saco water treatment plant with associated lot located on the Saco River in

Biddeford two primary pump stations one to pump water from the Saco River into the treatment

plant and the other to pump water from the treatment plant into the distribution system 7.5

million gallon finished water storage
reservoir with associated lot three distribution storage

standpipes with associated lots and having combined total storage volume of 3.3 million gallons

approximately 235 miles of distribution and transmission mains approximately 16200 service

connections approximately 15200 meters and approximately 1200 fire hydrants

The office building is located on Elm Street Route in Biddeford the two-story building with full

basement was constructed in 1964 and includes approximately 3000 square feet of usable space on

each floor The construction garage is located in the Saco Industrial Park and includes

approximately 2200 square feet of office
space

and 10000 square feet of garage/storehouse area

The treatment plant is located on South Street Biddeford and was originally constructed during

1935 and 1936 The treatment facility has been continuously upgraded over the years and the plant

operates in complete compliance with all federal and state regulations with maximum capacity of

approximately 14 million gallons per day depending upon system operating conditions The

distribution mains are located in the more densely populated areas of Biddeford Saco Old Orchard

Beach and the Pine Point section of Scarborough primarily on the easterly side of the Maine

Turnpike Over 75 percent of the distribution and transmission mains are 6-inch diameter or larger

Essentially all of the Companys property is subject to liens under its mortgage bond indentures

The Company has no plans to acquire additional property at the present time but will extend its

distribution system as needed to provide service to new customers

Indicate the extent to which the Companys operations depend or are expected to depend upon patents

copyrights trade secrets know-how or other proprietary information and the steps undertaken to secure

and protect this intellectual property including any use of confidential agreements covenants-not-to

compete and the like Summarize the principal terms and expiration dates of any significant license

agreements Indicate the amounts expended by the Company for research and development during the

last fiscal year the amount expected to be spent this year and what percentage of revenues research and

development expenditures were for the last fiscal year

The Company is not involved in developing new products or services and does not rely on any

material rights in intellectual property

If the Companys business products or properties are subject to material regulation including

environmental regulation by federal state or local government agencies indicate the nature and extent

of regulation and its effects or potential effects upon the Company

The Company is public water utility and its operations are subject to extensive regulation by the

Maine Public Utilities Commission the United States Environmental Protection Agency and the

Maine Drinking Water Program Applicable regulations include without limitation regulation of

rates charged by the Company to its customers land use regulations water purity treatment

standards and regulations on use of hazardous chemicals

As public utility providing water supply and fire protection services the Company is required to

furnish safe reasonable and adequate facilities to provide an essential public service The rate that

the Company may charge for the production and delivery of water or for any other service

provided must be just and reasonable The MPUC is responsible for the determination of what

constitutes just and reasonable rates When making the determination of what shall constitute just

and reasonable rates the MPUC is obligated to provide sufficient revenues to permit the Company
both to perform its public service and to attract necessary capital on just and reasonable terms



The actual rate adjustment process is completed in accordance with an MPUC rule that establishes

the filing requirements for the form content and organization of all schedules of rates terms and

conditions The schedules detail all costs associated with the operation of the utility during test

year itemized by account number or functional grouping as well as the impact and reasons for any

possible adjustments to the test year billing analysis must be included that illustrates both how

the proposed rates will generate the revenue necessary to cover the adjusted test year operating

costs as well as the rate of return on invested capital that will be provided

The Company initiates the process by first filing proposed new rates with the MPUC and then

notifiing all customers that rate adjustment proposal has been sent to the MPUC The MPUCs
staff reviews the filing and schedules meetings and hearings as appropriate The

process always

includes the Maine Public Advocate as representative of the public interest and is open to the

public any interested party may participate Completion of the rate adjustment process can require

up to nine months At least twelve months must pass between the initiations of rate adjustment

proceedings

The Company is required to obtain approval from the MPUC prior to the sale and issuance of

securities On May 2010 the MPUC authorized the issuance of up to 35000 shares of Company

common stock in connection with this offering

Regulatory violations sufficient to result in suspension or revocation of the Companys permits to

treat or distribute water could also subject the Company to substantial administrative penalties and

possible civil liability for damages

Certain Company employees are certified and authorized to practice in the State of Maine as Water

System Operators Loss of an individuals license would prevent that employee from providing the

regulated services to the Company

State the names of any subsidiaries of the Company their business purposes and ownership and indicate

which are included in the Financial Statements attached hereto If not included or if included but not

consolidated please explain

The Company has no subsidiaries

Summarize the material events in the development of the Company including any material mergers or

acquisitions during the past five years or for whatever lesser period the Company has been in

existence Discuss any pending or anticipated mergers acquisitions spin-offs or recapitalizations If

the Company has recently undergone stock split stock dividend or recapitalization in anticipation of

this offering describe and adjust historical per share figures elsewhere in this Offering Circular

accordingly

The charter for the Biddeford and Saco Water Company was granted by the Maine State Legislature

in 1881 Construction of necessary facilities began in 1883 and water was first supplied to

customers located in Biddeford and Saco in 1885 In 1902 the Company purchased the Old

Orchard Water Company In 1905 water service was extended easterly form Old Orchard Beach

along Grand Beach to Pine Point in Scarborough and in 1909 service was extended westerly from

Old Orchard Beach to Kinney Shores and Camp Ellis in Saco

The last major geographic expansion of the service area occurred during the 1920s when service

was expanded to include Ocean Park in Old Orchard Beach and extended southerly from

downtown Biddeford to the Hills Beach and Fort Hill sections of Biddeford Since then the supply

treatment and distribution facilities have been continuously upgraded and expanded to meet

changes in customer demand within the Companys service area and to maintain compliance with

applicable rules and regulations

The most recent stock dividend or stock split occurred in 1995 Common stock was last sold by the

Company in 1968 No stock split stock dividend recapitalization merger acquisition spin-off or

reorganization is contemplated at the present time



If the Company was not profitable during its last fiscal year list below in chronological order the events

which in managements opinion must or should occur or the milestones which in managements opinion

the Company must or should reach in order for the Company to become profitable and indicate the

expected manner of occurrence or the expected method by which the Company will achieve the

milestones

Not applicable The Company has been operating profitably for more than 100 years In order to

continue to maintain an acceptable level of profitability the Company must periodically apply to

the Maine Public Utilities Commission for increases in rates The Company anticipates applying to

the Maine Public Utilities Commission for rate adjustment that if granted would become

effective in 2011

State the probable consequences to the Company of delays in achieving each of the events or milestones

within the above time schedule and particularly the effect of any delays upon the Companys liquidity

in view of the Companys then anticipated level of operating costs See Question Nos 11 and 12

The Company plans to operate as it has in the past and will periodically apply to the Maine Public

Utilities Commission for rate adjustments in accordance with the prescribed rate adjustment

process By statute water utilities are entitled to reasonable rate or return on investment but the

MPUC nonetheless has substantial discretion in determining rates

Note After reviewing the nature and timing of each event or milestone potential investors should reflect

upon whether achievement of each within the estimated time frame is realistic and should assess the

consequences of delays or failure of achievement in making an investment decision

OFFERING PRICE FACTORS

If the securities offered are common stock or are exercisable for or convertible into common stock the following

factors may be relevant to the price at which the securities are being offered

What were net after-tax earnings for the last fiscal year If losses show in parenthesis

Total $259477 $2.45 per share

If the Company had profits show offering price as multiple of earnings Adjust to reflect for any stock

splits or recapitalizations and use conversion or exercise price in lieu of offering price if applicable

Offering Pric

Net After-Tax Earnings Last

Year Per Share

7.a What is the net tangible book value of the Company If deficit show in parenthesis For this purpose

net tangible book value means total assets exclusive of copyrights patents goodwill research and

development costs and similar intangible items minus total liabilities

The Companys net tangible book value was $3721262 $35.07 per share as of May 31 2010

The figure above excludes deferred debits and deferred bond expenses In other contexts the

Company has customarily included such costs in the determination of tangible assets because they

relate to the Companys capital plant and other tangible assets and are recoverable/allowable for

rate making purposes either through expense or eventual capitalization of completed project If

those deferred but recoverable amounts were included in the calculation the net tangible book

value of the Company would be $4204273 $39.62 per share

If the net tangible book value per share is substantially less than this offering or exercise or conversion

price per share explain the reasons for the variation
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The price of the securities in this offering was not established by reference to book value or other

established criteria of value but rather was set arbitrarily at level somewhat below the average

trading price of the stock for the first five months of 2010

State the dates on which the Company sold or otherwise issued securities during the last 12 months the

amount of such securities sold the number of persons to whom they were sold and relationship of such

persons to the Company at the time of sale the price at which they were sold and if not sold for cash

concise description of the consideration Exclude bank debt

The Company has not sold or issued any securities during the last 12 months

What percentage of the outstanding shares of the Company will the investors in this offering have

Assume exercise of outstanding options warrants or rights and conversion of convertible securities if

the respective exercise or conversion prices are at or less than the offering price Also assume exercise

of any options warrants or rights and conversions of any convertible securities offered in this offering

Currently the Company has 106104 shares of common stock outstanding The Company has no

outstanding preferred stock no outstanding Securities convertible into stock and no outstanding

options warrants or rights to purchase shares

The present offering of common stock would increase the outstanding conmion stock by up to an

additional 31000 shares The shares sold in this offering would represent the following

percentages
of the then outstanding shares of common stock

If the maximum is sold 22.6%

If 75% is sold 17.9%

If 50% is sold 12.7%

If 25% is sold 6.8%

If none are sold 0%

What post-offering value is management implicitly attributing to the entire Company by establishing the

price per security set forth on the cover page or exercise or conversion price if common stock is not

offered Total outstanding shares after offering times offering price or exercise or conversion price if

common stock is not offered

If the maximum is sold $9254520
If 75% is sold $8731395
If 50% is sold $8208270
If 25% is sold $7685145

If none are sold $7162020

The Company has no outstanding convertible securities and no outstanding options warrants or

rights to purchase common stock and thus the foregoing values are not subject to adjustment to

reflect conversions of convertible securities or to reflect exercises of options warrants or rights

Note After reviewing the above potential investors should consider whether or not the offering price or
exercise or conversion price applicable for the securities is appropriate at the present stage of the

Company development

USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth the use of the proceeds from this offering

If Maximum is Sold

Dollar Amount of Total

Total Proceeds $2092500 100.0%

Less Offering Expenses
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Commissions and Finders Fees 0.0%

Legal and Accounting 167400 8.0%

Copying and Advertising 20925 1.0%

Other OM%

Net Proceeds from Offering $1904175

Use of Net Proceeds

Repay Line of Credit 1633768 78.1%

Capital Projects 270407 12.9%

Total Use of Net Proceeds

The offering has no minimum and thus there is no assurance that any proceeds will be raised

The offering expenses set forth in the table above are estimates The Company will be liable for

legal accounting copying and advertising fees incurred in connection with this offering even ifno

proceeds are raised

Net proceeds from the offering will initially be used to pay down the Companys operating line of

credit and to increase the Companys invested capital for regulatory purposes As of May 31 2010

there was $1633768 outstanding under the Companys line of credit and the applicable interest

rate under the line of credit on that date was 2.10% Ultimately the net amount raised through this

offering will help fund improvements to the Companys treatment and distribution systems As

described below the Company faces ongoing needs to extend and improve its water mains

Within the Companys service area the city of Saco has passed $2300000 bond for the paving

and improvement of approximately 20 miles of public streets The bond was passed in November

2009 and the work is being completed during 2010 and 2011 There are areas within the 20 miles

of streets that will be affected by the resulting paving and improvement projects where it would be

advisable for the Company to replace the existing water mains The other two major municipalities

within the Companys service area Biddeford and Old Orchard Beach have not passed similar

bonds but both communities have completed extensive street reconstruction projects in recent

years and currently have additional projects at various stages of design In addition the Maine

Department of Transportation is finishing the design for the reconstruction of portion of Route

in Biddeford the project is expected to go to bid in 2011 and will require either the relocation of

the Companys existing water main or redesign of the project at an expense to the Company of

about $70000 to avoid the existing water main

The Company also has an ongoing water main replacement program The program is guided by

combination of factors including the results of regular leak detection surveys water main breakage

records plans for street reconstruction projects initiated by either the Maine Department of

Transportation or one of the local communities served and the availability of funds Between

approximately 2500 and 5000 feet of water main have been replaced annually in recent years The

Company hopes to be able to continue and expand this program for many years to come

Replacement of aging utility infrastructure improves system reliability and enhances water quality

for customers This work is not required by regulation but is in keeping with national trend for

such activities The cost per foot of replacement main varies over wide range depending upon soil

and site conditions the range can be from approximately $20.00 to well over $100.00 per foot The

work has been funded through combination of internally generated funds and borrowings Once

complete and in service the replacement mains may be capitalized to earn return through rates

Expenses tend to go down as the number of main breaks drops when older mains are taken out of

service

If there is no minimum amount of proceeds that must be raised before the Company may use the

proceeds of the offering describe the order of priority in which the proceeds set forth above in the

colunm If Maximum Sold will be used
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The Company will use the net proceeds from this offering initially to pay down the balance on the

Companys operating line of credit Any offering proceeds remaining after such use would be

applied against future improvements and additions to plant and equipment The reduction in debt

and increase in equity will enable the Company to increase its future borrowing capacity and

thereby support the Companys operations

Note After reviewing the portion of the offering allocated to the payment of offering expenses and to the

immediate payment to management and promoters of any fees reimbursements past salaries or similar

payments potential investor should consider whether the remaining portion of his investment which

would be that part available for future development of the Companys business and operations would

be adequate

10 If material amounts of funds from sources other than this offering are to be used in conjunction with the

proceeds from this offering state the amounts and sources of such other funds and whether funds are

firm or contingent If contingent explain

The Company will use funds generated through operations supplemented with funds drawn from its

operating line of credit if needed Funds generated through operations are not fixed in amount As

regulated utility the Company is entitled to earn reasonable return on its equity capital and

therefore an increase in capital may lead to improved rates and increased earnings The Companys

line of credit is subject to annual renewal The line of credit has been renewed through June 30
2011

If any material part of the proceeds is to be used to discharge indebtedness describe the terms of such

indebtedness including interest rates If the indebtedness to be discharged was incurred within the

current or previous fiscal year describe the use of proceeds of such indebtedness

Proceeds from the offering will be used to reduce the balance on the Companys operating line of

credit The Company has $2250000 unsecured line of credit The line expires on June 30 2011

The interest charged on the line is variable rate of prime less 1% The amount outstanding was

$1674127 and the interest rate 2.25% at December 31 2009 As of May 31 2010 there was

$1633768 outstanding with an interest rate of 2.10%

If any material amount of proceeds is to be used to acquire assets other than the ordinary course of

business briefly describe and state the cost of the assets and other material terms of the acquisitions If

the assets are to be acquired from officers directors employees or principal stockholders of the

Company or their associates give the names of the
persons

from whom the assets are to be acquired and

set forth the cost to the Company the method followed in determining the cost and any profit to such

persons

Not applicable

If any amount of the proceeds is to be used to reimburse any officer director employee or stockholder

for services already rendered assets previously transferred or monies loaned or advanced or otherwise

explain

Not applicable

11 Indicate whether the Company is having or anticipates having within the next 12 months any cash flow

or liquidity problems and whether or not it is in default or in breach of any note loan lease or other

indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring the Company to make payments Indicate if

significant amount of the Companys trade payables have not been paid within the stated trade term

State whether the Company is subject to any unsatisfied judgments liens or settlement obligations and

the amounts thereof Indicate the Companys plans to resolve any such problems

The Company does not expect any cash flow or liquidity problems within the next twelve months

The Company is not in default or in breach of any note loan lease or other indebtedness or

financing arrangement requiring the Company to make payments

12
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12 Indicate whether proceeds from this offering will satisfy the Companys cash requirements for the next

12 months and whether it will be necessary to raise additional funds State the source of additional

funds if known

The Company is not dependent on proceeds from this offering to fund its cash requirements for the

next twelve months

CAPITALIZATION

13 Indicate the capitalization of the Company as of the most recent balance sheet date adjusted to reflect

any subsequent stock splits stock dividends recapitalizations or refinancings and as adjusted to reflect

the sale of the minimum and maximum amount of securities in this offering and the use of the net

proceeds therefrom

Amount Outstanding

As of 5/31/2010 As Adjusted

Assuming Maximum

Number of Shares

Sold

Debt

Short-term debt average interest rate 2.31% as

of 5/31/2010 3.63% as adjusted 1705407 71639

Long-term debt average interest rate 4.96% 8.766820 8766820

Total debt I0472227

Stockholders equity

Preferred Stock par or stated value

Common Stock $25 par value 2652600 3427600

Additional paid-in capital 4358 1133533

Retained earnings deficit 1547315 1547315

Total stockholders equity

Total Capitalization SI 4946907

The offering has no minimum and accordingly there is no assurance that any proceeds will be

raised

The long-term debt figure presented above includes the non-current portions of the Companys

bonds as well as capital leases The long-term debt figure reported in the balance sheet

included with the attached interim financial statements from the period ending Mary 31 2010

$8704620 represents the non-current portions of the bonds alone

Number of preferred shares authorized to be outstanding

Number of Class Par Value Shares Per Share

of Preferred Authorized

None Not applicable Not applicable

Number of common shares authorized 160000 shares
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Par value per common share S25

Number of common shares reserved to meet conversion

requirements or for the issuance upon exercise of options

warrants or rights None

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

14 The securities being offered hereby are

Common Stock

Preferred or Preference Stock N/A

Notes Debentures or Bonds N/A

Limited Liability Company Membership Interests N/A

Units of two or more types
of securities composed of N/A

Other specify N/A

15 The offered securities have

Yes No

Cumulative voting rights

Other special voting rights

Preemptive rights to purchase any new issue of shares

Preference as to dividends or interest

Preference upon liquidation

Anti-dilution rights

Other special rights or preferences specify

Explain For description of applicable preemptive rights see Question 25 below

16 Are the securities convertible No

If so state conversion price or formula N/A

Date when conversion becomes effective N/A

Date when conversion expires N/A

17a If securities are notes or other types of debt securities Not applicable

What is the interest rate
_____________

If interest rate is variable or multiple rates describe

What is the maturity date

If serial maturity dates describe

Is there mandatory sinking fund Yes No
Describe

Is there trust indenture Yes No

Name address and telephone number of Trustee

Are the securities callable or subject to redemption Yes No

Describe including redemption prices
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Are the securities collateralized by real or personal property Yes No

Describe

If these securities are subordinated in right of payment of interest or principal explain the terms of

such subordination

How much currently outstanding indebtedness of the Company is senior to the securities in right of

payment of interest or principal S__________________

How much indebtedness shares in right of payment on an equivalent pan passu basis

$________________

How much indebtedness is junior subordinated to the securities $__________________

If notes or other types of debt securities are being offered and the Company had earnings during its last

fiscal year show the ratio of earnings to fixed charges on an actual and pro forma basis for that fiscal

year Earnings means pretax income from continuing operations plus fixed charges and capitalized

interest Fixed charges means interest including capitalized interest amortization of debt discount

premium and expense preferred stock interest including capitalized interest amortization of debt

discount premium and expense preferred stock dividend requirements of majority owned subsidiary

and such portion of rental expense as can be demonstrated to be representative of the interest factor in

the particular case The pro forma ratio of earnings to fixed charges should include incremental interest

expense as result of the offering of the notes or other debt securities

The Company is not offering debt securities or preferred stock that the Company is required to

repurchase Therefore this item is not applicable

18 If securities are Preference or Preferred stock Not applicable

Are unpaid dividends cumulative No
Are securities callable Yes No

Explain

19 If securities are capital stock of any type indicate restrictions on dividends under loan or other financing

arrangements or otherwise

The Companys mortgage bond indentures place certain restrictions on the payment of dividends

such that the Company shall not pay any dividends if after giving effect thereto the aggregate

amount of all sums declared paid or set aside by it for the
purpose

of offering such dividends or

distributions subsequent to December 31 1997 does not exceed the sum ofi the net income of the

Company determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for the period

from January 1998 to the date of any such distribution taken as single accounting period plus

ii $350000 At December 31 2009 unrestricted reinvested earnings amounted to approximately

$552000 or $5.20 per share

20 Current amount of assets available for payment of dividends if deficit must be first made up show

deficit in parenthesis

At December 31 2009 unrestricted reinvested earnings available for the payment of dividends

amounted to approximately $552000

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

21 The selling agents that is the persons selling the securities as agent for the Company for commission

or other compensation in this offering are

The Company intends to conduct this offering of stock through its own officers See Question 24

below The Company has not designated selling agent to assist it in this offering but may decide

to do so If selling agent is engaged the Company will amend this offering circular accordingly
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22 Describe any compensation to selling agents or finders including cash securities contracts or other

consideration in addition to the cash commission set forth as percent of the offering price on the cover

page of this Offering Circular Also indicate whether the Company will indemnify the selling agents or

fmders against liabilities under the securities laws Finders are persons who for compensation act as

intermediaries in obtaining selling agents or otherwise making introductions in furtherance of this

offering

The Company has not retained selling agent See Question 21 above The Company does not

intend to use finders and will not pay commissions or other compensation to finders and will not

indemnify finders against liabilities under the securities laws

23 Describe any material relationships between any of the selling agents or finders and the Company or its

management

Not applicable

Note After reviewing the amount of compensation to the selling agents or finders for selling the securities

and the nature of any relationship between the selling agents or finders and the Company potential

investor should assess the extent to which it may be inappropriate to rely upon any recommendation by

the selling agents or finders to buy the securities

24 If this offering is not being made through selling agents the names of persons at the Company through

which this offering is being made

Name C.S Mansfield Jr Name Robert Theriault

Address P0 Box 304 Address P0 Box 304

Biddeford ME 04005-0304 Biddeford ME 04005-0304

Telephone No 207 282-1543 Telephone No 207 282-1543

No additional compensation will be paid to any officer director or company employee in

connection with this offering

25 If this offering is limited to special group such as employees of the Company or is limited to certain

number of individuals as required to qualify under Subchapter of the Internal Revenue Code or is

subject to any other limitations describe the limitations and any restrictions on resale that apply

The offering is being made to those persons who were shareholders of record as of May 28 2010
but is not limited exclusively to those persons

This contemplated issuance of common stock is subject to preemptive rights under Maine law in

favor of existing shareholders of Biddeford and Saco Water Company Accordingly the Company
is required to provide its shareholders with reasonable opportunity to purchase pro rata share of

stock covered by this offering

On May 28 2010 the Company mailed notice to all persons who were then shareholders of

record The mailing was also sent to other persons believed to be beneficial owners of Company
stock based on the best information then available The notice stated that the Company had

decided to proceed with an offering of 31000 shares of common stock at $67.50 per share and had

determined that such an offering was subject to preemptive rights Accordingly the Company

provided shareholders with Preemptive Rights Election form by which prior to July 2010 they

could elect to preserve
their preemptive rights or subject to possible limits under securities laws of

their particular state of residence reserve more than their
pro rata share of the contemplated

offering In returning an Election form the shareholder was not making any commitment to

purchase stock as stated in the letter the offering of shares would only be made through an offering

circular and subscription agreement neither of which was then being provided rather returning

the Election form would serve to preserve
the preemptive rights of that holder and also would give

the Company some basis for estimating whether shares would be available for possible offering to

persons other than those shareholders
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Based on the Election forms returned by existing shareholders the stated offering size exceeds the

prospective exercises of preemptive rights and the Company expects to have shares available for

sale to persons
other than its existing shareholders

All offers and sales to existing shareholders and others will be conducted by Company employees

If the Company decides to engage selling agent at some future date to assist in offering shares for

sale it will amend this offering circular accordingly

Other than in connection with valid exercises of preemptive rights the Company intends to limit the

offering to residents of the following states Maine Massachusetts Florida Illinois California

Connecticut New Hampshire and Maryland The Company reserves the right in its discretion

however to extend the offering to other states

Based on stock ownership information available to the Company at the time of the May 28 2010

notice the Company believes it has shareholders in the following states Alabama California

Colorado Connecticut Florida Georgia Illinois Maine Maryland Massachusetts Missouri

Nevada New Hampshire New Jersey New York North Carolina Ohio Oregon Pennsylvania

Rhode Island Texas Vermont Virginia Washington West Virginia and Wisconsin Under the

securities laws of Oregon and Pennsylvania the Company need not register the offering in that

particular state if it restricts its offering to existing security holders residing in that state and also

limits the number of shares sold to any such security holder to his or her pro rata share of the total

offering To avoid the expenses that would be associated with registration of the offering in Oregon

and Pennsylvania the Company will therefore limit its offering in those states to existing security

holders and will limit the number of shares sold to any such holder to his or her pro rata share of the

offering approximately one-third the number of shares owned by the security holder at the time of

subscription or at May 28 2010 whichever is lower In other states where shareholders reside the

Company is permitted without registration to offer shares to existing security holders without

pro rata restriction of this sort Maine Massachusetts Florida Illinois California Connecticut

New Hampshire and Maryland are among the states where the Company is permitted without

registration to offer the common stock not only to existing security holders but also to others who

are not existing security holders

In the case of shares made available for sale to persons other than existing shareholders the

Company will require minimum investment of 75 shares $5062.50 per subscriber

There are no resale restrictions on the offered common stock

Will the certificates bear legend notifying holders of such restrictions Yes No N/A

26.a Name address and telephone number of independent bank or savings and loan association or other

similardepository institution acting as escrow agent if proceeds are escrowed until minimum proceeds

are raised

This item is not applicable The Company may accept subscriptions as they are received There is

no minimum number of shares that must be sold as condition to the offering

Date at which funds will be returned by escrow agent if minimum proceeds are not raised

Not applicable

Will interest on proceeds during escrow period be paid to investors Yes
ii

No N/A

27 Explain the nature of any resale restrictions on presently outstanding shares and when those restrictions

will terminate if this can be determined

There are no restrictions imposed by the Company on the resale of its outstanding common stock

and no resale restrictions will be placed on common stock purchased through this offering

Under Maine law no person or group may own or control more than 10% of the outstanding voting

securities of regulated public utility unless the Maine Public Utilities Commission has first

approved the acquisition of such ownership or control by such persons
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Holders of the Companys outstanding common stock have statutory preemptive rights under which

each holder generally has right to purchase his or her pro rata portion of shares of stock or

options or rights to purchase such stock or securities convertible into such stock offered by the

Company These preemptive rights may be subject to exceptions that are not applicable to the

present offering of shares

Note Equity investors should be aware that unless the Company is able to complete further public offering

or the Company is able to be sold for cash or merged with public company that their investment in the

Company may be illiquid indefinitely

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTIONS AND REDEMPTIONS

28 If the Company has within the last five
years paid dividends made distributions upon its stock or

redeemed any securities explain how much and when

During each of the past five years the Company has paid regular quarterly dividends on outstanding

shares of common stock During such period the rate of dividends was $3.20 per share per year

through July 2009 and $2.24 per share per year since October 2009 The decision to lower the

dividend payment rate effective with the October 2009 dividend was based upon two primary

factors First water consumption in the Companys service area in recent years had been hampered

both by weakness in the local economy and unfavorable weather conditions As result the

Companys operating revenues during 2008 and 2009 were well below amounts that would

normally be expected based upon historic trends Second the national stock market downturn

reduced the value of the Companys pension fund and resulted in significant charge to the

Companys balance sheet equity charge to equity of $766303 in 2009 and $864537 in 2008

Company management expects that the reduction in the dividend payment rate will enable the

Company to recover more quickly from the negative effects of lower than expected operating

revenues and the stock market downturn

The Company currently expects to continue to pay quarterly dividends on outstanding shares of

common stock in the future The amount of dividends paid is subject to statutory prohibitions on the

making of distributions if they would cause the corporation to become insolvent The Companys

mortgage bond indentures also impose limits on the payment of dividends See Question 19 Subject

to such limitations the Board of Directors has discretion to determine the timing and amounts of

dividends in recent years all cash dividends declared by the Board have been paid from the

Companys earnings from operations or from retained earnings The Company currently expects to

continue to pay quarterly dividends on outstanding shares of common stock in the future The current

payment rate is approximately 5.7% of total stockholders equity and would be approximately 5.1% if

this offering is successful The Company believes that payment of dividends at the current payment

rate is sustainable whether or not the Company successfully completes this offering and the Company
does not currently anticipate having to make any further reduction in the dividend rate in the

foreseeable future

OFFICERS AND KEY PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY

29 Chief Executive Officer Title President Treasurer

Name Clifford Mansfield Jr Age 61

Office Street Address 181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Telephone No 207 282-1543

Name of employers titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication ofjob

responsibilities
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Mr Mansfield has held his current position with the Company throughout the last five years He is

responsible for supervising the day-to-day operations of the Company including the financial

aspects and reporting on those activities to the Board of Directors

Education degrees schools and dates

BSCE University of Maine /1970

MSCE University of Arizona 1972

Also Director of the Company Yes No

Indicate amount of time to be spent on Company matters if less than full time

Mr Mansfield is employed by the Company on full-time basis

30 Chief Operating Officer

Mr Mansfield also serves as the chief operating officer of the Company in his role as President and

Treasurer

31 Chief Financial Officer

Mr Mansfield also serves as the chief financial officer of the Company in his role as President and

Treasurer

32 Other Key Persoimel

Name Robert Theriault Age 58

Title Assistant Treasurer

Office Street Address Telephone No 207 282-1543

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Names of employers titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication ofjob

responsibilities

Mr Theriault has held his current position with the Company throughout the last five years He is

the manager of the Companys main office and in this capacity he supervises the office staff and

maintains all of the Companys accounting records

Education degrees schools and dates

BS Accounting University of Southern Maine 1977

Also Director of the Company Yes No

Indicate amount of time to be spent on Company matters if less than full time

Mr Theriault is employed by the Company on full-time basis

Name Thomas Car III Age 53

Title Distribution Superintendent

Office Street Address Telephone No 207 282-1543

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Names of employers titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication ofjob

responsibilities

Mr Carr has held his current position with the Company throughout the last five
years He is

responsible for overseeing all aspects of the Companys water distribution system including the

design and construction of all system expansions and improvements
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Age 41

Telephone No 207 282-1543

20

Telephone No 207 934-3996

Education degrees schools and dates

University of Maine Portland-Gorham /1974-1976

Also Director of the Company Yes No

Indicate amount of time to be spent on Company matters if less than full time

Mr Can is employed by the Company on full-time basis

Name Christopher Mansfield

Title Deputy Manager

Office Street Address

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Names of employers titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication ofjob

responsibilities

Mr Mansfield the son of C.S Mansfield Jr has held his current position with the Company

throughout the last five years He is responsible for supervising the day-to-day operations of the

Companys water treatment facility and providing assistance to the other members of the

Companys management team as needed

Education degrees schools and dates

BSCE University of Maine 1991

MSCE Cornell University 1993

PhD Civil Engineering Cornell University 1996

JD Cornell Law School 2002

Also Director of the Company Yes No

Indicate amount of time to be spent on Company matters if less than full time

Mr Mansfield is employed by the Company on full-time basis

33 Number of Directors If Directors are not elected annually or are elected under voting trust or

other arrangement explain

The Company elects Directors to staggered three-year terms Accordingly in any given year the

shareholders elect one or two of the five members of the Board of Directors

34 Information concerning outside or other Directors i.e those not described above

Name David Briggs Age 71

Office Street Address

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Names of employers titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication ofjob

responsibilities

Mr Briggs has been retired since 1995 Prior to his retirement he worked for Central Maine Power

Company most recently as regional director for its Biddeford District Central Maine Power is an

electric utility serving central and southern Maine

Education degrees schools and dates
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C.W Post College 1964-1966

University of Southern Maine /1957-1958 1971-1976

Name Richard Hull III Age 60

Office Street Address Telephone No 207 282-7100

Park One Eleven

409 Alfred Street

Biddeford ME 04064

Names of employers titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication ofjob

responsibilities

Mr Hull is the Chief Operating Officer for Title Closing Services LLC he has held this

position since November 2006 From January 1994 to November 2006 he worked for Levis

Hull P.A and was shareholder of the firm

Education degrees schools and dates

BA Carleton College 1971

JD University of Maine School of Law 1974

Name Michael Morel Age 67

Office Street Address Telephone No 207 282-0553

181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Names of employers titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication ofjob

responsibilities

Mr Morel is retired From 1996 to 2008 he worked for Maine Bank Trust Company Division

of Peoples United Bank and served as Vice President in charge of area commercial lending and

business development

Education degrees schools and dates

BA History Saint Anselm College 1965

Name Wayne Sherman Age 60

Office Street Address Telephone No 207 284-6240

Pilgrim Lane

Saco ME 04072

Names of employers titles and dates of positions held during past five years with an indication ofjob

responsibilities

From 1998 to 2009 Mr Sherman was President of Biddeford Savings Bank He currently serves as

Director of that bank position he has held for the last eleven years Mr Sherman also is ski

instructor in the Sunday River Meisters Program

Education degrees schools and dates

BA Political Science University of Southern Maine 1972

35.a Have any of the Officers or Directors ever worked for or managed company including separate

subsidiary or division of larger enterprise in the same business as the Company

Yes No Explain

Director David Briggs has prior employment experience with regulated public utility He

served as regional director for Central Maine Power Company prior to his retirement in 1995
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If any of the Officers Directors or other key personnel have ever worked for or managed company in

the same business or industry as the Company or in related business or industry describe what

precautions if any including the obtaining of releases or consents from prior employers have been

taken to preclude claims by prior employers for conversion or theft of trade secrets know-how or other

proprietary information

Central Maine Power Company is an electricity distribution utility and the Company is public

water utility The two companies neither compete for business nor utilize trade secrets and/or

proprietary information in their operations release from Central Maine Power was not necessary

for Mr Briggs to be able to serve on the Companys Board of Directors

If the Company has never conducted operations or is otherwise in the development stage indicate

whether any of the Officers or Director has ever managed any other company in the start-up or

development stage and describe the circumstances including relevant dates

Not applicable

If any of the Companys key personnel are not employees but are consultants or other independent

contractors state the details of their engagement by the Company

Not applicable

If the Company has key man life insurance on any of its Officers Directors or key personnel explain

including the names of the persons insured the amount of insurance whether the insurance proceeds are

payable to the Company and whether there are arrangements that required the proceeds to be used to

redeem securities or pay benefits to the estate of the insured
person or surviving spouse

The Company has not purchased key man life insurance on any Officer Director or key personnel

36 If petition under the Bankruptcy Act or any State insolvency law was filed by or against the Company
or its Officers Directors or other key personnel or receiver fiscal agent or similarofficer was

appointed by court for the business or property of any such persons or any partnership in which any of

such persons was general partner at or within the past five years or any corporation or business

association of which any such person was an executive officer at or within the past five years set forth

below the name of such persons and the nature and date of such actions

Not applicable

Note After reviewing the information concerning the background of the Company Officers Directors and

other key personnel potential investors should consider whether or not these persons have adequate

background and experience to develop and operate this Company and to make it successful In this

regard the experience and ability of management are often considered the most signiftcant factors in

the success of business

PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

37 Principal owners of the Company those who beneficially own directly or indirectly 10% or more of the

common and preferred stock presently outstanding starting with the largest common stockholder

Include separately all common stock issuable upon conversion of convertible securities identifying

them by asterisk and show average price per share as if conversion has occurred Indicate by footnote

if the price paid was for consideration other than cash and the nature of any such consideration

To the Companys knowledge no shareholder beneficially owns 10% or more of the common stock

of the Company Under Maine law person or group that owns or controls 10% or more of the

outstanding voting securities of regulated public utility is required to obtain advance approval

from the Maine Public Utilities Commissions There have been no applications to the MPUC for

approval of ownership in the Company

The Company has no outstanding convertible securities



38 Number of shares beneficially owned by Officers and Directors as group

Before offering 894 shares less than .0% of total outstanding

After offering Assuming maximum securities sold shares L% of total outstanding

The Company does not know how many shares if any its Officers and Directors will purchase

through this offering The Company expects that even after the offering the Officers and Directors

will own less than 2.0% of the total outstanding shares

MANAGEMENT RELATIONSHIPS TRANSACTIONS AND REMUNERATION

39 If any of the Officers Directors key personnel or principal stockholders are related by blood or

marriage please describe

C.S Mansfield Jr President/Treasurer and Christopher Mansfield Deputy Manager are father

and son

If the Company has made loans to or is doing business with any of its Officers Directors key personnel

or 10% stockholders or any of their relatives or any entity controlled directly or indirectly by any such

persons within the last two years or proposes to do so within the ftiture explain This includes sales

or lease of goods property or services to or from the Company employment or stock purchase

contracts etc State the principal terms of any significant loans agreements leases financing or other

arrangements

The Company has not made any loans to any of its Officers Directors key persoimel or 10%

stockholders or their relatives and has no plans to do so

The Companys line of credit and checking accounts are with Biddeford Savings Bank Director

Wayne Sherman is current member of the Board of Directors of that Bank as well as the former

president of the Bank The current business arrangements between the Company and Biddeford

Savings Bank are on terms comparable to those available from unaffiliated third parties All

arrangements between the Company and Biddeford Savings Bank have been reviewed and

approved by the Companys Board of Directors without Mr Shermans participation in those

discussions or votes

The Company periodically shops for banking services Presently its line of credit with Biddeford

Savings Bank bears interest at variable rate equal to Prime minus 1% The Company does not

have any regular monthly charges for its various checking accounts with the Bank The Company
believes that the cost of banking services provided by Biddeford Savings Bank is competitive in

this market Biddeford Savings Bank is locally managed and is located near the Companys office

If any of the Companys Officers Directors key persoimel or 10% stockholders has guaranteed or co

signed any of the Companys bank debt or other obligations including any indebtedness to be retired

from the proceeds of this offering explain and state the amounts involved

None of the Companys Officers Directors key personnel or 10% stockholders has guaranteed or

co-signed any of the Companys bank debt or other obligations
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40 List all remuneration by the Company to Officers Directors and key personnel for the last fiscal year

Cash Other

C.S Mansfield Jr Chief Executive Officer $120064 none

Chief Operating Officer Chief Financial Officer

Robert Theriault Assistant Treasurer 97034 none

Thomas Carr III Distribution Superintendent 01613 none

Christopher Mansfield Deputy Manager 81697 none

Total $400408 none

Officers as group number of persons none

Directors as group number of persons 12400 none

Key persons as group number of persons $183 .310 none

If remuneration is expected to change or has been unpaid in prior years explain

The Company has non-qualified deferred compensation plan available to assist select

management employees to save on pre-tax basis by deferring amounts of compensation C.S

Mansfield Jr is the only employee currently participating in this plan The total amount owed

Mr Mansfield under the Companys non-qualified deferred compensation plan was $43790 as

of December 31 2009

The Company grants periodic cost of living and/or market rate adjustments in the compensation

paid all employees Such salary adjustments were granted in 2008 The Company did not grant

any salary adjustments in 2009 The Company has granted 3.5% salary increase to all

employees in 2010 which is in the process
of being phased in over five month period

beginning in June 2010

If any employment agreements exist or are contemplated describe

The Company has an employment agreement with its President C.S Mansfield Jr This

agreement was originally entered into in October 2006 and has been extended from time to

time since then The current term of the agreement expires December 31 2010 although Mr
Mansfield and the Company expect to amend the agreement in the coming months to extend the

term for at least one additional year beyond that date The agreement as currently in effect

provides for base salary to Mr Mansfield at the annual rate of $122700 The agreement is

terminable by either party at will

The Company has policy that provides for severance compensation for its Officers in the

event of change in control of the Company substantial change in the Officers

responsibilities due to governance change or involuntary termination of employment by the

Company without cause The severance compensation payable under the policy is equal to two

months of the Officers current salary for every year of employment with the Company up to

maximum of twenty-four months of salary and subject to the limitations imposed by the

Internal Revenue Code golden parachute rules Mr Mansfield and Mr Theriault are the only

employees covered under the policy each of them has been employed by the Company for

period that would entitle him to twenty-four months of salary if the Company were to undergo

change of control substantially change either officers responsibilities due to governance

change or terminate either officers employment without cause

The Company has no current plans to enter into any new employment agreements except that it

does expect to renew its employment agreement with the President C.S Mansfield Jr on

year-to-year basis after the current term expires December 31 2010
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41 Number of shares subject to issuance under presently outstanding stock purchase agreements stock

options warrants or rights shares 0% of total shares to be outstanding after the completion of the

offering if all securities sold assuming exercise of options and conversion of convertible securities

Indicate which have been approved by shareholders N/A

State the expiration dates exercise prices and other basic terms for these securities

The Company has no presently outstanding stock purchase agreements stock options warrants

or rights outstanding

Number of common shares subject to issuance under existing stock purchase or option plans but not yet

covered by outstanding purchase agreements options or warrants N/A

Describe the extent to which future stock purchase agreements stock options warrants or rights must be

approved by shareholders

If any future stock purchase agreements stock options warrants or rights were to involve more

than the Companys authorized amount of common stock or another class of stock the

shareholders would have the statutory right to approve an amendment to the Companys
Articles of Incorporation authorizing such new shares Other than the statutory right to approve

amendments to the Companys Articles of Incorporation the shareholders do not have any

rights to approve stock purchase agreements stock options warrants or rights

42 If the business is highly dependent on the services of certain key personnel describe any arrangements

to assure that these persons will remain with the Company and not compete upon any termination

The Company has an employment agreement with its President C.S Mansfield Jr the term of

which expires December 31 2010 The Company and Mr Mansfield expect to amend the

agreement prior to December 31 2010 to extend its term beyond that date for at least one

additional year with no other change in terms Mr Mansfields existing agreement provides for

minimum salaries and for severance payments under certain circumstances See Question

40c

The Company does not have any non-compete agreements with its Officers or Directors

The Company believes that it is capable of covering the short-term loss of any Officer

Director or key person with increased effort from remaining personnel The permanent loss of

any such person would require the recruitment and hiring of an experienced replacement

The Company has developed plan setting out the procedures that would be followed to

maintain critical management functions in the event the President/Treasurer becomes

temporarily incapacitated and to hire successor for the President/Treasurer should

replacement become necessary for any reason

Note After reviewing the above potential investors should consider whether or not the compensation to

management and other key personnel directly or indirectly is reasonable in view of the present stage of

the Company development

LITIGATION

43 Describe any past pending or threatened litigation or administrative action which has had or may have

material effect upon the Companys business financial condition or operations including any litigation

or action involving the Companys Officers Directors or other key personnel State the names of the

principal parties the nature and current status of the matters and amounts involved Give an evaluation

by management or counsel to the extent feasible of the merits of the proceedings or litigation and the

potential impact on the Companys business financial condition or operations

There has been and is now no litigation or administrative action pending against the Company
that has had or could have material effect on the Company
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FEDERAL TAX ASPECTS

44 If the Company is an corporation under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and it is anticipated that

any significant tax benefits will be available to investors in this offering indicate the nature and amount

of such anticipated tax benefits and the material risks of their disallowance Also state the name
address and telephone number of any tax advisor that has passed upon these tax benefits Attach any

opinion or description of the tax consequences of an investment in the securities by the tax advisor

The Company is not an corporation

Note Potential investors are encouraged to have their own personal tax consultant contact the tax advisor to

review details of the tax benefits and the extent that the benefits would be available and advantageous

to the particular investor

MISCELLANEOUS FACTORS

45 Describe
any other material factors either adverse or favorable that will or could affect the Company or

its business for example discuss any defaults under major contracts any breach of bylaw provisions

etc or which are necessary to make any other information in this Offering Circular not misleading or

incomplete

The Company considers the foregoing to include fair summary of all material factors that

affect or are reasonably likely to affect its business as regulated public water utility

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46 Provide the financial statements required by Part F/S of this Offering Circular section of Form 1-A

Audited financial statements for the fiscal years ending December 31 2009 and December 31
2008 are attached Also attached are interim financial statements unaudited as of and for the

five months ending May 31 2010 and 2009

The Companys management assesses recently issued but not effective accounting standards as

they are issued There are no recently issued accounting but not effective accounting standards

that are expected to have material impact on the Companys financial position or results of

operations

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF CERTAIN RELEVANT FACTORS

47 If the Companys financial statements show losses from operations explain the causes underlying those

losses and what steps the Company has taken or is taking to address these causes

Not applicable

48 Describe any trends in the Companys historical operating results Indicate any changes now occurring

in the underlying economics of the industry or the Companys business which in the opinion of

Management will have significant impact either favorable or adverse upon the Companys results of

operations within the next 12 months and give rough estimate of the probable extent of the impact if

possible

The Company functions as the public water utility for the Biddeford-Saco region of York

County Maine According to the 2000 census York County was Maines fastest-growing

county and the Biddeford-Saco region is York Countys most populous area The area attracts

large numbers of seasonal tourists as it is home to popular beaches and offers access to

variety of other outdoor leisure activities such as biking boating and family amusement parks

The area also includes two local colleges
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The Companys operating results tend to be cyclical most profitable just after the

implementation of new rates and then gradually worsening as time passes until rates are

adjusted again The rates charged by the Company are regulated by the Maine Public Utilities

Commission and all rate adjustments require prior approval by the MPUC before

implementation The approval process is complex and can require up to nine months before

final settlement of rate adjustment application Like other water utilities the Companys

operating results are also affected by the weather with overall revenues tending to rise during

warm relatively dry periods and by the strength of the local economy with overall revenues

tending to decline during periods of general weakness in the local economy The Companys

experience in 2008 and 2009 illustrates this effect

In its most recent rate proceeding before the MPUC the Company received permission to phase

in increased rates in two-step process during 2008 The first step 10.5% increase became

effective on March 2008 and the second 3.5% increase on August 29 2008

Coincidentally with the phasing in of the increased rates the volume of water sold by the

Company was depressed by wet weather and the difficult economy The total volume of water

supplied by the Company during July and August of 2008 was approximately 7% below normal

levels and during July and August of 2009 was approximately 9% below normal levels As

result the new rates did not produce the revenues anticipated

In addition federal stimulus spending has spurred an unusually large number of road and

infrastructure projects mostly during 2009 When public works projects that affect the Companys

pipelines and other facilities are underway the Company is required to deploy construction crews to

help local and state crews complete their work by doing whatever is necessary to adjust the water

system in connection with the public construction project That includes variety of tasks such as

upgrading relocating or disconnecting and then reconnecting water lines and services When that

happens the Company is not compensated nor was the Company allocated any of the federal

stimulus monies The increased costs associated with accelerated construction activity came at

time of increase in various other costs including water treatment expenses and employee medical

insurance as well as the Companys own planned upgrade projects

Due to these factors total combined revenues for 2008 and 2009 were approximately $250000

to $300000 below expectations This in turn caused the Companys operating income for 2008

and 2009 $642794 and 686519 respectively to be lower than would normally be expected

for period that includes recent new rates

Operating revenues for the first five months of 2010 were virtually identical to those for 2009
but mild spring and excellent summer weather led to significantly improved demand during

the summer months that account for peak water usage The total volume of water supplied by

the Company during July and August of 2010 was approximately 13% above normal levels

This increase in demand should result in improved revenues for 2010 versus 2009 Because of

cost-cutting measures taken during 2009 and favorable weather conditions during the first

quarter of 2010 operating expenses declined slightly in the first five months of 2010 versus

2009 Cost-cutting measures included hiring freeze with use of temporary and/or part-time

labor as needed The Company has also been able to have some success reducing the unit

prices for many essential treatment chemicals by aggressively pursuing alternatives whenever

possible Because the first quarter was relatively mild and snow-free frost did not penetrate

too far below the ground surface in early 2010 and there were fewer water main breaks than

normal to repair Also less time was needed to shovel snow from fire hydrants In addition the

relatively low snowfall total resulted in lower spring run-off during the snow melt season and

lower than normal amount of chemicals was required to bring the water produced at the

Companys treatment facility into compliance with drinking water standards during the spring

With the combined effect of reduced
expenses to date and the improved demand for water this

summer operating income for 2010 should exceed that of both 2008 and 2009

Nonoperating income is minor component of overall earnings and remains fairly stable from

year to year Debt
expenses

likewise tend to remain fairly stable from
year to year
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Even assuming 2010 proves to be more profitable year
for the Company because revenues

and operating income for 2008 and 2009 fell so far below expectations the Company does

expect to initiate rate adjustment proceedings with the MPUC soon after the completion of this

stock offering most likely in early 2011 If the rate adjustment application is successful

Company earnings should improve after the new rates are implemented The Company does

not anticipate any significant change in operations if new rates are implemented other than to

allow for faster accumulation of capital to fund improvements in its plant and equipment

So long as Company net income for 2010 is at least as much as net income for 2009 the

Company expects to have generated sufficient funds through operations to satisfy minimum

spending needs for 2010 while maintaining approximately $500000 in immediately available

funds through its operating line of credit for emergency use if needed

Proceeds from the stock offering will be used to pay down the balance on the Companys

operating line of credit and increase the current ratio Doing so should allow the Company to

continue its ongoing water main replacement program see Question 9a at the current pace

NOTE Forward-looking statements contained in this offering circular including without

limitation management estimates offuture revenues expenses operating margin dividends

and capital needs involve uncertainties risks and other factors that may cause actual results

or performance to dffer from those projected Allforward-looking statements are expressly

qual/ied in their entirety by the risk factors referenced in Question above and elsewhere in

this offering circular

49 If the Company sells product or products and has had significant sales during its fiscal year state the

existing gross margin net sales less cost of such sales as presented in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles as percentage of sales for the last fiscal year ______
What is the

anticipated gross margin for next year of operations Approximately ________% If this is expected to

change explain Also if reasonably current gross margin figures are available for the industry indicate

these figures and the source or sources from which they are obtained

The Company does not sell items from inventory and therefore gross margin is not metric used in

its business Operating margin is more appropriate metric Operating margin defined as

operating income divided by net sales was 16.4% for 2009 and 15.6% for 2008 The Company

expects the operating margin number to improve in 2010 largely on the strength of water demand

for the current summer season compared to summer water demand in 2009 and 2008 See Question

48
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50 Foreign sales as percent of total sales for the last fiscal year 0%

The Company sells only to customers within its service area on the southern Maine Coast

Domestic government sales as percent of total domestic sales for the last fiscal year 17.9%

Total operating revenues for
year

ended December 31 2009 were $4178190 Revenues by

customer class for that year were as follows

Residential $2516620 60.2%

Commercial 640690 15.3%

Industrial 71640 1.7%

Public authorities 64130 1.5%

Public fire protection 683460 16.4%

Private fire protection 201650 4.8%

Explain the nature of these sales including any anticipated changes

Residential customers are the single most important source of revenues and their usage varies from

year to year depending upon changes in weather and the strength of the local economy Fire

protection charges do not experience large changes from year to year except as result of periodic

changes in tariffed rates Due to favorable weather in 2010 the Company is experiencing increased

demand from residential customers and thus expects that customer revenues will make up larger

percentage of overall operating revenues for 2010 than was the case in 2009
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L3ERRY.DUNN.MCN Eli PARKER

CERTIHED PURLIC CCOUNTANT5
MANAGEM ENT CON SULTNTS

INDEPENDENT AUDiTORS REPORT

Board of Directors

Biddeford Saco Water Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Biddeford Saco Water Company as of

December 31 2009 and 2008 and the related statements of income changes in stockholders equity and

cash flows for the years then ended These financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our

audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S generally accepted auditing standards Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the

overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Biddeford Saco Water Company as of December 31 2009 and 2008 and the

results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles

//2AI

Portland Maine

March 22 2010
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BIDDEFOIW SACO WATER COMPANY

Balance Sheets

December 31 2009 and 2008

ASSETS

2009 2008

Assets

Water utility plant at cost $29983347 $29191047

Less accumulated depreciation 11004513 10.451357

Net water utility plant 18978834 18739690

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 19210 1.318

Customer accounts receivable net of allowance of $35000

and $75000 in 2009 and 2008 respectively 746054 730771

Other accounts receivable 34000 34000

Note receivable current portion 68000 68000
Unbilled water revenue 180236 184801

Materials and supplies 213272 206941

Prepaid expenses 38980 40083

Unadvanced bond proceeds 880540 888785

Income taxes refundable 42940 44332

Total current assets 2199.031

Other assets

Investments 151741 142291

Noncurrent customer accounts receivable 82003 127013
Unamortized bond issuance expense 131237 145801

Note receivable less current portion 108000 136000

Deferred tax asset pension 502410 566820

Other deferred debits 340941 218150

Total other assets j316332 1336075

Total assets $22518398 22.274.796

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

2009 2008

Capitalization

Stockholders equity

Common stock $25 par value authorized 160000 shares

issued and outstanding 106104 shares 2652600 2652600

Premium on common stock 33057 33057

Capital stock expense 28699 28699
Reinvested earnings 2302634 2331760

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 766303 864537

Total stockholders equity 4193.289 4.124181

Long-term debt excluding current portion 8749620 8802620

Accrued pension cost excluding current portion 675335 950871

Obligation under capital leases excluding current portion 70135 88204

Total long-term liabilities 9.495090 9.841.695

Current liabilities

Line of credit 1674127 1432071
Current portion of long-term debt 53000 53000
Current portion of obligation under capital leases 18068 16767

Accounts payable 103161 175734

Accrued interest payable 93789 94089
Dividends payable 59418 84883

Other accrued liabilities 321488 109361

Current portion of accrued pension cost i98000 130.000

Total current liabilities 2521051 2095.905

Deferred credits

Customers advances for construction 528143 627121

Unamortized investment tax credits 128608 133753

Deferred federal and state income taxes 2761253 2.581.942

Total deferred credits 3418004 3.342816

Contributions in aid of construction 2890964 2.870.199

Total stockholders equity and liabilities $22518398 $22274.796
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Statements of Income

Years Ended December 31 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Operating revenues

Water sales 3293081 3274287

Fire protection 885112 840.752

Total operating revenues 4.178.193 4.115039

Operating expenses

Purification 495490 513573

Pumping 498109 520.854

Distribution 691055 696593

Customer accounting and collection 508722 493525

General and administrative 322107 303499

Depreciation and amortization 547782 521705

Taxes other than income taxes 329589 322281

Income taxes 98820 100.215

Total operating expenses 3491.674 3.472245

Operating income 686519 642794

Nonoperating income expense

interest income 1785 4732

Other income 97229 99780

income taxes 38900 40.800

Net nonoperating income 60.114 63.7 12

Debt expenses

Interest expense 478841 475016

Amortization of bond issuance expense 14564 14190

Allowance for funds used during construction 6249 1.937

Total debt expenses 487.156 467.269

Net income 259477 23 9.237

Net income per common share 2.45 2.25

Weighted-average shares outstanding 106.104 106.104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

Years Ended December 31 2009 and 2008

Balances December 31 2007

Net income

Other comprehensive income

Increase in pension liability net of

tax of $485940

Total comprehensive income loss

Dividends declared

Balances December 31 2008

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

Decrease in pension liability net of

tax of $64410

Total comprehensive income

Dividends declared

Balances December 31 2009

Premium Accumulated

on Capital Other Total

Common Common Stock Reinvested Comprehensive Stockholders

Stock Stock Expense Earnings Loss

2652600 33057 28699 2432056 123362 4965652

239237 239237

_________ 741.175 741l7_5

239.237 741.175 501938D

339533 339533

2652600 33057 28699 2331760 864537 4124181

259477 259477

98234 98234

259477 98234 357.711

__________ 288 288603

2652600 33.057 28.69 2302634 766.303 4193289

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 259477 239237

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 674484 654930

Amortization other 14564 14190

Patronage capital dividends 9450 13500
Deferred income taxes 179311 89212

Amortization of investment tax credits 5145 5145
Decrease increase in

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 5708 111814
Materials and supplies 6331 21294
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1103 1214
Other deferred debits 203381 107028
Income taxes refundable and payable 1392 79418

Increase decrease in

Accounts payable 72873 58603

Accrued liabilities 212127 127433
Accrued pension costs 44.892 99152

Net cash provided by operating activities 994678 649.0 10

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of water utility plant 940191 1703252
Plant removal costs net of salvage 1741 6701
Payments received on notes receivable 68000 68.000

Net cash used by investing activities 873932 1.64 L2
Cash flows from financing activities

Net borrowings on line of credit 242056 499186
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt 8245 726178
Deferred financing costs paid 29390
Payments on capital leases 16768 15.560
Payment of dividends 314068 339533
Principal payments on long-term debt 53000 38000
Proceeds from customers advances for construction 60855 196550
Refunds to customers 30.j14 35.77

Net cash used provided by financing activities 102.854 963 .660

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 17892 29283

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 1.318 30601

Cash and cash equivalents end of
year

19.210 1.318

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for income taxes 24943 44.794

Cash paid for interest net of capitalized interest 472.893 445.165

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Nature of Business

Biddeford Saco Water Company the Company is an investor-owned water utility which supplies

drinking water and fire protection services to the communities of Biddeford Saco Old Orchard Beach

and the Pine Point section of Scarborough Maine The Company also sells water to the Kennebunk

Kennebunkport and Wells Water District The Company is traded on the over-the-counter market and is

exempt from the Securities and Exchange Commission filing requirements as there are less than 500

stockholders

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the

date of the financial statements Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Regulatory Accounting

The Company follows the accounting prescribed by the Maine Public Utilities Commission

MPUC and the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification

Topic ASC 980 Regulated Operations This accounting recognizes the economic effects of rate

regulation by recording costs and return on investment as such amounts are recovered through

rates authorized by regulatory authorities The Company annually reviews the continued

applicabilIty of ASC 980 based on the current regulatory and competitive environment

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less are considered tO be cash

equivalents

The Company maintains its cash in accounts with banks which may exceed federally insured limits

hut are invested in government securities The Company has not experienced any losses in such

accounts and believes it is not exposed to significant risk with respect to these accounts
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BIDDEFORU SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when evidence of service arrangement exists water delivery has

occurred the tariff rate has been determined and collectability is reasonably assured The Companys

revenue is from the sale of water to consumers who have service agreements with the Company as

well as from contracted public and private fire protection customers The Companys terms of

service are established in advance through tariffs stipulated with and approved by the MPUC Tariff

rates are set based on cost of services studies filed with and approved by the MPUC The Company
has not experienced significant uncollectible revenue Substantially all water sales to consumers are

metered and revenue is recognized when water is provided to the customer Fire prevention revenue

is billed at flat rates over time according to service agreements with customers The Company
records all tariff revenues on gross basis

Customer Accounts Receivable

Customer accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from

outstanding balances Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through charge to

earnings and credit to the allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical information and an

assessment of the current status of individual accounts Balances that are still outstanding after

management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through charge to the

allowance and credit to customer accounts receivable

Unbilled Water Revenue

The Company accrues revenue for estimated water distributed but not yet billed as of the balance

sheet date

Materials and Supplies

Materials and supplies are valued at their average cost

Investments

The Company owns patronage capital certificates from cooperative bank The certificates are not

marketable and are carried at original cost The Company has not identified any events or changes in

circumstances that may have had significant adverse effect on the fair market value of these

instruments
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Water Utility Plant

Water utility plant is stated at cost Additions to utility plant and replacements of retirement units of

property are capitalized Costs include material direct labor and such indirect items as engineering

and supervision payroll taxes and benefits transportation and an allowance for funds used during

construction The cost of repairs maintenance minor replacements of property and planned major

maintenance activities is charged to maintenance expense as incurred unless approved for deferral in

other deferred debits by the MPUC When units of property are replaced retired or abandoned the

recorded value thereof is credited to the asset account and charged along with gains and losses to

accumulated depreciation Depreciation of plant is computed on average plant investment by

primary accounts using the straight-line method over the assets useful lives as approved by the

MPUC

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction AFUDC

In accordance with regulatory requirements the Company has capitalized as AFUDO financing

costs related to portions of its construction work in progress at rate which reflects the Companys
overall weighted cost of capital including outstanding debt and cost of equity These costs are

capitalized as part of the water utility plant account.The weighted cost of capital was 5.58%

comprised of cost of equity of 2.10% and cost of debt of 3.48% for the year ended December 31

2009 and 6.07% comprised of cost of equity of 2.53% and cost of debt of 3.54% for the year ended

December 31 2008

Unamortized Bond Issuance Expense

Bond issue expense on long-term debt is amortized ratably based on the maturity of the related

issues

Other Deferred Debits

Other deferred debits include certain expenses which are by regulation recognized in expenses for

financial reporting purposes ratably over time

-8-

L17



BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive loss includes amounts net of tax for prior costs or charges and

net gains or losses associated with the Companys pension plan Amounts will be adjusted based on

how much gain or loss and prior service cost is included in that years expense new gains and losses

during the year and any plan changes

Customers Advances for Construction and Contributions in Aid of Construction

The Company receives advances for construction from or on behalf of customers Under certain

circumstances the amounts received are refundable either wholly or in part over varying periods of

time Amounts no longer refundable are transferred to and combined with contributions in aid of

construction which is amortized as reduction to depreciation over the estimated useful lives of the

related water utility plant

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes

Investment tax credits are deferred for financial reporting purposes and are amortized over the

estimated useful lives of the related properties through 2034

In July 2006 the FASB issued accounting guidance for uncertainty in income taxes which is now

part
of ASC 740 Income Taxes The guidance prescribes recognition threshold and measurement

attributes for financial statement recognition of tax position taken or expected to be taken on tax

return The Company implemented the guidance in 2008 and it did not have an impact on the

financial statements

As of December 31 2009 tax years after 2003 remain subject to examination by federal and state

authorities

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities

The Company reports certain taxes on net basis Accordingly they are recorded as liability when

billed to customers and excluded from revenue and expenses
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Subsecuent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP the

Company has considered transactions and events occurring through March 22 2010 which was the

date that the financials were available to be issued

Net Income Per Common Share

Net income per common share is computed based on the weighted average number of common

shares outstanding during the year

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

The Companys management assesses recently issued but not effective accounting standards as they

are issued There are no recently issued accounting but not effective accounting standards that are

expected to have significant impact on the Companys financial position or results of operations

Reclassifications

Certain 2008 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2009 presentation

Note Receivable

During 2006 the Company sod property to charitable organization for $440000 through an

installment sale The sale price was based on commercial appraisal The installment sale called for

$100000 down payment received by the Company in 2006 with the remaining $340000 financed

through note collateralized by the property at zero percent interest over five years The payments

of $34000 which began in June 2007 are to be received in semi-annual installments director of

the Company is also member of the Board of Directors of the charitable organization

During 2009 the Company entered into an agreement to convert noncurrent trade receivables to

note receivable in the amount of $40000 in non-cash transaction Monthly interest payments

began on April 2009 and will continue through March 2011 when the entire principal balance
all accrued interest and all charges are due in full The note is collateralized by land

10
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Water Utility Plant

Useful Lives

Category 2009 2008 in years

Intangibles 47277 47277

Land and structures 2119859 2119859 20 50

Pumping 2918701 2895304 20 60

Equipment 1061227 968862 10-20

Mains 15481188 15324015 30-75

Services 4536903 4309933 30

Meters 1937374 1888338 25

Hydrants 1278923 1235045 50

Construction work in progress 601895 402414

Total water utility plant 29983347 29191047

Less accumulated depreciation 11004513 10.451357

Net water utility plant 18978834 18.739690

Water utility plant had additions of $940191 and retirements of $147892 in 2009 There were

additions of $1704994 and retirements of $42591 in 2008

Other Deferred Debits

Recovery

2009 2008 Period

Overheads 86197 60211 1year

Repair reserves 20909 88790 years

Regulatory expense 10148 18847 years

Development and analysis 217620 215197 Project completion

Leak detection 6067 12685 years

340941 218150
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of

____ 2008

Bonds payable Series at 7.72% interest paid semi-annually

outstanding principal due in June 2018 2250000 2250000
Bonds payable Series at 6.45% interest paid semi-annually

outstanding principal due in September 2014 2700000 2700000

Bonds payable Series at 2.40% principal and interest paid

semi-annually outstanding principal and interest due in

April2022 1491100 1521100

Bonds payable Series at 1.86% principal and interest paid

semi-annually outstanding principal and interest due in

October 2025 918000 926000

Bonds payable Series at 2.23% principal and interest paid

semi-annually outstanding principal and interest due in

April 2028 1443520 1458.520

8802620 8855620
Less current portion 53000 53000

Long-term debt excluding current portion 8749620 8.802620

Requirements for the repayment of the outstanding bonds at December 31 2009 are as follows

Total Debt

Principal Interest Service

2010 53000 433628 486628
2011 61000 432817 493817
2012 61000 431450 492450
2013 106000 429543 535543

2014 2821000 376135 3197135
Thereafter 5.700.620 1.219.830 6.920.450

Totals 8.802.620 12.126.023
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

As of December 31 2009 the Company had received advances of $577980 related to the Series

bond with the remaining balance of $880540 reported as unadvanced bond proceeds in the balance

sheet The Series bond proceeds are to be used for specific capital project and are not available

for operations Funds can be drawn when progress billings are received from the projects

contractor As of December 31 2008 the Company had received advances of $569735 related to

the Series bond with the remaining balance of $888785 reported as unadvanced bond proceeds

Unadvanced bond proceeds are held by the financing institution Interest is charged on advanced and

unadvanced bond proceeds and repayment is required as ifall amounts have been advanced

Substantially all of the Companys water utility plant is subject to the lien of the mortgage bond

indentures

In addition under the terms of these indentures certain restrictions are placed on the payment of

dividends and the issuance of additional debt At December 3.1 2009 and 2008 unrestricted

reinvested earnings amounted to approximately $572000 and $602000 respectively as calculated

in accordance with the indentures

Obligation Under Capital Leases

The Company leases vehicles under capital leases Included under water utility plant are the

following amounts applicable to those leases as of December 31

2009 2008

Vehicles 148504 148504

Less accumulated depreciation 76042 52.543

72462 9596l

Obligations under capital leases consist of

2009 2008

7.79% lease payable to Farm Credit Leasing due in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1118 through

December2012 41826 51571

7.09% lease payable to Farm Credit Leasing due in monthly

installments for principal and interest of $882 through

October2014 46377 53.400

88203 104971

Less current portion 18068 16.767

Obligation under capital leases excluding current portion 70135 88.204
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BIDDEFORJ SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Requirements for the repayment of the capital leases at December 31 2009 are

Total Interest Principal

2010 23998 5930 18068

2011 23999 4530 19469

2012 23998 3018 20980

2013 18247 1314 16933

2014 13256 503 12.753

103.498 15295 88203

Line of Credit

The Company has $2250000 unsecured line of credit The line expires on June 30 2010

Amounts outstanding were $1.674127 and $1432071 at December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively Management expects to renew this line of credit through June 2011

The interest charged on the line is variable rate of interest of prime less 1% 2.25% at

December 31 2009 As part of the unsecured line of credit agreement management can fix the

interest rate on portion of the outstanding balance for 90 days at the current LIBOR rate plus

1.85% On December 2009 the Company fixed $1500000 of the outstanding balance at 2.11%

As of December 31 2009 the Company had $1499560 of the fixed portion remaining with the

fixed rate expiring on March 2010 at which time the balance returns to the variable interest rate

Income Taxes

Income tax expense amounted to $137720 in 2009 and $141015 in 2008 The actual tax expense

differs from the expected tax expense as follows

2009 2008

Federal income tax rate 34.0 34.0

State tax net of federal benefit 5.3 5.4

Federal investment tax credit 1.3 1.4
Other 3.3 0.9

Effective income tax rate 34.7 37.1
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

The components of income tax expense benefit are as follows

2009 2008

Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total

Federal 28660 140823 112163 32460 82297 114757

State 7786 38488 30702 24488 6915 31403

Amortization of federal

investment tax credits 5145 5145 5.145 5145

Totals 36446J 174166 137720 56.948 84067 141.015

The investment tax credit carried at $128608 and $133753 at December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively is being amortized through 2034

Income tax expense is included in the statements of income as follows

2009 2008

Operating expense 98820 100215

Non-operating expense 38900 40.800

Total income tax expense 137720 141.015

Deferred income taxes are included in the balance sheets as follows

2009 2008

Deferred tax asset other comprehensive loss pension 502410 566820
Deferred federal and state taxes 2.761.253 2581942

Net deferred income taxes 2258843 2015.122
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

The tax effects of all temporary differences that give rise to the net deferred tax liability at

December 31 are as follows

2008

Depreciation contributions in aid of construction

and customer advances for construction 2401977 2578911

Deferred debits 23400 21743
Reserve for bad debts 15000 32000
Pension asset 502410 566820
Pension 168000 62200

Installment sale 54000 80950

Other 128876 86376

Net deferred income taxes 2258843 20 15122

Employment Agreement

The Company has an employment agreement through 2010 with an executive officer The

agreement provides for minimum salaries and for severance payments under certain circumstances

10 Pension Plan

The Company has trusteed noncontributory defined benefit pension plan covering all eligible

employees over 21 years of age with over one year of continuous service The Companys policy is

to contribute annually at least the amount calculated as the net periodic pension expense

Information regarding the pension plan for 2009 and 2008 is as follows

2009 2008

Change in benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year 2960151 2480657
Service cost 91236 79260
Interest cost 174372 163848

Actuarial loss 83163 341963

Annuity payments 107500 105.577

Projected benefit obligation at end of year 3.201.422 2.960.151

16



BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

2009 2008

Change in plan assets

Market value of assets at beginning of year 1879280 2527749

Actual return on plan assets 426307 672892
Employer contributions 130000 130000

Annuity payments 107.500 105577

Market value of assets at end of year 2328087 1879280

Funded status 873335 1080.871

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of

Accrued pension costs 873335 1080871
Accumulated other comprehensive loss gross 1268713 1431357

Components of net periodic pension expense
Service cost 91236 79260

Interest cost 174372 163848

Expected return on assets 233088 228448
Amortization of unrecognized loss 40236

Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 12352 16188

Net periodic pension expense 85108 30848

Amounts not yet reflected in pension benefit costs and

included in accumulated other comprehensive loss

Prior service cost 2986 15338
Net loss 1265727 1416.019

Total accumulated other comprehensive income gross 1268713 1.431357

In 2010 $20980 of the amount in accumulated other comprehensive loss is expected to be

recognized as component of net periodic pension expense This amount is made up of

amortization of unrecognized loss of $63844 and amortization of unrecognized past service liability

of $42864
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

The accumulated benefit obligation was $2707439 and $2563621 as of December 31 2009 and

2008 respectively

2008

Weighted-average assumptions to determine benefit

obligations at December 31

Discount rate 6.13 6.00

Rate of compensation increase 3.25 3.25

Weighted-average assumptions to determine net periodic

pension expense for the years ended at December 31

Discount rate 6.00 6.75

Expected long-term return on plan assets 9.00 9.00

Rate of compensation increase 3.25 4.00

The long-term rate-of-return on assets assumption is set based on historical returns earned by

equities and fixed income securities adjusted to reflect expectations of future returns as applied to

the plans actual target allocation of asset classes Equities and fixed income securities are assumed

O/ 1/ cAl A11 _11_
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long-term inflation rate is projected to be 3% When these overall return expectations are applied to

the plans target allocation the result is an expected return of 8% to 10%

Estimated future benefits

Expected future benefit payments are

2010 112937

2011 119863

2012 130758

2013 150243

2014 174227

2015 2019 1049521

18



BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Plan Assets

The Companys pension plan weighted-average asset allocations by asset category are as follows

Plan Assets

at December 31

2009 2008

Cash 5% 4%
Equity 61 53

Debt 34 43

Total 100 100

The Companys investment objective is for balanced growth with target asset allocations ranging

from 55% to 65% equity and 35% to 45% fixed income Investments are guided based on moderate

risk tolerance and long-term time horizon

Cash Flow

Contributions to the pension plan for 2010 are expected to be $198000

Subsequent Event

Effective January 2010 the plan was amended to reduce the benefit formula

11 Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has salary reduction plan under the provisions of Section 401k of the Internal

Revenue Code The plan covers all full-time employees who have attained the age of 21 and who

have completed one full year of service with the Company Matching contributions to the plan by
the Company equal to 37.5% of the salary reduction elected by the employee up to maximum

contribution by the Company of $1000 were approximately $16400 and $19300 in 2009 and

2008 respectively
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

12 Fair Value

The Companys financial instruments not subject to FASB ASC 820 consist of cash and cash

equivalents short-term trade receivables and payables note receivable investments in non-traded

stock lines of credit capital leases and long-term debt The carrying value of all instruments

except the long-term debt approximates their fair value Based on borrowing rates currently

available to the Company for financial instruments with comparable duration the fair value of long-

term debt was approximately $8389000 and $7364000 as of December 31 2009 and 2008

respectively These estimates are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company could

realize in the current market and different methodologies may have material effect on the

estimated fair value amounts

FASB ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures defines fair value as the exchange

price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer liability an exit price in the principal

or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants on the measurement date ASC 820 also establishes fair value hierarchy which

requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable

inputs when measuring fair value The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to

measure fair value

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the

entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date

Level Significant other observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices
for

similar assets or liabilities quoted prices in markets that are not active and other inputs that are

observable or can be corroborated by observable market data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entitys own assumptions about the

assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and 2008

Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized below

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2009 Using

Quoted Prices In

Active Markets

for

Identical Assets

Total Level

Investments held by defined benefit pension plan

Cash and cash equivalents 118622 118622

Fixed Income Investment Grade 698655 698655

Fixed Income Global High Yield 88962 88962

Equities US Large Cap 813943 813943

Equities US Mid Cap 180956 180956

Equities US Small Cap 134223 134223

Equities International Developed 292726 292726

Total 2328087 2328087

Fair Value Measurements at December 31 2008 Using

Quoted Prices In

Active Markets

for

Identical Assets

Total Level

Assets

Investments held by defined benefit pension plan

1879280 1879280
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Balance Sheets

May 31 2010 and 2009

ASSETS

Unaudited

2010 2009

Assets

Water utility plant at cost 30154579 29300348

Less accumulated depreciation 11278781 10632690

Net water utility plant 18875798 18667658

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 36995 19199

Customer accounts receivable net of allowance of $35000 710585 735414

Note receivable current portion 108000 68000

Unbilled water revenue 228173 222888
Materials and supplies 219633 219738

Prepaid expenses 8425 11044

Unadvanced bond proceeds 880539 888785
Income taxes refundable 28256 23589

Total current assets 2220606 2188657

Other assets

Investments 161191 151741

Noncurrent customer accounts receivable 64336 56329
Unamortized bond issuance expense 125169 139733

Note receivable less current portion 68000 176000

Deferred tax asset pension 502410 566820
Other deferred debits 357842 300393

Total other assets 1278948 1391016

Total assets 22375352 22247331

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Unaudited

2010 2009

Capitalization

Stockholders equity

Common stock $25 par value authorized 160000 shares

issued and outstanding 106104 shares 2652600 2652600

Premiumon common stock 33057 33057

Capital stock expense 28699 28699
Reinvested earnings 2313618 2297921

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 766.303 864537

Total stockholders equity 4204273 4090342

Long-term debt excluding current portion 8704620 8757620

Accrued pension cost excluding current portion 695169 933833

Obligation under capital leases excluding current portion 62.200 80838

Total long-term liabilities 9461.989 9772291

Current liabilities

Line of credit 1633768 1581367

Current portion of long-term debt 53000 53000

Current portion of obligation under capital leases 18639 17298

Accounts payable 123663 118562

Accrued interest payable 144387 144588

Other accrued liabilities 330832 133807

Current portion of accrued pension cost 130000 150000

Total current liabilities 2434289 2198622

Deferred credits

Customers advances for construction 522649 628855

Unamortized investment tax credits 126464 131609

Deferred federal and state income taxes 2.761.253 2581942

Total deferred credits 3410366 3342406

Contributions in aid of construction 2864435 2843670

Total stockholders equity and liabilities 22.375.352 22247331

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Statements of Income

Five Months Ended May 31 2010 and 2009

Unaudited

2010 2009

Operating revenues

Water sales 1296721 1290489

Fire protection 369563 368312

Total operating revenues 1666284 1658801

Operating expenses

Purification 176597 190720

Pumping 205407 192985

Distribution 277178 341438

Customer accounting and collection 200106 207953

General and administrative 164481 127681

Depreciation and amortization 232471 224014

Taxes other than income taxes 142060 141990

Income taxes 39556 23346

Total operating expenses 1437856 1450127

Operating income 228428 208674

Nonoperating income expense

Interest income 967 736

Other income 53128 51484

Income taxes 7985 5254

Net nonoperating income 46.110 46966

Debt expenses

Interest expense 198069 198523

Amortization of bond issuance expense 6069 6069

Total debt expenses 204138 204592

Net income 70.400 51.048

Net income per common share 0.66 0.48

Weighted-average shares outstanding 106.104 106.104

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity

Five Months Ended May 31 2010 and 2009

Unaudited

Accumulated

Other Total

Reinvested Comprehensive Stockholders

Eamins

2331760 864537 4124181

Net Income

Dividends declared

Balances May 31 2009 2.652.600 33.057 28.699

51.048 51048

84.887 84887

2.297.921 864.537 402Q342

Balances December31 2009

Net Income

Dividends declared

Balances May 31 2010

2652600 33057 28699

13057 28699

2302634 766303 4193289

70.400 70400

59.416 59.416

2311618 4.204273

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Premium

on Capital

Common Common Stock

Siosk ok Expense

Balances December31 2008 2652600 33057 28699
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BIDDEFORD SACOWATER COMPANY

Statements of Cash Flows

Five Months Ended May 31 2010 and 2009

Unaudited

2010 2009

Cash flows from operating activities

Netincome 70400 51048

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided

by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 232470 224011

Amortization other 6068 6068

Patronage capital dividends 9450 9450
Amortization of investment tax credits 2144 2144
Decrease increase in

Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue 39199 21954
Materials and supplies 6361 12797
Prepaid expenses and other assets 30555 29039
Other deferred debits 874 41427
Income taxes refundable and payable 14684 20743

Increase decrease in

Accounts payable 71100 28275
Accrued liabilities 9344 24446

Accrued pension costs 48166 2962

Net cash provided by operating activities 408573 286178

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of water utility plant 191150 215984
Plant removal costs net of salvage 1429 585

Net cash used by investing activities 192579 216569

Cash flows from financing activities

Net borrowings payments on line of credit 40359 149296

Payments on capital leases 7364 6835
Payment of dividends 118836 169766
Principal payments on long-term debt 45000 45000
Proceeds from customers advances for construction 13350 22650
Refunds to customers 2073

Net cash used provided by financing activities 198209 1.728

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 17785 17881

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year 19210 1318

Cash and cash equivalents end of five months 36.995 19199

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for income taxes 35000 10000
Cash paid for interest net of capitalized interest 143801 147635

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

UNAUDITED

Note Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements for the months ended May 31 2010 and 2009 are

unaudited but reflect all adjustments consisting of normal recurring accruals which are

in the opinion of management necessary to present fairly the Companys financial

position results of operations changes in equity and cash flow for the periods stated

Because they cover interim periods the statements and related notes to the financial

statements do not include all disclosures and notes normally provided in annual financial

statements and should therefore be read in conjunction with the Companys audited

financial statements for the year ended December 31 2009 Operating results for interim

periods are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the entire

year For the purposes of the preparation of these financial statements in conformity with

U.S GAAP the Company has considered transactions and events occurring subsequent

to May 31 2010 through August 2010

Note Revenues

Standard charges for utility services to customers are recorded as revenue based upon

meter readings and tariffed rates as services are provided The majority of the

Companys revenues are based upon rates approved by the Maine Public Utilities

Commission Estimates of unbilled service revenues are recorded in the period the

services are provided The Companys revenues vary seasonally and are higher during

warmer weather when more water is used for outside watering purposes

Note Allocation of Overheads

The Company maintains number of overhead accounts in which costs are accumulated

to be allocated to expense accounts and capital projects over the course of the year

Unallocated balances remaining in these accounts at year end if any are applied to

current operation For interim reporting purposes these accounts have not been

completely allocated and retain any balance as balance sheet deferred debit If the

balances in these accounts were applied to current operation for interim reporting

variances from the results reported are not expected to be significant

Note Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of current assets and liabilities that are considered financial

instruments approximates their fair value as of the dates presented The carrying amount

and estimated fair value of the Companys long-term debt was approximately $8599411

and $8810620 at May 31 2009 and 2008 respectively The fair value of long-term debt



has been determined by discounting the future cash flows using current market interest

rates for similar financial instruments of the same duration use of different

methodologies may have material effect on the estimated fair value amounts The fair

value for long-term debt shown above does not purport to represent the amounts at which

those debt obligations would be settled

Note Pension Plan

The Company maintains non-contributory qualified defined benefit pension plan the

Plan that covers substantially all employees The net periodic benefit cost is based on

estimated values and an extensive use of assumptions about the discount rate expected

return on plan assets the rate of future compensation increases to be granted to the

Companys employees mortality and turnover The components of net periodic pension

cost were as follows

Five months ended May 31
2010 2009

Service cost $25613 $38015

Interest cost 69747 72655

Expected return on plan assets 102877 97120
Amortization of

Unrecognized Gain/Loss 26602 16765

Unrecognized Past Service Liability 17860 5147

Net periodic benefit cost 1225 35.462

The Companys funding policy is to contribute annual amounts that meet the

requirements for funding under Section 404 of the Internal Revenue Code and the

Pension Protection Act During the five months ended May 31 2010 and 2009 the

Company contributed $49391 and $32500 respectively into the Plan In addition the

Company expects to make cash contributions of $80000 during the remainder of 2010

Note Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There has been no guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board that

would have material impact on the Companys results of operations or financial

position that has become effective since January 2010
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SIGNATURES

The issuer has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized in the City of Biddeford State of Maine on September an 2010

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY

By___________
C.S Mansfield Jr Pres ent aAd surer

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated

eMM4w
C.S Mansfield Jr

David Briggs

Richard Hull III

Richard Hull III

Richard Hull III

nsJrBy
CS
As attorney-in-fact

9O

Director chief executive September 2010

officer and chief financial

officer

Director September 2010

Director September 2010

Director September 2010

Director SeptemberZ 2010



EXHIBIT 2.1

Articles of Incorporation as amended

7/



State of Maine

Department of the Secretary of State

the Secretary of State of Maine certify that according to the provisions of the

Constitution and Laws of the State of Maine the Department of the Secretary of State is the legal

custodian of the Great Seal of the State of Maine which is hereunto affixed and that the paper to which

this is attached is true copy from the records of this Department

In testimony whereof have caused the Great

Seal of the State of Maine to be hereunto affixed

Given under my hand at Augusta Maine this

ninth day of September 2010

MATTHEW DUNLAP

Secretary of State
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18810000 191 00001 846

FiLED 03011923 AMEN

CHAP 24

Chapter

An flfj flafl..r SLcty-ids .fl t5e cUt fl$ 5$itQ% L.ws of Xofl..n
Hndred on XthoLot R.tattnt to the eo4 Sat WiiLn Ctoaot

Be neoaed by the People of the Stile of AThine follows

St X4 Z19 64 authorizing Biddeferd rat Sne Water Co to

moe bonds repeakd Onipter shctysix of the private and spedal aws

of oMetceti hundred sad nineteen is haebv repealed

A.jeflt Jhtrrb flU

Authentication 1682-100 -2- Thu Sep 092010 1321 58



rrnSee Sec 24013

LTh OP MAINE

itncta oi AMINDMENT

tAmeadmeas by Shaneboldass

as Cat Casa

Pursuant to 131-A MRSA.ff$OS and $071 theunde

signed corposadaa adopts these Articles of

Amendment

POURTW If such amendment provides for exchange teclasslfication or cancellation of issued s2tasa the

manner in which this shall be effected is contained in Exhibit attathed if It is not sec faith

in the amendment lust

nvr If the amendment changes the number or par valises of authorized shares the amaber of shares

the corporation baa authority to issue thereafter is as follown

Class j.QS raise Value If Any

The aggregate par value of aU such shares of all classes and sericsj per vehs Is

__________
The total number of all such shares of all classes and series without par roliw is

_____________________ share

SDTHz Address of the registered office in Milnei 191 Elm Street

MUST BE COMPLETED FOR VOTE
QFSJMWIO

Icertify that have custody of the snirnttes thaw

ing the above action by the shareholders

Biddv4foçd Maine 04005

Dated
June 10 1993

4sd54jo5 to soy eesculndnrs at ctisssdy at nsirntsct chb docunenc MUSTSc ted by the Citric OR slsa PrSdcsn or tvcçesidnu
A/ED the art stSlssr rcfltafl Or other orncnc Ito t$sto dt5lgnatq as 0t001t4 eeDtr55t55 OfTiete OR 311 no tacit aencen

tnajanyor tM Stateon at sects dlrectOr designated by tnajocicy at directonc then Ic oCtet OR tel It no directors the holders at esek

otflemdaijnasW cbfloldrn at record or tanlarley at alt asistand tnsentitled to rote thereon OR clden stilt attest

tn Shuts

t101E This torso Thoald not be rated it any class ducts ii entitled to sort as teparsse class for any of tire assorts set nra In 550L ar

basse dra stricter so pror4c For rare necessary lot aieçsion sec

TOaM HO %taC-t Lea Si SLEwFT COMPLLTFJY FORMS it Scrcrsrr of Stain Starlet 101 Angesta Maine 33

188100000 1931721500005

FILED 0521 1993 AMEN

reePid.2

Ca

Far Un Sy lit Scanty at Scan

BLED

J51 21 l9.fldap
Dqnysnsnyofsser

tar Cow Win Aan
nyst tat

Lkpifly Scanty of Stilt

flgSIj All outstanding shares were entitled to vote on the following amendment as dass
SECOND amendment set out In Exhibit attAched was adopted by the shareholders Circle one

at meeting legally called and held on OR 10 93

by unanimous written consent on

ThRTh Shares outstanding nsf entitled to vote and share voted foe tad against said amendment sterc

96459

Number of Sharer OutstandIng NUMBER NUMBER
and Entitled to Vote Voted For Voted Against

0S

ttcmnadtysndmipcudel

Biddeford arid Sacn Watnz company

tHaeleotcoepoeato

By

sir
1stratratc

John Vi Whte Clerk

Irype or rlnc naste and eapadry

taisnassee

lypc pt pratt asset and capadsy

Authentication 1682-100 -3- ThuSepO92OlOl32158



Exhibit

section That the charter of the Biddeford and Saco

Water Company as codified in the Private

and Special Laws of Maine of 1883 180
10 is amended to read

Sect 10 Said corporation through vote

of its directors may issue from tine to
time its bonds notes or other evidences of

indebtedness for the acquisition of

property to be used for the purpose of

carrying out its corporate powers ii the

construction completion extension or
improvement of its facilities iii the

improvtaent or meintenance of its service
iv the payment of expenses of operation

the discharge or refanding of its

bonds motes or other evidences of

indebtedness vi reimbursement of its

treasury for money used for any of the

foregoing purposes end vii any other

lawful purpose and may secure the sante by
mortgage or deed of tnst on the franchises

or property of said corporation

Section That the charter of the Siddeford and Saco Water

Company as codified in the Private and special
laws of Mathe of 1889 312 and the

Private and Special Laws of Maine of 1903 24
are hereby repealed

Authentication 1682-100 -4- Thu Sep 092010 1321 58



188100000 1910000184830

FILED 04 03 1917 AMEN

Chapter 157
An Act AQthottrta ho Diaaofrye sue Saeo WaSte Cenposy to Theresa Its Canstal

Sc noW Ssesrttks Zn 015cr toeporsOonk

Be it csaetd by the People of the SIde of Main as follows

Ittcrflae of capital flsck suthorize4 may puachass ted bold securities he

other corporations proviao The iliddeford and Saco Water Company is

keithy authnriaesl to increase its capital stock two hundred thousand dol

lars for the purposes and in the manntr and subject to the restrictions pro
vided in sections thirty-seven and thirty-eight of chapter fitty-five of the

revised statutes for the regulation and control of public utilities and the

said company is hereby attthorieed to purchase and hold securities in other

corporations located and doing business in the cities of Biddeford and

Saco provided however the ptcrthaae of said sceunties shall first be ap
prcved by the public utilities commission and shall only be Inst with prof
its properly devotahls to reserves and only in such amounts as the public
utilities conunission shall approve Esid increase of stock tory be effected

by vote representing majority of the stock issue

aprons AprIl ins

Authentication 1682-100 -5- Thu Sep 092010 132158



18810000 1910000184641

FILED 0311 1887 AMEN

Vhapttt 244J

WKtnCçspIt7

Be it enaat by The imfe and Jknee nf EepraenWtita

in LepThlotun aesemlec2 tie follows

t3 Szct The aete md duings of the Biddeord att Seen

Water Company under their charter as nrnendcd1 in relation

to its orgiutization and in isSing its bonda end arousing

the asme by mortgage on its frenchisa am hereby retAiled

OOZItInDsd and made saUL

Sect ta Thte act shall take effect whoa approved

sonS aaot 107

Authentication 1682-100 -6- Thu Sep 092010 132158
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18810000 1910000184823

FILED 07091962 STCK

John W. White of South freeport in the County of Cunberland

and State of Halos hereby certify that an the duly elected and qualified

Clerk of 8100570Kb AND C0 WATER C0M1WZ Maine corporation and as such

Clerk have custody of the records of the meetings of stockholders of said

Crtrporation that as appears by the records of the meetings of said stockholders

at the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders duly and legally called end heLd

on June 14 1962 at which majority of the stock issued and outstanding

being quorum was represented and voting vote of thc record of which

the followLng is true copy had unanimous passage

votEd .ToJasiend Section of Article II as amended by inserting

before the words The authorized Capital Stock the werda

SOn and after August 1962 by striking out the words

p4 figures twenty thousand 20000 and Insetting in place

heteof the words and figures eighty thousand 80000 and

.y triking out the words and figures one hundred dollars

$l0000 and inserting in place thereof the words and

.fLtres twenty-five dollars $23.00 so that said Section
Br amended shall be as follows

fttion Authorised Capjtal Stock

On and after August 1962 the authorized

Capital Stock of the Ccsspany shall be two million

dollars $2000000 represented by eighty
thousand 80000 shares of Cuatt Stock of the

par value of twenty-five dollars $25.00 each
The Consort Stock shall be entitled to one vote

per share at each ueeting of the scockholders

July 1962

Water coupany

Authentication 1682-100 -7- Thu Sep 092010 132158
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Augusta uly.L 62
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188100001 19100001 84048

flIED 03121881 ARTI

flCO WATtS VOUPANL

Chapter 14 Ca ar 124

sfl stergcni ta lJate4$ ass site Wswccapny

lie it sanded by the Senate- end House of Representatives

in Legislature ns.ssm5 Ted as follows

Szcrr James Id Andrewa Edward Staples horace r-
Ford Alfred Goodwin it W.itanilntl William Hill George

Donnefl Samuel twsmhley Albert It Cleans it

IL Banks Hussey Thomas imley PIeI

Staples Miter Clark John Barby John Qnimby

George Owen William .1 Bradford Enneb Lowell with

their associates and sstceeason are hereby made corporation

by the adme of the Biddeford and Seeo Water Company for pnsenas

the purpose of conveying to and supplying the cities of

Biddeford and Sane ln YasIr county with pare and whole

sonis water snd aid corporation for said purposes zany

bold rent end personal estate necessary and convenient there

for eat exceeding in amanat two hundred and ifty thousand

doliirrs

Suer Said corporation is hereby anthoriacd for the

purposes aforesaid to take detain sad use the water of Ken-

nebunk pond or Sane river or either of thein in either or

all the towns of Lyman Hollis or eitr of fliddefonl and is

also authorized to erect maintain darns and reservoirs and

lay and maintain pipes and aqueducts necessary for the proper

aecuntulating conducting discharging distributing and dis

posing of Water and forming proper reservoirs thereof and

said corporation may take and hold nay lands necessary

therefor and may ercante through any lands where acres

sary for the
purposes of thu incorporstioss

Swcr Said corporation shall be held liable to pay all

damages that shall be sustained by arty persons by the taking

of any land or ether property or by æowsgØ or by erca

rating thràgls any land fbr the purpose of laying down pipes

end aqueducts buildi dams end reservoirs and also darn-

ages for say other injuries rnsultiog from said sets anti if

any person sustaining damage ss aforesaid and said corpora
tEen shall not mutually agree upon the sum to be paId

thorafor such person may cause his danssgna to be ascer

tained in the same manner and nader thu same conditions

restrictions end limitations as see by law preseribed in the

case of damages by the laying out of highways

.x.m.......V -.... --a-rr. ....

Authentication 1682-100 9- Thu Sep 092010 1321 58



128 EIDOflVtD AXO Sate WAISt ccasPA5r

OuAt 124 SECT SOld corporation is hereby authorized to lay

tdrsat down in and through the stints and ways in said towns of

tyrosa RoWs or thu cities of Biddeftrd and Snco all such

pipes aqueducts ansi fixtures as say he necessary for the

purposes of their isacorpoation under such reasonable restric

tions as the aldermen cad seketniess of said towns and cities

may impose Said corporation shall have no authority to

lay 2own in and through the strueta and ways in said city of

ej Saco any pipia aqeodacts or tkterer aulass and until thu

tnise said city of Saco by majority vote of its eitizansat any

legal meeting called for that purpose shall consent thereto

.arn And said corporation shall be responsible for all damages to

persons
sad property-occasioned by the use of such streets

and ways and shall further be liable to pay to said cities and

towns all sums recovered egniost said cities and towns for

dasaatcs from obstruction caused by said corporation and for

all expenses including reasonable counsel fees inr2arrsd in

defending such suits with isstereit- on the same

Srrrr Said corporation shill have power to cross any

private or public sewer or to chauge the direction tbereof

where necessary-ar the purposes of their incorporation bet

In such mauner as not to obstruct or impair the use tbereof

and said corporation shall be liable for any injury caused

thereby

Sac Said corporation shall cause surreys to be made

for the purpose of locating their dams reservoirs and pipes

and other tixteres and cause neanrste plans of auth location

to las filed in the office of the city clerk of said lliddeford

and aotiue of such locatioc shall lie given to all persons

affected thereby by pebliestien in some public newspaper in

said county and no entry shall be made upon say lads

except to make surveya until the expiration of ten days from

the said filing end publication

Sncr Any person who shall
willfully injure any of

cwZesss the property of said corporation or who shalt knowingly cor

ropt the waters of said Kenncbunlc pond sod Saco
river1 or

coy of their tributaries in any manner whatever or render

them isapssrt whether the stuns be frsien or not shall be

punished by tine not exceeding sine thousand dollars or by

imprasomalent not lea than one year and shall ha liable to said

corporation for three times the actuil damage to be reeoy

seed in any proper aetioes

Authentication 1682-100 10 Thu Sep 09 2010 132158



Sear The aipitel
stock of said corporation shall be

two hundred thousand doilan which may be increased to WeL
Pro hundred and lifty thousand dolLies by vote of said cor

poration and said stock shall be divided into shares of fifty

itad ôno hundred dollars each

$sx.t9 Either of the citia ot liiddetord and Seen are

hereby authorized to subscribe to the sleek of said corpora-

lion to co extent not exceeding two hundred and fitly thosisand

llers by majority vote at su legal meetings coiled for

that purpose and the mayor and
city councils or either of

them may take possession and complete said Water works

Steer 10 The first meeting of said corporation may be

ailed by written notice thereof signed by soy seven ccc

poratons herein named served npoe.eaeh corporstor by giving

him the same in hand or by leaving the same at his last usual

ptsee of nhode seven days before the time of meeting

Szcr IL This set ahaB take- effect when approved

Sflent Must 1551

Authentication 1682-100 -11 Thu Sep 092010132158



Ettraots from Stookhold era Meeting
of the

BIDTSP0IID AND SACO WATER COMPAfl

Bald on Wednesday April 1922 at iO oclock In the forenoon

The President then stated that this meeting wee called for the

purpose of Sucrose tug the authorized capItal stock of the Company

and authorizing the issue thereof

the following notion was submitted end stock vote called

for upon its passage

Ilmat inaamttch as the anount of the present oapitalstookof
the Company is insufficient for the purposes for which the

Company was organized the satiie be increased froinsix hand.red
thousand dollars 600000 divided into six thousand sooo
shares the par value of one hundred dollars floe each at
now fixed to one million dollars fl.000000 divided into
ten thousand 10000 shares of the par value of one hundred
dollars floe each upon the approval of the Public titili
ties Conmission of the State of Maine under and In accordance
with the provisiona of Section 39 of Chapter 55 of the Re
vised Statutes of Maine as amended

stock vote was taken upon tho passage of the foregoing

notion all those in fevor of its passage voting tea and all

opposed voting Usy with the following result

Whole number of votes oast 3985

Yeas cast 3985

taya east none

Thereupon it oppeartng that at least niaJorit of the capital

stock issued end outstanding had voted in favor of tho passage of

acid motion the same was declared carried end the capital stock

ef the corporation increased accordingly

Authentication 1682-100 12- Thu Sep09 2010 132158



2on

of the eapitnj stolt from 40COOO to O0000 which increase
has been duly rrede

Respectfully submitto

BIDBOP$ AND SACO WATBR 0OIPA1Y

hereby certify that the above votes are ttte

copy of the votes passed at tha Special Meeting of the
etockholers of the BidAeforö and Saco Water Cowpany held
it 2ortlau Ifalne 3uly 31 1917

BtD3EFOBD AND SAUD AR

Authenflcation 1682-100 13- Thu Sep 092010 1321 58
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18610000 1910000164842

FILED 0629 1983 AMEN

bipter

AattuenndC5xflnrsnn Lnhu raei b1Ity the EuM no4 SpassM tan
af eteqac bantaua4 anal nhby..thrn .eais ntneni aa5ee Ce
haaalrad sn4 efla an4 alseOnt Lswn ci Ca yne

bast4tcal aasl aibty-a.na ncjclaJ A.a ann ta innpaana iSa CCinIcri uS San

Wane

Be it enireled op the Senate and house Repveseneaffves

1v Legislature asseseNed as follows

Sccr Chapter one hundred and eighty of the private

and special laws of dbtaei bundxe4 and eighty-three is

hereby amended by adding alter the worC with uan

nter at the end of seethn one of add net the etords for

dnst0 and municipal pnrporca inciudin tIne antinguish

went of lives the supply of shipping end iiz nnz of mann

lactating eetabljehenents so that Mild sentk When amended
will road as follotvs

Sect Chapter one huadreti and twenty-thor of thfra

private and special hews- of eighteen imudi-ed and eighty-nun

is hereby amended by sttleirçont
all of said chapter alter

the word company in the eiglth urns and inserthig instead

thereof the following for the punpoee of eanreyleng to awl

supplying the towns of Lyman Dayton and Scartoro anti

the cities of ijiddeford and Since wth pore inter for domes

tic ad mnnicipnl purposes indiuding the ratiorjshtnent of

Gras the supply of shipping and the use of enannlfacturieg

eetnihlieInnents

Sacte This act shall take effect when arproreuL

Apjand AflEct
053
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Mbdmum Fee S35 See 1401 sit-f 15

DOMPS1IC
BUSINESS OflORATION flue tin 18810000 Pages

Fee Paid

STATE Of MAINE

ARIWLES ot.Mrn4T

DepatySeasiary State

.4Troe CEpyWbm Aued Zy S1pate

BIDDEORD AND SZ3cQc4ATER COMPANY
tItans of Cozporathee

Pursuant to 13-A MRSA 1805 and 501 the widers1gz corporation adopts these Ankles of Amendment

fiRST All outstanding shares were entitled to vote on the ollowlug amendment as class

SECONTh The amendment set out in Exhibit attached was SopS by the sharatioioers
JUtto l0 1999

CX one box only

181 at meeting legally called and held by unanimous written consent

Shares outstanding and entidedto vote and shares voted for and against said amendment wett

Number 01 Shares Outstanding NUMBER NUMBER
sadfmliled to Vote Votth For Voted Asahot

106104 69483 2236

FOURITh If such amendment provides for exchange reclassincationor cancellation of issued sharei the manner in which this

ahaB be effected is contained hi Exhibit anached if it is not set fork In the amendment itself

If the amendment changes the number or par values of authorized shares the mnnher of shares the corporation hat

authority to issue thereafter is as follows

Series It Ann Number of Shares Par Value Itt Arty

The aggregate par value of aft suck shares of all classes and series harfnnlae is $____________

The total number of all such shares of all classes and series rt4qtar value is titans

Authentication 1682-100 16- Thu Sep 092010 132158
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meadt nEth istered office oldieS adü SSSO of MIMe 181 Elm Street0

Biddeford NE 04005

DATED jnne 11 1399

amlztpcot

4Z4t_-

By

Wayne Sherman Clark
yflsniM

type ox new n4espsclty

NOTE This form shotiM not be used if any 4ass of shares is entitled to vote as separate class for any of be reasons set out in

4306 or because the articles so provide For vote necessary for adoption see 805

sms document frffl be signed by the Qg OR the President or vice.pretldent and the Seqdy or an assistain

Secretary or such other officer Use bylaws may designate as 2nd certifying officer OR if these are no such officers then

majority of the fljgnr or such directors as may be designated by majotiry of directoes then In office OR if there are no such

directors then the Bafflers or such of them as may be designated by the holdet qi record of pJ4.rf4vjç 4outstandmns abases

entifledto vote thereon OR the flols of all of the O4Jtstnf tints of the corporatiot

SUBMrr cogflETED fORMS Tth CORPORATE EXAMINING SEC11ON SECREAfl OP STATE
101 STAtE HOUSE SfltflON AUGUSTA ME 043334101

FORM NO MBC9 Rev 96 TEL 201 27-4195

Authentication 1682-100 17- Thu Sep 092010 132158

MUST SE COMPLETED POR I4flE

OF SEARRHOLDSRS

certify that have enstody of the minutes showing
the above action by the shareholders

-46W /4z-..---



EXHIBIT

PROPOSED AMEDMENT TO
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

VOTED That the Articles of Iticorporation of the Company are hereby amended by addirg

thereto new Section 15 to react in its entirety as follows

Sect iS AnprevaLofflusiness Conthinationsb

usiness Combinations with Non-Contot Persona

The affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of all shares of stock of the

Company entitled to vote in elections of Directors considered for thep of this Section 15

as one class shall be required the the adoption or authorization of Business Combination as

hereinafter defined with any other Person as hereinafter defined if as of the record date for the

determination of stockholders entitled to notice thereof and to vote thereon and as of the dare of

the stockholders meeting at which such vote is taken such other Person is not Control

Person as hereinafter deflned provided that such two-thirds voting requirement shall not be

applicable if

The Business Combination shall have been approved in advance by the

affirmative vote or written consent of Continuing Directors constituting majority of the

Directors then in office and

The Business Combination shall have received such approval if any as may
otherwise be required from stockholders

jgjnessCornbinatiens with Control Persons

The affirmative vote of the holders of at least ninety percent 90% of all shares of stock

of the Company entitlectto vote In elections of Directors considered for the purposes of this

Section 15 as one class shall be required for the adoption or authorization of a.Business

Combination with any other Person if as of the record date for the determination of stockholders

entitled to notice thereof and to vote thereon or as of the date of the stockholder meeting at which

such vote is to be taken such other Person is Control Persoz provided that such ninety percent

90% voting requirement shall not be applicable if

The cash or fair market value of other consideration to be received per share

by common stockholders of the Company in such Business Combination is not less than

thç highest per share price including brokerage commissions and/or soliciting dealers
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fees paid by such other Person in acquiring any of its holdings of the Companys

common shares and

After such other Person became Control Person and prior to the

consununation of such Business Combination there shall have been no reduction in

the raze of dividends payable on the Companys common shares except as necessary for

quarterly dividend payment riot to exceed twenty percent 20% of the net Souse of the

Company fbr the four flail consecutive fiscal quarters immediately preceding the

declaration date of such dividend or except as may have been approved by the

affirmative vote or written consent of Continuing Directors constituting tnmjority of the

Directors then in office such other Person shall not have acquired any newly issued

shares of stock directly or indirectly from the Company except icon conversion of

convertible securities acquired by it prior to becoming Control Person or as result of

apro rate stock dividend or stock split and such other Person shall not have acquired

any additional common shares of the Company or securities convertible into common

shares except as part the transaction which results in such other Person becoming

Control Person and

Such other Person shall not bave received the benefit directly or indirectly

except proportionately as stockholder of any loans advances guarantees pledges or

other financial assistance or tax credits provided by the Company and

proxy statement containing information equivalent to that requited by

Schedule 14A or any successor regulation of the Securities and Exchange Commission

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 regardless of whether the Company is then

subject to the proxy regulations under such Act shall have been mailed to stockholders

of the Company for the purpose of soliciting stockholder approval of such Business

Combination and shall contain at the front thereof in prominent placn any

recommendations as to the advisability or inadvisability of the Business Combination

which the Continuing Directors or av of them may choose to state and if deemed

advisable by majority of the Continuing Directors an opinion of reputable investment

banking finn as to the fairness or not of the terms of such Business Combination from

the point view of the stocltholders of the Company other than such other Person such
investment banking firm to be selected by majority of the Continuing Directors and to

be paid reasonable fee for their services by the Company and

Such other Person shall have provided notice to all of the Companys
stockholders of the commencement of any action or filing of any petition before the

Maine Public UtIlities Commission or any successor Commission or agency oldie State

of Maine seeking approval of the Business Combination prior to the commencement or

filing thereof and

The Business Combination shall have been approved or authorized by the

affirmative vote of the holders ofnot less than two-thirds of all shares of stock of the

Company entitled to vote in elections of Directors considered lbr the purpose of this

Section 15 as one class
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Definitions

As used inthisSection 15

The term Control Person shall mean Person that owns directly

indirectly or through chain of successive ownership or exercises voting control over

len percent 10% or more of the voting securities of the Company or ii any one of

group
of Persons that has an agreement arrangement or understanding whether or not in

writing for the purpose of owning or acquiring directly indirectly or through chain of

successive ownership ten percent 10% or more of the voting securities of the Company

or exercising voting control over ten percent iO% onnore of the voting securities of the

Company provided that Person shall not be deemed to exercise voting control over the

voting securities of the Company if that Person holds such voting control in good fitith

and not for the purpose of circumventing this Section 15 as an Underwriter or as an

agent bank broker nominee custodian or trustee for one or more beneficial owners of

the voting securities of the Compatty who do not individually own directly indirectly or

through chain of successive ownership ten percent 10% or more of the voting

securities of the Company or any other Person if the agreement arrangement or

understanding to vote securities of the Company arises solely from revocable proxy

given in response to proxy solicitation

The term Affiliated Interest shall mean an affiliated interest within the

meaning of 35-A MJLS.A 707iA as in effbcton January 1999

The term Person shall include any individual corporation or other entity

and any individual corporation or other entity that is an Affiliated Interest thereof

The term Business CombinatioC shall include any merger or

consolidation oft Company or any Subsidiary as hereinafter defined with or into any

other Person iiany sale lease exchange or other disposition in one transaction or

series of transactions of assets oft Company or any Subsidiary having an aggregate

market value equal to ten percent 10% or more oft aggregate market value or book

value determined in accordance with good accounting practices of all the assets

determined on consolidated basis of the Company or having an aggregate market

value equal to ten percent 10% or more of the aggregate market value of all outstanding

stock of the Company or representing ten percent 10% or more of the earning power or

income determined on consolidated basis of the Company provided that the making of

mortgage or pledge or bond indenture of or other security interest in all or any part of

the assets of the Company whether or not in the usual and regular course of business

shall not he Business Cotnbination iii the issuance or transfir by the Company or

Subsidiary in one transaction or series of transactions of any stock of the Company or

Subsidiary which has an aggregate market valite equal to five percent 5%or more of the

aggregate market value of all the outstanding stock of the Company except to an

Underwriter orby Subsidiary to the Company or pursuant to the exercise of warrants or

rights to purchase stock offered or dividend or distribution paid or made pro rata to all
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stockholders of the Company and iv any sale exchange or other disposition of

assets of any other Person to the Company or Subsidiary where the consideration to be

paid by the Company and Subsidiary consists of securities or any other assets except

assets having an aggregate fair market value of less than ten percent 10% of the

aggregate market value or book value determined in accordance with good accounting

practice of all assets determined on consolidated basis of the Company

The term Continuing Directo shall mean an individual who was member

of the Board of Directors of the Company as of May 41999 or whose nomination for

election to the Board of Directors was approved in advance by the affirmative vote or

written consent ofaniajority of the Continuing Directors then in office

For the purposes of subparagraph 81 of this Section 15 the term other

consideration to be received shall mean common shares of the Company retained by its

existing stockholders in the event of Business Combination with such other Person in

which the Company is the surviving coxporatioit

The term Subsidiary shall include all entities which are directly or indirectly

controlled by the Company and

The termWjite shall mean any Person engaged in business as an

underwriter or group of Persons engaged in business as underwriters to whom voting

securities of the Company are issued or transferred in faith in connection with

firmcommitment underwriting of an offering of the Companys voting securities and not

for the purpose of circumventing this Section 15

blerotetadon

majority of the Continuing Directors shall have the power to determine for the

purposes of this Section 15 on the basis of infbnnation known to them whether Person is

Contml Person or an Affiliated Interest the aggregate market value of outstanding stock of

the Company or Subsidiary the aggregate market value of any assets sold leased

exchanged mortgaged pledged transferred or otherwise disposed of by or to the Company or

Subsidiary the canting power or income of the Company or Subsidiazy or any assets

thereof whether or not Person is an Underwriter whether or not proxy statement

contains information equivalent 10 that required by Schedule 14A or any successor regulation

and whether an entity is Subsidiary Any such determination made by them shaH be

binding upon the Company and all stockholders

Amendment

No amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company shall amend alter

change or repeal any of the provisions of this Section 15 unless the amendment effecting such

amendment alteration change or repeal shall receive the affirmative vote or consent of the

holders of ninety percent 90% of all outstanding voting shares of the Company considered for

the purposes oldie Section 15 as onó class provided that this paragraph shall not apply to and
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such ninety percent 90% vote or consent shall not be required fbr any amentnent alteration

change or repeal recommended the stockholders by the aftinnative vote or written consent of

Continuing Directors constituting majority of the Directors then in oftlce

Other Obligations

Nothing contained in this Section 15 shall be construed to rôlieve any Person front any

fiduciary or other obligation imposed by law
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18510000 1910000184640

FtLED 02051889 AMEN

Cnaat2
chtIpter3I2-

nS4s 1t i4ms Cre Won QsmMy tinsc4 nt.tuS

Be if stwcted ly Me ncte and lease iRtrnentaUecs
Lu Lesta4ure esseshkd as felloWs

Sact The iliddefbrd end Ssco Water Company is

MOm hereby sutbesired end empeweted to issue its bonds for the

5ªty payment of its debra ned fur the further construction and

hnwovement of its works for scab niaount and upon sorb

sets tio it denas expedient net to exceed the

sara of ens hnncbed thousend dollars in eddlet ts the

amount of its present bonded debtm and to secure the earns

by mortgage or deed of trust of its franchises sad praperty

5m3mbom- Sser Said company is hereby anthurizeti erd emZ7 powered to mike ndditioaal contracts with any city or town

threegh which its pipes may be Initir for the supply of water

for the ozlinguisbtnent of fire and other purphees

ceuw Sxcr Nnthin in this act shaLt he construed to impair

ttszsaad the contracts already made ante the caere of Sian end Betide-

ford dated Janasry three eighteen bendred end eighty4ier

and the said contracts are hereby authorized estifled coo

Lined and made eslid as to sit the pnMsions thereof

AsrrmtsS ranMy rue
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18810000 ioW000l4828

FILED 03191919 AMEN1

Chapter 66

ax Ace to AgJwrla tS Th tarS Water raeanr Ca scm atm4s tn
Rertzt5ntr aud Other flrpccccs

Re it eusctcd by Me Pea pin of ike Stole of MaIne na follows

Ste fisisd Issue of oooo authorized purposes The Biddeford

Saco Water Company is hereby anthtsrized and effipowered to issue its

bonds for refunding its outstanding bonds sad the outstanding bonds of

the Old Orchard Water Company and for the further intprovenient and

extension of itt plant in zmn not exceeding seven hmsdred and fifty thou

sand dollars for time not exceedhig thirty years and upon such rates of

interest te said company may drean expedient and tile public ntilities cons

nnsaion approves and may secure the same by mortgage of rIte franchises

and property of the said corporation for the purposes and in the manner

and
ssthject to the eeaºriceiona provided in sections thirty-seven and thirty-

eight of chapter flfty-five
of the revised statutes as amended fast the reg

ulation and control of public utilities

Sec Prior actn not affected Nothing herein contained is intaoded

to repeal or shall he oonstrur4 as repealing the mImic or any part of any

exiatieg statute and all the rights and duties herein mentioned alsall be

exercised and performed in accordance with all the applicable provisions

of chapter fifty-five of the reviaed statutes and acts atnendatory thereof

or additional thereto

Apprrrsd Mar05 It 150
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1881 0000 1910000184825

FILED 02101937 AMEN

Extract fron Minutes of Directors

Meetittg of the B1DPORD SAOC

WAThB CCWANY duly called and held

at Portland t8 mc on Thursday
rsbrnary 19fl at 300 oclock
tu the afternoon at which quorum

was present and acted throufthout

Qn rnotIn duly ide and seconded it 485 unartimöusly

VOflD To change the place of the rincipfl ff ice

of the BIImEFORD SC0 WAT3R CiLiYrfrom

Portland 1iae to Biddetofl Maine

true copy

Saco Water 0openy
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Item Fee $35 See E401 sub4l$

ToUkirm If such amendment provides for exchenge redsasificadon or cancellation of lssuetisharà the manner In which this

shall be effected is contained in Exblbk attached If It Is nor set forth in the amendment talL

P7YFt Uths amendment changes the nwtheror par values of authorized shares the nnmber of shares the corporation has

authorIty to Issue thereafter is as follows

Cisa Series fltAnv NumlntofShzn Par VtuItMvl

notwrrIc
BUSINESS CORFORXUON

STATE OF MAINE

AItTEUS OFAMENDMENT

Sbarçhold2rs oIng tOne Chase

BIDDEFORD MW .SACQ..WATER COMPMZ

flie tie 10010000 Pages
Fee Paid 25
0CM 1991fl11000022 CHUG

21JUPt-99

UT5tth7

Tnt CipyWbnt AtkSd Ig atn

Deputy Seaeiary of SateNanc Coporifioc

Pursuant to 13-A MRSA ff805 aS 807 the undeedgned corporatIon adopts these Ankles of Ameadasese

FIRST All outstanding shares were entitled to vote on the following amendment asi class

SECOND The amendment set out in Exhibit attached was adopted by sw June 10 1999

one box only

at meeting legally
cAlled and held by unanirtous written consent

mmm SbSTS outstanding and entitled vote met sirs vuted for and against said amendment were

Number of Shares Outstanding NUMBER NUMBER
andtftled an Vote VetS For Xflnlnat

106104 69499 2224

The aggregate par valise of all such shares etch dases and serIes ftaifrtqoarvclue laS______________

The total number of all such shares of all dat arid sales wMhn4 par value Is shares
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Sn The address of tbuegister4 office of tecorporalion inthe azeof Maine
1131 Elm Street

ai4deford ME 0.4005

niet clç star aW dp cat

DATED June 17 1999 By çk/tY4i

Wayne Sherman Clerk

wtdsaatx sat apsckfl

Ppe ar rat act

NOTE This form should cot be used Wary class otsbarn Is entitled to vote as sepszn class for any of the reasons set out in

806 or because the articles so provide For vote necessary for adoption see 805

ThJs document MUEZ be ggned by the cisk OR the Preddytit or vicepresldent aM the or sn assistaIn

secretarj or such other officer as the bylaws may designare as 2nd
certigylng officer ORS if there we no such officers then

majority of the Directors or such directors as may be designarariby tx4orfty of directors then In att OR If there are no such

directon then the o1dem or sreof themes may be designated by ththOIderSOt rerord eta tsiorftv of all outflaM1aasbar

tinkled to veto thereon OR the Holders eLsE aft ouulud1nt shares of the corporatiot

SURW COMPLflU fORMS itt CORPORATE EflMININ SECTION SECZtTARY OF STATE
101 STATE ROV SVATIOIt AUGUSTA ME 043334101

POEM NO MBCAr9 Rev 96 TEL 107 17-405
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EXHIBIT

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

VOTED That the provisions of The Articles of Incorporation of the Company added by

filing made with the Secretary of State of the State of Maine on March 30 1984

are hereby rescinded and deleted in their entirety

FURTHER
VOTED That the Articles of Incorporation of the Company are hereby amended by adding

thereto new Section 14 to read in its entirety as ibilows

Sect 14 Board of Directors The Board of Directors shall consist of not less

than five nonnore than nine directors the number of Directors to be fixed from

time to time by vote of the Directors or 1w the affirmative vote of at least two-

thirds of the outstanding shares of the Company entitled to vote for the election of

Directors

Directors must be and remain stockholders except that stockholder director or

officer of another entity which owns stock of this Company and has tight to

vote thereon may be director

At the 1999 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the Dfrectors shall be divided into

thrce classes as nearly equal in number as possible with the term of office of

Class Ito expire at the 2000 Annual Meeting of Stockholders the term of office

of Class II to expire at the 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders and the term of

office of Class III to expire at the 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders with the

Directors in inch class to hold office until their respective successors are duly

elected and qualified At each Annual Meeting of Stockholders after 1999

Directors elected to succeed those Directors whose terms expire tall be elected

fbi term of office to expire at the third succeeding Annual Minting of

Stockholders after their election

In addition to any vote required 1w law orby any other provision of these Articles

of Incorporation the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the

outstanding shares of the Company entitled to vote for the election of Directors

shall be required for any action by the stockholders to amend or repeal this

Section 14 or to adopt amend or repeal any other provision of the Articles of

Incorporation or Bylaws of the Company governing the size of the Board the

number of Directors in each class of Directors the quorum or vote required to

elect or remove Directors or the procedures for nominating Directors or filling

any vacancy in the Board
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188100001 1910000184821

STATE OF MAINE

FILED 09 101974 STK
-- ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT

Amendment by Shareholders

Fee pal.hgcp Voting as One Class

01

_______________________Riddefori ned State Wn fur Corçpnn

The Space For Use list

Secretary of State

MAINE

ztmaaiv Of STATE

FILED

5efleetber F3t974

Totals 72i72 55249

1-Ut RI It stack am_ndtrcnt proctdes for surjsane reclasatfi sties or nelbu.-n of teeter thitres the nLannet

in width the sante sitU be effected it ctstttahted in Exhibit .it attached Steele if it it not tat forth in the amendment ieaet

itiflu If such atnenrimnast effects chaste in the number or par nines of authodad shares the num

that sst-h the orpetatton has author ty
in Issue sitar gsvrg Cf art to stdt ant ntlnani tan follone

Series Number Par Value

QfMfe Any

Tort Etcco 25.00

The aggtegate pat value of all stick shares of all classes end serIes kevin per valor itS 000O00.O0

iSle total ttuethee of all such shares of all danies and arrie.wftheurper artier is nonp _aharet
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Pursuant to 13A NIRSA SO5 and 501 the ersigised corporation adopts
then Articles of Amendment

FIRsT All outatandine shares of the corporation were entitled to sore on the foiowin ameardeasent at oats

sec

SECOND The ame.ndsnetam so the Articles of
lncotporstion

of the crteponatton set out in Ealirtit attached

hereto war adopted by tim tharaherldets thereof at naeetine legally
called and held on_eiSa._...

TIlIltD On said date the number of shares. outstanding antI entitled to vote cut rich amendment assd the

Soaker of states voted foe nd against raid am aersdteent tespretleely were at follows

Number ofshaeeaOts.tatauding

start let titled to Vote Veted For Voted Against

72h72 5521v9



8vELt tt
SLXTti The adesa of the rSatered office of the axporation In the State of Maine __________________

Biddefofl Maine Oiis3o

titlist city ted etli coite

Tiftv 7k

Legibly punt or type name

and capacity ot all signers

13-A 4IISA E04

ceetifr that have custody of the unintites

showinux ova action by the thaeeholden

ii ______
ececetart ca CisC iWet3i

30 be completed only if Exhibit or do not gjee this required irtfte.toatiein

The mane of the corporation rbonid be typed and the docament mote be signed by the Clark aJ by the

President ne vicspresideni and by the Secretary or an attitlant aecretary such oilier ofticer as the byiawe may
designate as aaond certifying officer or ii there are no to offtcen then by manly of the dre$o or by
.tnth direetesea at may be designated by anjoeity of directors then in office or if theee are no such direeto
then by the holders or tech of them as nay he ite4gnaied by the boldeta of record of majority of all ootataostitsg

shares emitted to vote thereon or SI by the holders of alt of the otatatandingsharea of the cerporalilon

FORM NO MBCAr9
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Ins excerpt of record of stockholdnrs sneting

Biddeford Saco Water Company

The oiJ.owlng is true excerpt of the records of seettag of the stockholders

of Biddeford Saoo Water Ccspany duly called end held on June 13 197b at vhioh

meeting quorum 103 present

Pursuant to resolution of the Board of Directors the following votes were

unanimously passed

VOTRD To amend Article Section of the Bylaws to read as follows

On and after June 13 197k the authorized Capita stock of the

Conpeny shall be four azillion doliara$k000 .OOörepreaented by

one hundred sixty thontand l000 shares of treason Stock of

the par value of twenty five toilers each The Cossnon Stock

shall be entitled to one vote per share at each iteting of the

Stockholders

VCfIED To authorize en direct the President cr4 Clerk on behalf of the

corporation to prepare and forward to the Secretary of State

the necessary Articles of Amendment to effectuate the above

smendseat to execute any other zteceeaary dccu.veats sad to

act in the premises on behalf of the oorporation

True excerpt of record

lNESt

cL.4iteclerr
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18810000D 1910000184818

FILED 03 30 1984 BYLW

BLECTIO OF NRBGTORS

The stockholders shall annually elect by ba1lot hoard of seven

directors Directors so elected shall continue in office until

the next annual nesting and until their successors are elected end

qualified Directors must be and reirain stockholders eacept that

member of another corporation which ostis stock of this Company and

has right to vote thereon may be director Any vacancy or

vacsnctes in the Board of Directors arising frcai any cause may be

filled by the remaining Directors until the neat election of Directors

by the stockholders

hiddeford cad Sect Water Company

181 tim Strect

Btddeford Tame 04005

March 23 1984

Cooy of bylaws relating to number of directors elected annually in

effect as of 12/31/71

ATTESt

harry Wooster Prefldaat
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Chapter The
is senai ekspe bn5na see twnty4se at As inte Speawa. stgbknben4n4 sat sa .ntUl4 ha An ic

IS 3W44 nS Ssoa Wfly Coiapny

Be enacted ôst the nate and llàue of Rmuaup
249 4U1TC aseeUaJ as fotlowat

Sacr
Chapter one hundred and twenty-font at the

pdnta and special laws of eighteen hundred and eigbtyone
Is hereby amended by strikieg out all of add chapter after

the word conpszuy in the eighth line end ineerting insted
thereof the following the purpose of conveying to
and supplying the towns of Lyman Thiytoa end Searbarct
ad the cities of biddeford end hco with pore water
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Sasar Said corporation the said purposes may hold 2J9
real and personal estate necessary and convenient therefor

not exceeding in amount thur hundred thousand douses

Szcr SaId eorposatLon is hereby authorized for the

purposes aforesai4 to take detain and use the water of Ecu
nebunk pond Swain pond or Sawi RIver or eitlìor of threat

arid all streams tributary thereto in either or all the towns of

Lyman Bulbs Dayton Eemtebnnkport Buxton or clUes of

Biddeford end Saco and is also sutherland to erect maintain

dams and reservoirs nail Icy down and maintain pipes and

aquedocts necessary brIbe proper aeoumuhatingeondnetiug

disoburging distributing nod disposing of truter and funning

proper reservoirs thereof sod said corporation may tske and

hold by porobose or utherwise soy lands or read estate

necessary tharethr and may excavate through any lands

where necessary for the purposes of this incorporation

Sm Said corporation shall be held bible to pay all

daspagea that shalt he sertahied by any persons by the takhig

of any land or other property or ny fiuwuge or by ereavat

lug through any laid fbr thi purpose of laying down pipes

snd aqueducts building dents tied reservoirs and also daw

ages for any other injeriss resulting from said acts and if

soy penon sustatoing damage as aforesaid awl saiçd corpora

lien shall oct mutually pee open the aim là be paid there-

for such person may cause his damages to be ascertained in

the same manner and under the anne conditions restrictions

and limitations es are by law prescribed in the ease of

damages by the laying oat of railroads

Sea- The capital stock of said corporation shall be

two hundred thousand dollars which may be increased to

four hundred thousand dollare by vole of said corporation

and said stock shall be divided into shares of ooe hundred

dollars each

Sxcr Said corporation is hereby authorized to lay

down ia sad through the streets and ways in said towns of

Lyrano Bollis Dayton and Scarboro sad the cities of Biddo

ford and Sevo end to take up replace and repair alt etch

pipes aqueducts ned lirturas is may be necessary for the

purposes of their lacorpotation under seth reasonable re

strictions as the mayor and aldermen of said cities sad sslect

men of said towns may impose And said corporation shall
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Cusp 180 be responsible the all damages to persona
and property

occasioned by the use of ant streets an ways and shell

further be liable th pay to mid cities and towns all sums to

covered against salt Sties and towns fry damages from ob
etruction caused by said corporation and the all expenses

indeding reasonable counsel fees incurred in defending saab

suits tith interest en the aime

Suer Said corporation in hereby euthorised to snake

contracts with the United State4 and with corporations and

inhabitants of titles end towns throaglt which the pipes of

eonsptuq may be or shall hereafter be located for the

purposes of supplying water as contemplated by said act end

any Sty towtt in which the pipes of this corporation shell

be laid are hereby authorized by its city courses or select

men to enter into contract with said compeny for supply of

watt end for such exemption feces public burden as the

towns cud cities herein named end said company The agreet

which when made shall be legal end binding upon all parties

thereto

Seer Said corpoentirus shall hare power to cross any

pSate or public sewer or to change the direction thereof

wIser necessary for the purposes
of their incorporation bsstin

such osenner as not to obstruct or impair the use thereof and

said corpontion hIsall be liable for any hsjnry nosed thereby

whenever the company shall Icy down any pipes in any street

or meke any afterntfons or repairs upon its works in any

streets it- shalt cause the some to be done wIth as little oh
struetno to public travel as niay be practicable and shall at

its own expense without unnecessary dab7 cause the earth

sad pavements ressuwed by it so be replaced in pauper con-

din-on

Snot Any person who shall wilfully injere any of the

property of said corporation ne who shall knowingly corrupt

the waters of said Kcssnebuak pond Swans pond Sac river

or any of their tributary streams In any manner whatever

or render them impnre whether site same be frozen or cot

or who shall shrine the caresses of deed animals or other

offensive master into said waters or who shall wilfully destroy

or injure any ilan reservoir equedset pipe5 hydrant or

other property held or owned by said norporstioc for the par-

posesufihia act shall be punished bysfine ssotexeeeding

Authentication 1682-100 36 Thu Sep09 2010 132158

/10



BtDDU3RD AnD Aa WAflW CU.flST 241

one thousand ate or by imprimuntent net less than one

year cod shall be liable to said corporation for three thues

the actual damage to be recovered in any proper action

Seor lO Said corporation utay issue its bonds for the

construction of its works upon such pies and thus as it may

deem expedient nec exceeding the sane font bundnd

thousand dollars and meters the sense by mortsj of the

rautbiec sad property ot aid company

Seer In amen the works of this corporation shall not

bare been put into actual operation within three years front

April oneeightcen hundred end sighty4bree the tights and

privilegea herein granted shall become null and void

Seer 12 The first meeting of said corporation may be

ailed by written notice therc4 signed by any seven cot

pointers herein named served upeit each corporator by giving

bins the muse in bend or by tearing the same at his Inst

usual place of abode seven days before the time of meeting

Suer 13 This act shall take afoot when sppmoved

Sà that said chapter as ambaided shell east as follows

Sect 14 James 11 Andrawe Edward Eisples cr.an

Horece Ford Mired Goodwin It Randall William Hill

George Donuell Samuel Twambley Albert

1erves Benke fluasey Thomas Haley IL

Field ii Staples Alter Clerk John Derby Joke

Qoimby George Owen William Bradford Enoch

Lowell wills theiraasoeistes and seeesesors axe hereby made

corporation by the aims of the Biddeford and Bare Water enweaa
Company for the purpose of eonveying to and snpplying the

towns of Lyman Dayton and arbor and the cities of

Biddetord and Bane with pure water

Seer. Said corporation foe said purposes may held

real nod pare000 estate necessary said convenient theretor

not exceeding in amount four hundred thousand dollars

Seer Said corporation Is hereby authorized for the Aetna

purposes afores.sid to lake detain said use the water of Ken
nebunk pond Swsas pond or Sate river or either of them
eud all streams tributary thereto in either or all the town of

Lyman UbBe Dayton Kenmebunkport Burton or cities of

Bidddord and Saco and liaise authorized to erect rnaiàtsià

dams and reserveila and lay down said maintain pipes and

aqueducts necessary fur thepropersecnznulating conducting
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Car 1.80
diadiorging distributing and disposing of water and forming

proper reservoirs thereof end saM corporation may take itad

bo1d by purchase or otherwise any kmds or real estate necas

sexy therefor and may ercarote throagla any lands where

necessary für tic purposes of this incorporation

Snot Said corpontilon shall be held liable to pay
all

aese
damages that shalt be sustained by any persons by the taking

of any land or other property or by ftowage or by ezra

rating through any lend for the purpose
of Laying down pipes

and aqaednots building dams and reservoirs and also dam

ages for any other injuries resulting from said acts and if

any person sustaining damage as aforesaid and said corpora-

lion shall not mutually agree upon the awn to be paid therefor

such person may muse his damages to be ascertained in the

same manner sudunder the awe conditions restrictions and

limitations as are by lot prescribed in the case of damages

by the laying out of railroads

Snot- The capital stock of corporation shall ho

two hundred thousand dollars which way be htcrcased to

four haSted thousand dollars by vote of said corporation

and said stock shall be dividsd into shares of rue bmidrcd

dollars each

Seer Said corporation is hereby authorized to lay

down in and tbronnh the streets and
ways in said towns of

Lyman Hollis Dayton sod Scarboro and the cities of Bid

deford sad Soco and to take ap replace and repair nil such

pipes aqueducts and fixtures as may be necessary for the

purposes of their incorporation under such reasonable re

strictions the mayor sad aldermen of said cities and

nnanssr selectmen of said towns may impose And said corporationE5
shell be reaponsihie for all damages to persons sad property

oceasioned by the use of such streets and ways and shaft

further be liable to pay to ash cities and towns all ewns

recovered sgoinst said cities and towas for damages from

obstruction caused by mid corporation nod for sit expenses

including reasonable counsel fees incurred in defending suck

salts with interest ass the same

Snot SaM corporation is hereby catburised te make

.eootrscts with the United States end with eorporations and

inhebitants of cities sad towns through which the pipes of

th eompsay may be ot shall hereafter he Ioastsd fur lbs
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purposes of supplying water sscontemptatad by said net Cast 180

and any city or town in which the pipes of this corporation

shill be laid are bÆiby authorited by its city council or

selectmen to enter Into contract with said compony for

supply of water and for such exemption from public burden

as the towns sad cities herein named sad said cornpnny may

agree which when made shall be
legiil

and binding upon all

parties thereto

Suer Said corporation shall have power to cross any

private or public sewer or to change the direction thorecd

where necessary for the parposea of their incorporation but

in such manner as not to chetrect or itapeir the use thereof

and said corporation shafl be liable for any injury caused

thereby whenever the company shalt lay dna any pipes In

any street or make any alterations or repairs upon its works

in any streets Itsbalt cause tie seine to be done with as little

obstroction to public trarel as easy he practicable and shall

at 1$ own expense without .nnneocasary day cause the

earth end parenzents removed by it to be replaced in proper

eonditio

Sate- 8c Any person who shall wilfelly iqjure any of the snase

property of said corporation or who shell knowingly corrept

the asters of aid Keunebenk peed Swans pond Sara river

or any of their tributary streams in say manner whatever

or render them impure whether the saint be froaen or not

or who shall throw the carcasses of dead noininla or other

etfcnsive matter into said waters or who shall wilfully

destroy or injure any dma reseeroir aqeeduct pipo hydrant

or other property held or owned said corporation for the

purposes of this set shell be punished by airs not exceed

Ing one ttroueand didlars or by imprisonment not less then

one year and shall be liable to said corporation for three

times the actual tags to be reeoveredin any proper

nation

Suer 10 Said corporation may issue its bonds for the snnas
construction of its works npon seth rates and linac ss it may
deem eapedleet not treading the sum of four hundred

thousand doPers sad secure the same by mortgage of the

frsaehiss and property at said cosnpeey

Stcr 11 In ease the works of this corporation shalt not

have bees pat lute netsi operation within three years toni
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Apri one eighteen bunted sad eighty-three the rights and

privileges herein granted shalt become null and void

Sact 12 The fiSt meeting of said corporation may be

ailed by written notice thereof signed by any seven cot

potatoes herein sensed served upon nab eerporator by

giving hint the sanse hi hand or by leaving the asme at his

bet nawil place of abode seven dsp before the time of

meeling

Sact IL This act ehelt take effect when approved

4nn4 htq 1555
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RlhtgFn $20.00

Pursuant to 13-A MRSA 4304 the undersigned arporztion executes and defrven for filing the following changes

The name and registered office of die clerk appeasing on the record In the Secretaxy of States oil lot

JOhn White

181 flut Street Biddeford ME 04005

eeet swe aist sip cede

SECOND The came and registered office of the successor new clerk who must be Maine resident

Wayne Sherman

181 Elm Street l3iddeforch tE 04OS
Qtyslcd location 5cat flPfl Boalctp as zip code

eating Sdnsa if ffsrt tent abonl

TRiED Upon change in clerk this must be completed

Such change was authorized by the board of directors and the power to nInke audi change is not

reserve to the shareholdeas by the articles Or the bylaws

Such change was aisthodred by the ttholders
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DATED June 17 1999 fly LL/F

Wayne Sherman Clark

type or na set npscity

ægsan

tjpeorpds tucr aadciy

TEE FOLLOWING SHALL BE COMPLETED ThE CLERK LTh.LflS THIS DOCUMENT IS ACCOMPANIED BY

FORM MBCA48A 4302-Aj

The undersigited hereby naps the appoinenent as desk fbr the above named tmestjc business corporation

oTJt_
DATED June 17 19

Wayne Sherman

tbJs docuntens frjQ be signed by the NiQtÆOR the PSnt or vice-president and the Secntarv or uc assislart

screlary or such other officer as the bylaws may designate as 2nd
certifying

officer OR if there arena such officers then

majority of the blndors or such directors as may be designated by majority of directors then in office OR if there are no such

directors then the Holders or such of them as may be designated by the ho1ders of record of moiwis of alt otstan4ipe sharp

entitled to vote thereon OR the Icdders of all of the.ontstandine shres of the corporation

COMPLETE FORMS TOt CORPORATE EXAMINING SECTION1 SECRETARY OF STATE
101 STAn HOESE STATION AUGUSTA ME 04333-0101

FORM NO MBC3 Rev 997 TEL 207 2814195
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FILED 02 13 1903 AMEN

CIOBI AND SAC W.tEk CO3l tiV- 43

Cirar 24

Chapter 24
.Ai Mt suttarlue else 5JIsdefard rn4 hem \Stfl Cmna.y Lu mdc

heeds ant Cue album nun.onu.

Re ctsarEed by thc Senate cnid ihnsse of Reprcsentatwts iu

Legithiture onnmilikd as foftots

Section The Diddeford and Saco Water Company is

hart authonraul and empowered to issue its bonds for refund- tPL
jug its mttstsnding bonds end for corporation purposes in sum

not exceeding three hundred and fifty thousand doflars for
hane mud

time miut
eteceeding twenty years and upon such rates of interest

as said company may deem expedient and may secure ills saint

by mortgage of the franchises and property of the said corpo-
Stt5Sfl7

Section The lbiddcford and Saco Water Company hereby Ltmelutitta

authorized to supply tile Old Orchard Water Company with

supply of water for fire and domestic purposes for the town of

Old Orchard and the ieihabitaemtf thereo and to guarantee
wItt

assume and pay aD outstanding bonds contracts obligations and

liabilities of the said Md Orchard Water Company ups such

terms as said companies have umutmtally agreed upon and any Uenpas

guarantei heretofore made is hereby declared legal and valid

Section The Biddelord and Saco Water Company is hereby Bsas.rwm.ud

authorteed to purchase hold own and enjcq the franchises

propatn shares of stock rights eaaenaestts privileges and

immunities of the said Old Orchard Water Company and the

said Old Orchard Water Cbntpanv is hereby authorized to sell
Gunner

transfer and convey its franchises property shares of stock jt4Ote5fld

rights easements privileges and immunities to the said Bidde

ford and Baco Water Company and upon such terms as said
emS

water companies have mutually agreed upon And upon such

purchase sate and transfer the said Etiddeford and Saco Water

Conspany ahab succeed to asset bass hold ansi enj all the

rights easements privileges anti inmnunities heretofore or here

after granted to said Old Orchard Water Company itt the sown

of Old Orcb4rd in tIme county of York and shall thereupon and

thereafter haveihe rIght andpower to supply said town of Old

Orchard and the inhabitants thereof with water for St and

domestic purposes and have alt she powers and privileges and

iuhject to all the ditties restrictions and liabilities by law incident .-anrteua

to such corporations and airy purchases heretofore made are

hereby confirmed and declared legal stud valid The proviakne

of this act shall in no way affect or impair any existing contract

or contracts between the town of Old Orchard and the Old kapsued

Orchard Water Company

Section This set shall take effect when approvet

Apraevsd Fsbsnry it

Authentication 1682-100 -43 Thu Sep 092010 132158
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SIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY

SiDosroaD SAcs OLD ORCHARO GRAND SEACH AND PINE POtNT

WflV PflflT

U8M MUTUAL SUILDING
JMfl 5$t 5ptIflNw PORTLAMS MAPlE

August 1917

Ron Frank 11 Ball Secretary of State
Augusta Maine

Dear Sir

The Biddefort and aco TTatssr Company ocrporMicn
organised under special act of the legislature of the State

of Maine chapter 124 las of 1881 and amended chapter 180
Laws of 1883 and further amended by special act passed 1911

at Special Meeting of the stockholders duly called and held

at.the office of the Cowpeny Room 205 120 Srcbange I3treet

Portland Maine on Thesdçy July 31 1fl7 at1OOoo1ock in
the forenoon at which quorum of the stockholders were
present duly and unanimously passed the following votes

VOD to accept the act passed by the legislature
of the State of Maine and approved April 1917 entitled An
Act authorizing the Biddeford and Saco listen Company to

increase Its Capital Stock and to Bold Securities in Other

orpe ron
VOTRD to inoreace the capital stool of this

corporationç200000 thus making total capital stock 4500000
instead of 240000O for corporation purposes and in the manner
and subject to tho restrictions provided in Sections 37 and

SB of Chapter 55 of the Revised Statutac or any acts
additional thereto or amendatory thereof icr regulation
and control of Public Utilities by the Public Utilities

Commission of Maine

VOTBI to authorize the Sireotors of this

corporatton to sell from timo to time any or all of the new
Increased capital stock but under the direction and for the

porpoaes prescribed by the Public Utilities Commission of

MaIne and to do all other acts necessary t3 carrying out the

purposes of the above vote

In accordance with the above votes the Company
wishes to file this notice with you of the authorized increase
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Upon notion duly made and seconded it tea unanimously

VOT That the Presiftent of this Company be and he

hereby is authorized inetructed and empowered to file written

notice of the foregoing proposed increase in the capital stock

of this Company with the Public Utilities Commission of the

State of Maine for its approval thereof and that he be further

authorized inetruoted end eowered to pay the fee of the State

of Maine upon acid increase

hereby certify that the above is true copy

-nr-t.cicc
Clerk
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FILED 1031 1958
STCK

John White of Freaport Maine hereby certify that

ear the duly elected and qualified Clerk Biddeford and Saco Water Cotapany

corporation incorporated and existing under the laws of the State of Maine

and located at Bidddord in the County of fork and said State and that at

Special Meeting cf the Stockholders of said Corporation held on the 31st day

of October 1958 at which more than majority of the stockholders were

present in person or represented by proxy constituting quortn and voting

vote of the record of which the following La true copy had unanimous

paaaage

Vz That the authorized capital stock of this corporation be increased

run One Million Dollars $1000000 divided into ten thousand 10000 shares

of the par value of One Hundred Dollars $100 each to Two MillioniDellas

fl000oOU consisting of tweac thousand 20000 shares of the par value of

0ne Hundred pollerp $100 each

October 31 1958 _______ ____________
ClerkJiddeford and Saco Water Conpny
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FIRST Nitose of derkt Jnhn W. Thito

SECOND Addicts of bones regtstered nflice......S5 Exchange Stre.f

Portland Ndine 04112

tcotut fly ad utr

Tituto Addre% oF cew stewd rfke..JjLfla..treet

local ally UaLl aol op eodc

FOLIRT1I NotIce ot the sttow ceaig Ui tcgkicsed Slice his been cciii to each oF the tidhiwing cospatrationc by

the iindcräDc4 at clerk of cacti

--

Bidde ford and Saco Water onany

Dated Febrilsn

tllhütiflel

if L.AlhlteJohn

ttYPptl

The desk of stosnustie corporation na be person retidetil in Maine The blistttese address oF the clerk and the

registered ofFice must he identical

FORM NO MBCA-3B
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foltowins chan5e of business adahess which it the ecgtseered office of each corpoosliern listed



18810000 1910000184819

FLED 10011975

CHApTER 21

AN ACT to Amend Charter of the Bitideford and sco Wate CompanyRe it engcfgj by the Peop of the State of Attthsa5 follows
PSZ eSSa aa as lat amended by fl$L $$ is further

amended tanad

Sec
COrpOratOJn cOrporate name James Andrew5 Edyarcj

Staples horace Ford Alfred Goodwin It
flandall William Hill GeeImfl Saj mamw Albert Cleaves ft

Banks
hiusaey Thomas Haley Fisk 1-1 Stapks Oliver

Clark John
Derby John Quinzby George Owen William Bradford Enth Lowell with tkefr assoc and SUtce are hereby made torpoestion by the

name of the Biddeford and Saco %Vater Company or the
purpose of

convey.

lag to and
supplying the Towns of Lyman Dayton and Scarboco aS the

Citk of Bkj4cfej and Sate and the Kennebaa Keanebkpop Water DMrIrt with pore water fo domestk and municia pUrposeS lncktdftg

the Cxtingujs of
tires the supply ol

shipping and the me of menu-
factoring estabjBhments

tfecti Ottahet 11975
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44g4jtE
as amended to

including 6/13/91

BY-LAWS 44 4/Q/
QE

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY
Biddeford1 Maine

ADOPTED AT SPECIAL STOCKHOLDERS MEETING
HELD ON JUNE 26 1941

ARTICLE

NAME LOCATION CORPORATE SEAL

Section The name of the Company is Biddeford and Saco
Water Company

Section The location and principal office of the

Company shall be in the city of Biddeford York County Maine at
such place as the Board of Directors may from time to time

designate and the Company shall have and maintain such other

offices as the Board of Directors may deem expedient

Section The Company shall have circular seal which
shall have inscribed thereon the name of the Company and the year
of its organization

ARTICLE II

CAPITAL STOCK

Section Authorized Capital Stock

On and after June 13 1974 the authorized capital Stock of

the Company shall be four million dollars $4000000 represented
by one hundred sixty thousand 160000 shares of C9mmon Stock of
the par value of twenty-five dollars $25 00 each The Common

Stock shall be entitled to one vote per share at each meeting of

the Stockholders

Section Stock Certificates

All certificates representing shares of Capital Stock shall be

signed by the President or any Vice President and the Treasurer

or Assistant Treasurer and shall have affixed thereto the

corporate seal

Seotion Transfer Agent and Registrar

The Board of Directors may appoint transfer agent and

register of transferS and if such transfer agent and registrar is

appointed all stock certificates shall be countersigned by such

transfer agent and by such registrar of transfers



as amended to

including 6/13/91

Section Transfer of Stock

Shares of Capital Stock shall be transferable only on the
books of the Company by the holder thereof in pórson or by
attorney duly authorized thereto in writing and upon the surrender
and cancellation of the Certificate therefor duly endorsed

Section Lost Mutilated or Destroyed Certificates

In case of the loss mutilation or destruction of any
certificate of stock the owner thereof may obtain new
Certificate in place thereof upon giving such proof of loss
mutilation or destruction and furnishing such security as the
Board of Directors may require

ARTICLE 111

MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Section Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of the Stockholders shall be held at two
oclock in the afternoon on the second Thursday of June of each
year at the Companys Office in Biddeford Maine unless otherwise
determined by the Directors for the election of Board of
Directors and Clerk to serve for the ensuing year and until their
successors are elected provided however that if other business
is to be transacted at said Annual Meeting the Notice of said
Annual Meeting shall specify the business to be transacted

Section Special Meetings of Stockholders

Special Meetings of the Stockholders may be called at any time
by order of the Board of Directors or the President or by
stockholders representing not less than one-fifth of the capital
stock then outstanding and entitled to vote Such meetings shall
be held at such place within the State of Maine as may be
designated by the Board of Directors

Section Notice of Stockholders Meetings

Notices of any annual or special meeting of stockholders shall
be mailed to each stockholder of record at least five days
prior to the meeting at his last known address as the same appears
on the stock books of the Company Such notice shall specify the
time and place of holding the meeting The notice of any special
meeting shall in addition state the object or objects for which

said meeting is called and no business except such as is specified
in said notice shall be transacted at any such special meeting



as amended to

including 6/13/91

section Quorum of Stockholders

Except as hereinafter specified the holders of one-third
1/3 of the stock of the Company issued and outstanding and
entitled to vote shall constitute quorum for the transaction of
business at any meeting but less number.may convene any meeting
and.may adjourn the same from time to time until quorum.shall
be present and no notice of such adjournment shall be necessary
When quorum is present at any meeting majority of the stock
represented thereat and entitled to vote shall decide any question
brought before said meeting. .. ..

Section Proxies and Voting

Each stockholder entitled to vote may vote in person or by
proxy in writing or by general power of attorney produced at the
meeting Such power of attorney shall be good until revoked. No
proxy shall be valid when granted more than six months before
the meeting the date of which shall.be named therein and it shall
not be valid after the final adjournment thereof

ARTICLE IV AMsic4i4 a/to/
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The ockhol er shal .annu 11 elect by ba lot Board of
en di ecto re ors so ected al cc tinu office

unt ne nnual eting unt th suc es rs ar
elec ed and qu ified cept th rector irs .ele te4
the after un 13 sh res from th ard ft Ia er
than day he she beco seventy an of
Direc mus be emain ckhold rs xcept met of
anot er rp ration hich ow stock of CO an an
rig to therso ay.be ect Any ac cy o.vac nc es
in Boar of Dir cto arsin fr any cau -may be. i.ed
th remainn Dire ors until the election of Directo by th
stockholders

ARTICLE

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section Regular Meetings of Directors

Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such

places and at such times as the Board may by vote determine and if

so determined no notice thereon need be given
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section special Meetings of the Board of Directors

Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any
time upon the call of the Clerk under the direction of the
President or any Vice President or any two Directors then in

office of which meeting reasonable notice in writing or otherwise
shall be given to each Director or sent to his residence of place
of business the time and place for holding the meeting to be
designated in the notice In any event twenty-four 24 hours
shall be reasonable notice

Unless otherwise indicated in the notice ..calling the meeting
any and all business may be transacted at any such special meeting

ifection Quorum of Board of Directors

majority of the Board of Directors shall constitute quorum
for the transaction of business but less number may convene and
adjourn any such meeting from time to time until quorum is

present of which adjournment no notice need be given All
questions coming before any meeting of the Board of Directors for
action shall be decided by majority vote of the Directors present
at such meeting

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS AND AGENTS

The Board of Directors shall choose from their own body or
otherwise as is deemed most expedient president and one or more
Vice Presidents of the company They shall choose from their own
body or otherwise as they see fit Treasurer and such other
officers and agents as they in their discretion consider
desirable and subject to the provisions of the By-Laws may fix
the authority and duties of such officers and agents All such
officers shall hold office until their successors are chosen and

duly qualified provided however that the Board of Directors
shall have power at any time with qr without cause to remove
from office any of such officers as well as any other agent or

employee of the Company whether appointed by said Board or
otherwise
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ARTICLE VII

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall have and may exercise all the
powers and authority granted by law to the Company except in such
matters as may be especially excepted by the By-Laws of the Company
or by the laws of the State of Maine and to do all lawful things
which in their opinion are expedient to be done in the.management
of the Company They shall have power to delegate from time to
time such authority aS they may deem necessary to any one or more
members of the board acting as committee in order that the
business of the Company may be transacted with promptness and
dispatch

Section President

The President shall preside at all meetings of the
stockholders He shall subject to the control of the Board of
Directors have general.supervision of the affairs of the Company
He Shall prescribe the duties and fix the compensation of all
agents and employees when not fixed by.the Board of Directors or by
these By-Laws and shall attend to such other business as the Board
of Directors may direct

section VicePresidents

Each Vice President shall have such powers and duties as the
Board of Directors or the President shall designate and in the
absence or disability of the President the ranking Vice President
shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the President

SeOtion Treasurer

The Treasurer shall receive and be responsible for all cash
notes and securities and valuable papers of the Company and is

authorized to give receipts for all moneys due and payable to the

company from whatever source and to endorse for deposit and

collection checks drafts and warrants in the name of the Company
All funds of the Company shall be deposited to the credit of the

Company in such banks and trust companies as the Board of Directors

may from time to time deØignate The Treasurer shall keep proper
books of account for the Company and such other books as the Board
of Directors may direct and shall pay out money as the business of

the Company may require taking proper vouchers He shall affix
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the seal of the company to such instruments as it is necessary and

proper to execute under seal and attest the same and discharge
such other duties as pertain to his office or as may be assigned to
him by the Board of Directors or by the President1

If there be an Assistant Treasurer he shall perform such
duties as may be assigned to him by the Board of Directors or by
the President and in the absence or disability of the Treasurer
and also at any time under the direction of the Treasurer shall
act with all the powers of the Treasurer

The Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer if any shall give and
other officers agents and employees of the Company may be required
by the Board of Directors to give at the expense of the Company
bonds in such amount and form with such sureties as the Board of
Directors may require and approve for the faithful discharge of
their respective offices and positions

Section Clerk

The Clerk shall be elected by the stockholders shall be
resident of the State of I1aine and shall be sworn to faithful

discharge of his duties Re shall record all the minutes of the

meetings of the stockholders in book to be kept for that purpose
He shall keep book containing true and complete list of all

stockholders their residences and the amount of stock held by
each and shall keep such other books and perform such other

duties as pertain to his office or are required by the By-Laws or

by statute or as may be assigned to him from time to time by the
Board of Directors or by the President In the absence or
disability of the Clerk the President or Vice President may
appoint Clerk pro tempore who shall be sworn

Section Compensation of Directors and Officers

Thecompensation of the Directors President Vice Presidents
Treasurer Assistant Treasurer and Clerk shall be fixed by the

Board of Directors

ARTICLE VIII

LOAN AND EXECUTION OF PAPERS

Section Loans

No loans shall be contracted or money borrowed in behalf of
the Company unless previously authorized by the Board of Directors
When such authorization has been given any officer or agent of the

Company thereunto duly authorized may effect loans and advance at

/r
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any time for the Company from any institution firm or individual
and for such loans and advances may make execute and deliver
promissory notes bonds or other evidences of indebtedness of the
Company and as security for thepayment of any and all loans
advances indebtedness and liabilities of the Company may pledge
hypothecate or transfer any and all stocks securities and other
personal property at any time owned by the Company if not
previously mortgaged pledged or hypothecated and to that end may
endorse assign and deliver the sane Such authority may be
general or confined to specific instances

Section Execution of Papers

All checks drafts and negotiable instruments shall be signed
by one of such officers of the Company or by such other person or
persons as the Board of Directors may direct

All contracts shall be signed by such officer or officers or
such other person as the Board of Directors may direct

Al deeds or other instruments of transfer of property shall
be executed in the name of the company by such officer or officers
as the Board of Directors may designate

ARTICLE IX

FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the company shall commence on the first day
of January and end on the last day of December of each year

ARTICLE

AMENDMENTS

These By-Laws may be amended altered or repealed at any
annual or special meeting of the stockholders if the notice of

such meeting contains notice of the proposed amendment alteration

repeal by the majority vote of the shares present or represented
at such meeting
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VOTED That Article IV of the Companys bylaws be amended to read in its entirety as

follows

ARTICLE IV

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors shall consist of not less than five nor more than nine directors the

number of Directors to be fixed from time to time by vote of the Directors or by the

affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of the Company entitled

to vote for the election of Directors Directors must be and remain shareholders except

that shareholder director or officer of another entity which owns stock of this Company
and has right to vote thereon may be director At the 1999 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders the Directors shall be divided into three classes as nearly equal in number

as possible with the term of office of Class Ito expire at the 2000 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders the term of office of Class II to expire at the 2001 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders and the term of office of Class III to expire at the 2002 Annual Meeting of

Shareholders with the Directors in each class to hold office until their respective

successors are duly elected and qualified At each Annual Meeting of Shareholders after

1999 Directors elected to succeed those Directors whose terms expire shall be elected for

term of office to expire at the third succeeding Annual Meeting of Shareholders after

their election except that any Director first elected to the Board after June 13 1991 shall

resign from the board no later than the day he or she becomes seventy-two years of age

P\KCJ\biddsaco\bylaw.ainend.wpd
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THIS SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE dated as of the 24th day of June in the year

2008 made and entered into by and between BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY
corporation duly incorporated and existing under the laws of the State of Maine having been

chartered by an Act of the Legislature of said State approved March 12 1881 hereinafter called

the Company and U.S BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION national banking association

organized and existing under the laws of the United States of America as Trustee hereinafter

called the Trustee

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS the Company is authorized by its Charter as heretofore amended and by

law to issue its bonds to be secured by mortgage or mortgages of its property and franchises to

such an amount as may be approved by the Public Utilities Commission of the State of Maine
and

WHEREAS the Company has heretofore executed to and with Union Safe Deposit and

Trust Company Trustee U.S Bank National Association is now Successor Trustee an

Indenture the Original Indenture bearing date of August 1923 and recorded among other

places in York County Maine Registry of Deeds in Book 727 Page providing therein for the

issue from time to time of its First and Refunding Mortgage Bonds in one or more series and by
which Original Indenture it has mortgaged and pledged its property therein described and

mentioned to secure the payment of bonds issued thereunder and has heretofore executed

Indentures supplemental to and amendatory of the Original Indenture dated as of February

1948 January 1951 June 1959 October 1967 January 1976 June 1979 May
1987 June 1993 September 11998 May 2002 and December 22 2005 respectively said

Original Indenture as so supplemented and amended hereinafter called the Indenture and

WHEREAS the Company has issued bonds pursuant to the terms of the Indenture of

which there is presently outstanding approximately $2250000 in principal amount of First

Mortgage Bonds 7.72% Series $2700000 in principal atnoimt of First Mortgage Bonds

6.45% Series $1521100 in principal amount of First Mortgage Bonds 2.40% Series and

$934000 in principal amount of First Mortgage Bonds 1.86% Series and

WHEREAS the Company under the terms of the Indenture and the indentures

supplemental thereto may issue bonds in addition to those initially issued thereunder if and

when the Company shall have made permanent improvements extensions or additions to or

about its plant or property after the date of the Original Indenture including any new or

additional property acquired or constructed but not including permanent improvements

extensions or additions acquired or constructed as substituted property except to the extent by

which the cost of such substituted property exceeds the cost when new of property for which

said new property is substituted upon compliance with the terms and conditions of the Indenture

including without limiting the generality of the foregoing provisions limiting the principal

amount of bonds which may be issued to not more than sixty-six and two-thirds per cent 66
%%of the actual cash cost or fair value whichever is less to the Company of additions to its

properties and requiring that the net earnings available for interest be at least twice interest

charges on all bonds outstanding for the purpose of reimbursing its treasury for moneys used for

-2- /33
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acquisition of property or the construction of facilities which moneys actually were expended

from income or from other moneys in its treasury not secured by or obtained from the issue of

stocks bonds notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the Company and

WHEREAS the Company has made sufficient additions to its properties of an actual

cash cost or fair value whichever is less and has net earnings of sufficient amount and has

complied with the terms of the Indenture aforesaid to entitle it to issue and have authenticated

$1458520 principal amount of its First Mortgage Bonds Series for the purposes aforesaid

and

WHEREAS the Company has entered into Loan Agreement dated as of June 24 2008

the Loan Agreement with the Maine Municipal Bond Bank the Bond Bank pursuant to

which the Bond Bank will lend up to $1458520 to the Company and the Company will issue its

Series bonds to evidence its obligation to repay such borrowing and

WHEREAS all things necessary to make said bonds of Series when duly executed by

the Company authenticated and delivered by the Trustee and issued by the Company valid

binding and legal obligations of the Company and to make this Supplemental Indenture valid

binding and legal instrument for the security of all bonds issued or to be issued under the

Indenture as hereby further supplemented and amended have been done and performed and

the issue of said bonds as in the Indenture and in this Supplemental Indenture provided has been

in all respects duly authorized

NOW THEREFORE in order to secure the payment of the principal and interest and

premium if any of all the Series bonds issued hereunder according to their tenor and effect in

addition to the security afforded by the Indenture and as additional security for said Series

bonds Series bonds Series bonds and Series bonds and the performance with respect to

said bonds and the holders thereof of all the covenants in said bonds and in the Indenture

contained and in consideration of the premises and of the sum of One Dollar to it paid by the

Trustee at or before the ensealing of these presents the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged

the Company has executed and delivered these presents and has granted bargained sold

aliened remised released conveyed warranted pledged assigned set over confirmed and

transferred and by these presents does grant bargain sell alien remise release convey warrant

pledge assign set over confirm and transfer unto the said U.S BANK NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION as Trustee and to its successors in said Trust and its and their assigns forever

for the uses and trusts hereby and in the Original Indenture dated August 1923 and

Supplemental Indentures dated as of February 1948 January 1951 June 1959 October

1967 January 1976 June 1979 May 1987 June 11993 September 1998 May
2002 and December 22 2005 established in confirmation of its conveyance to Union Safe

Deposit and Trust Company Trustee U.S Bank National Association Successor Trustee by the

Indenture all the properties therein described and conveyed and in addition thereto all the

franchises and property real and personal of the kind and character described in the Original

Indenture which it has acquired subsequent to August 1923 and are now owned and such as

shall hereafter be acquired other than as hereinafter excepted including particularly and without

restricting the generality of the foregoing grant the property set forth in Exhibit hereto

attached which property is hereby incorporated herein by reference and made part hereof
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TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all said properties real and personal mortgaged and

conveyed by the Company as aforesaid or intended so to be unto the Trustee and its successors

and assigns forever

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS upon the terms and trusts set forth in the Original

Indenture dated August 1923 said Supplemental Indentures dated as of February 1948

January 1951 June 1959 October 1967 January 1976 June 1979 May 1987

June 1993 September 1998 May 2002 and December 22 2005 and this Supplemental

Indenture for the equal and proportionate benefit and security of those who shall hold the bonds

and coupons issued and to be issued under the Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture or any

of them without preference of or to any of said bonds and coupons over any others thereof by

reason of priority
in time of issue maturity or negotiation thereof or otherwise howsoever

except to the extent to which the terms of said bonds heretofore presently and hereafter issued

may differ by virtue of the provisionà of the Indenture providing therefore

It is hereby covenanted declared and agreed by the Company and the Trustee that all the

Series bonds are to be issued certified and delivered and that the mortgaged property subject

hereto or to become subject hereto is to be held subject to the further covenants conditions uses

and trusts set forth in the Indenture and as in this Supplemental Indenture are hereinafter set

forth and the Company for itself and its successors does hereby covenant and agree to and with

the Trustee for the benefit of those who shall hold said bonds as follows

ARTICLE

Provisions with Respect to the Series Bonds

Section Form of Series Bond Pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture as

supplemented hereby there shall be issued thereunder bonds of series which is hereby created

and is designated First Mortgage Bonds Series The registered bonds of said series and the

certificate of authentication of the Trustee to be endorsed thereon shall be respectively

substantially in the following general forms

Form of Registered Bond of Series Without Coupons

No.P-___ $________
Date________

BIDDEFORD AND SACOWATER COMPANY

Incorporated under the laws of the State of Maine

FIRST MORTGAGE BOND Series

DUE APRIL 12028

/9
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BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY corporation of the State of Maine

hereinafter called the Company FOR VALUE RECEIVED hereby promises to pay to

________________ or registered assigns on April 2028 at the office of U.S BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION Trustee in Boston Massachusetts hereinafter together with its

successors referred to as the Trustee or at the principal office of any successor Trustee under

the Indenture the sum of DOLLARS or such lesser amount

as shall then be due and outstanding under the Loan Agreement referred to below and to pay

interest thereon at the rate of Two and Twenty Three Hundredths percent 2.23% per annum

based on 360-day year 30 day month at said office or in the manner provided in the Twelfth

Supplemental Indenture mentioned below semi-annually on the first days of April and October

in each year which interest runs from the most recent April or October as the case may be
to which interest has been paid preceding the date hereof unless the date hereof is April or

October to which interest has been paid in which case said interest runs from the date hereof

or unless the date hereof is prior to October 2008 in which case said interest runs from the date

hereof until the Companys obligation to pay such principal shall be discharged Payment of

the principal of and premium if any and interest on this Bond shall be made in such coin or

currency of the United States of America as at the time of payment shall be legal tender for the

payment of public and private debts

This bond is one of duly authorized issue of bonds of the Company of the series and

designation indicated on the face hereof in the total principal amount of $1458520 issuable as

fully registered bonds without coupons all issued and to be issued under and equally secured

with bonds of other series by an Indenture bearing date of August 1923 hereinafter together

with all Indentures supplemental thereto dated as of February 1948 January 1951 June

1959 October 1967 January 1976 June 1979 May 1987 June 1993 September

1998 May 2002 December 22 2005 and June 24 2008 respectively called the Indenture
executed by the Company and the Union Safe Deposit and Trust Company as Trustee U.S
Bank National Association now Successor Trustee to which Indenture this bond is subject and

to which reference is hereby made for description of the property mortgaged and pledged the

nature and extent of the security the rights of the holders of the bonds as to such security and the

terms and conditions upon which the bonds are and may be issued and secured

The Company has entered into Loan Agreement the Loan Agreement dated as of

June 24 2008 with the Maine Municipal Bond Bank providing for loan to the Company to

finance the costs of the acquisition and construction of equipment and facilities for improvement

of the Companys water supply and water distribution system The Loan Agreement provides

under certain circumstances for the reduction in principal amount of indebtedness thereunder

In the event of such reduction the principal amount outstanding of Series bonds shall be

reduced by like amount

All of the Series bonds have been issued in the name of the Maine Municipal Bond

Bank in satisfaction of payments required to be made by the Company pursuant to the Loan

Agreement to evidence its obligation to make such payments

The Series bonds of which this bond is part were initially issued as single bond in

the denomination of $1458520 Series bonds issued upon any transfer of the Series bonds
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in part if permitted shall be in the aggregate principal amount equal to the principal amount then

outstanding of the bond so transferred and in denominations of not less than $100000 or the

remaining principal amount then outstanding whichever is less

The Series bonds are redeemable prior to their expressed maturity in whole or in part

at the option of the Company at any time or from time to time on not less than thirty 30 days

previous notice given in the manner provided in the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture dated as of

June 24 2008 hereinafter called the Supplemental Indenture by paying the principal amount

thereof together with accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for such redemption

In the event that any municipal corporation or other governmental sub-division including

incorporated water districts or any authority created by or agency of the State or Federal

Government within the territorial limits of which the Company shall then be operating shall

acquire all or substantially all in value of the properties of the Company then all Series bonds

shall be called for redemption and the consideration received for such properties shall after

application of other moneys in the possession of the Trustee held for the benefit of Series

bonds and after provision for certain expenses and charges specified in the Indenture be applied

to the redemption and payment of the principal amount pro rata of all of the bonds then

outstanding of whatever series and interest accrued thereon together with any premium

applicable thereto

This Bond is also subject to mandatory redemption in the circumstances upon such

notice on the terms and at the applicable prices provided in the Supplemental Indenture

The Supplemental Indenture provides for sinking fund to the provisions of which this

Bond is subject and to the benefits of which this Bond is entitled as more fully provided in the

Supplemental Indenture

If at any time when less than all of the outstanding Series bonds are to be redeemed

any institutional holder of Series bonds to be redeemed continues to hold any of said bonds in

its own name or in the name of its nominee the principal amount of the bonds then to be

redeemed shall be prorated in units of $100000 each among the holders of the Series bonds as

nearly as practicable in the proportion that their respective holdings bear to the aggregate

principal amount of Series bonds outstanding on the date of selection The principle of pro rata

redemption shall be maintained in successive partial redemptions as well as in any single partial

redemption so long as any institutional holder continues to hold any of the Series bonds in its

own name or in the name of its nominee Such allocation as may be requisite for the purposes of

the next preceding sentence shall be made by the Trustee in its discretion

If this bond is called for redemption in whole or in part and if provision has been duly

made for payment hereof or of the part hereof so called as required in the Indenture in that

event on and after the redemption date this bond or such called part hereof as the case may be
shall cease to be entitled to any benefit under the Indenture except the right to receive payment
out of the moneys deposited therefor no interest will accrue on this bond or such called part

hereof on or after the redemption date and if such moneys shall on the redemption date be

available to the holder of this bond then and in that event the Company on and after the

-6-
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redemption date shall be under no further liability in respect of the principal of or premium if

any or interest on this bond or such called part hereof except as expressly provided in the

Indenture and if less than the whole principal amount hereof shall be so called the registered

owner or registered assigns shall be entitled in addition to the sums payable on account of the

part called to receive without expense to such owner or such assigns on surrender hereof with

proper instruments of transfer and upon cancellation hereof one or more bonds of Series in an

aggregate principal amount equal to that part of the principal amount hereof not then called and

paid

The principal hereof may also be declared due or may become due prior to the stated

maturity hereof on the conditions in the manner and at the times set forth in the Indenture and

the Supplemental Indenture upon the happening of default as in the Indenture and the

Supplemental Indenture provided

This bond is registered as to principal on the books of the Company at the office of the

U.S BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION Successor Trustee or its successor in said Trust

under the Indenture This bond is transferable as prescribed in the Indenture and the

Supplemental Indenture by the registered holder hereof in person or by his duly authorized

attorney at the principal office of the Trustee upon surrender and cancellation of this bond and

thereupon new bond or bonds of authorized denominations of the same series and for the same

aggregate principal amount will be issued to the transferee in exchange for this bond as provided
in the Indenture The Company the Trustee any paying agent and any bond registrar may deem

and treat the person in whose name this bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof whether

or not this bond shall be overdue for the purpose of receiving payment of or on account of the

principal of premium if any and interest on this bond and for all other purposes and neither the

Company nor the Trustee nor any paying agent nor any bond registrar shall be affected by any
notice to the contrary and interest principal and premium if any may be paid by the Company
Trustee or paying agent by making its check for said interest principal and premium to the

registered holder without requiring presentment of this bond

The bonds of Series are issuable in denominations of not less than $100000 or the

remaining principal amount then outstanding whichever is less At the principal office of the

Trustee in the City of Boston Massachusetts bonds of Series may be exchanged for like

aggregate principal amount of bonds of Series in other authorized denominations in each case

free of charge

No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or premium if any or

interest on this bond against any stockholder officer or director of the Company either directly

or through the Company under any statute or by the enforcement of any assessment or otherwise

all such liability of stockholders directors and officers being released by the holder hereof by the

acceptance of this bond and being likewise waived and released by the terms of the Indenture

The Supplemental Indenture permits that amendment of the Original Indenture as it may
have been amended not provided for elsewhere and affecting the rights and obligations of the

Company and of the holders of bonds outstanding thereunder at any time or from time to time

may be made by the Company by resolution of its Board of Directors and the Trustee with the
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written consent of the holders of majority in aggregate principal amount of the bonds then

outstanding thereunder or by their attorneys duly authorized in writing provided however that

no such amendment shall be made without the consent of the holder of every bond affected

thereby which would make any change in the fixed maturity the rate or time or times of

payment of the principal of or interest or premium on any bond or reduction in the amount of

principal or in the premium thereon or otherwise affect the terms of payment of the principal of

or interest or premium on any bond ii affect the right of any bondholder to institute suit for the

enforcement of any such payment iii permit the creation of any lien ranking prior to or equal

with the lien of the Indenture other than additional series of bonds issued in compliance with the

provisions of the Indenture on any of the mortgaged and pledged property or iv deprive the

holder of any outstanding bond of the lien of the Indenture on any of the mortgaged and pledged

property and provided further that no such amendment shall affect the rights of the holders of

one or more but less than all of the series of bonds then outstanding without the written consent

of the holders of majority in aggregate principal amount of bonds then outstanding of each of

the series so affected Subject to the foregoing conditions the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture

as it may have been amended may be amended at any time and from time to time by the

Company by resolution of its Board of Directors and the Trustee with the written consent of the

holders of majority in aggregate principal amount of the Series bonds then outstanding or by

their attorneys duly authorized in writing Any such consent shall be conclusive and binding

upon the holder of this bond and upon all future holders of this bond or any bond issued upon the

transfer hereof or in exchange hereof whether or not notation of such consent is made upon this

bond No reference herein to the Indenture or the Supplemental Indenture and no provision of

this bond or of the Indenture or the Supplemental Indenture shall alter or impair the obligation of

the Company which is absolute and unconditional to pay the principal of and interest on this

bond at the time and place and at the rate and in the coin or currency herein prescribed

This bond shall not become obligatory until U.S Bank National Association Successor

Trustee under the Indenture or its successor thereunder shall have executed the certificate of

authentication endorsed hereon

IN W1TNESS WHEREOF BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY has caused

this bond to be signed in its name by its President and its corporate seal to be hereto affixed and

attested by its Treasurer as of the ____ day of 20_

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER
COMPANY

By
Its President

SEAL

/59
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AflEST

Its Treasurer

Form of Trustees Certificate of Authentication

This is to certify that this bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned

Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 24 2008

U.S BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
TRUSTEE

By
Authorized Signatory

Section Terms of Series Bonds Anything in the Indenture to the contrary

notwithstanding all of the terms and conditions contained in the form of registered Series

bonds hereinbefore set out and the terms and conditions set out in Articles Ito IV inclusive of

this Supplemental Indenture are hereby fixed pursuant to Section of Article of the Indenture

as the terms and conditions of said Series bonds Otherwise than as enlarged or restricted by

the terms appearing in said form of Series bond the rights of the holder of said Series bonds

shall be as set forth in the Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture The aggregate principal

amount of the Series bonds is limited to $1458520 The Loan Agreement provides under

certain circumstances for reduction in the principal amount of the indebtedness of the

Company thereunder and in that event the provision of Statement of Revised Principal

Amount by the Bond Bank to the Trustee and the Company the Statement Following receipt

of the Statement the principal amount of the Series bonds shall be reduced by the amount or

amounts and at the time or times stated therein

Section Title The full title of the bonds is First Mortgage Bonds Series and said

bonds are sometimes herein referred to as Series bonds or bonds of Series

Section Transfer and Exchange of Series Bonds The fully registered Series

bonds without coupons shall be substantially of the tenor of the registered bonds hereinbefore set

out

Upon surrender for transfer of any fully registered Series bond without coupons at the

office of the Trustee the Company shall without charge execute and the Trustee shall

authenticate and deliver in the name of the designated transferee or transferees one or more new
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fully registered Series bonds without coupons of like aggregate principal amount all as

requested by the transferor

All Series bonds surrendered upon any exchange or transfer provided for in this

Supplemental Indenture shall be promptly cancelled by the Trustee and thereafter disposed of as

directed by the Company

All Series bonds issued in exchange for or upon transfer of Series bonds shall be the

valid obligation of the Company evidencing the same debt and entitled to the same benefits

under the Indenture and this Supplemental Indenture as the bonds surrendered for such exchange

or transfer

Every Series bond presented or surrendered for transfer exchange or discharge from

registration shall if so required by the Company or the Trustee be duly endorsed or be

accompanied by written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Trustee and the

Company duly executed by the holder thereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing

The Company shall not be required to transfer or exchange any fully registered Series

bond for period of fifteen 15 days next preceding any interest payment date or ii to issue

transfer or exchange any Series bond during period beginning at the opening of business

fifteen 15 days before any selection of such bonds to be redeemed and ending at the close of

business on the date of the first publication or the mailing if there is no publication of the

relevant notice of redemption or iii to transfer or exchange any Series bond called or being

called for redemption in whole or in part

On payment upon redemption or otherwise of portion only of the principal amount of

any Series bond the holder thereof shall surrender it to the Trustee which shall thereupon issue

and deliver without charge to the holder new bond or bonds in the aggregate principal amount

of the unpaid balance of principal of the surrendered bond provided however that the Trustee

shall not require such surrender if the Company shall agree in writing as to notation procedure
with the holder of any bond and the Trustee shall thereupon make such redemptions or payments
in accordance with said written agreement

Each bond delivered under this Supplemental Indenture upon transfer of or in exchange

for or in lieu of any other bond shall carry all the rights to interest accrued and unpaid and to

accrue which were carried by such other bond and each such bond shall be so dated that neither

gain nor loss in interest shall result from such transfer exchange or substitution

Section Redemption of Series Bonds

Upon Condemnation In the application of the consideration received by the

Company in connection with the acquisition of all or substantially all in value of the properties

of the Company by any municipal corporation or other governmental subdivision within the

territorial limits of which the Company shall then be operating including incorporated water

districts or any authority created by or agency of the State or Federal Government to the

redemption and payment of Series bonds or pro rata to all of the bonds then outstanding of

lo



floc3 344 81026157 Pfl 130

whatever series as provided in the foregoing form of bond of Series there shall first be set

aside such sum or sums of money as shall be necessary to liquidate all taxes and assessments and

the reasonable compensation and expenses of the Trustee and its agents attorneys and counsel

and all other sums payable to or by the Trustee under any provision of the Indenture which may
be then due or in the determination of the Trustee may be reasonably expected to accrue and

become due as incident to the Companys previous operations ownership of property or

obligations incident to the existence of said bonds as obligations of the Company outstanding

and to their liquidation

Sinking Fund The Company covenants and agrees that it will pay or cause to be

paid the Annual Sinking Fund Payment to the holder of the Series bonds on or prior to

April 2009 and on or prior to the first day of April in each year thereafter up to and including

April 2028 the Sinking Fund Payment Dates an amount sufficient to redeem at par

principal amount of Series bonds equal to the Annual Sinking Fund Requirement as sinking

fund for the redemption of Series bonds The Annual Sinking Fund Requirement may vary

from payment date to payment date and shall be equal to the amount or amounts set forth in

Exhibit attached hereto Exhibit shall be amended to reflect the revised principal amount of

the Series bonds set forth in the Statement if any in the manner therein provided

If retired by such mandatory Annual Sinking Fund Payments no principal amount would

remain outstanding on the Series bonds and the Loan would be paid in full following the

sinking fund payment on the last Sinking Fund Payment Date

The amount of any Annual Sinking Fund Payment paid to the Trustee shall be held by the

Trustee as security for payment of only the Series bonds until applied as hereinafter in this

subdivision provided

All moneys at the time in the sinking fund shall forthwith and no later than the next

Sinking Fund Payment Date be applied by the Trustee for the redemption of Series bonds in

the manner provided herein except that solely in the case of such sinking fund redemptions no

notice of intention to redeem shall be required

All Series bonds redeemed through operation of the sinking fund shall be cancelled and

cremated by the Trustee

Optional Redemption The Series bonds shall be redeemable at the option of

the Company at any time as whole or from time to time in part at price equal to one

hundred per cent 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the date of

redemption provided however that the redemption price shall not in any case exceed the

aggregate of all amounts then owed by the Company under the Loan Agreement the

Redemption Price

Mandatory Redemption upon acceleration of Indebtedness under the Loan

Agreement If at any time while the Bond Bank is the registered holder of the Series bonds it

shall have exercised its rights to accelerate the Companys indebtedness under the Loan

Agreement and the Bond Bank shall have given notice of such acceleration to the Trustee the

41
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Series bonds shall be redeemed in such amount and at such times as are necessary to fund the

repayment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement at the Redemption Price Notwithstanding

anything herein to the contrary no notice of intention to redeem shall be required with respect to

redemption under this Section 5D of Article

Section Notice of Optional Redemption The election of the Company to redeem

any Series bonds pursuant to Section 5C of this Article shall be evidenced by resolution of

its Board of Directors

Anything in the Indenture or this Supplemental Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding

notice to redeem Series bonds pursuant to Section 5A or Section 5C of this Article shall

be given by or on behalf of the Company by first class mail postage prepaid mailed not less

than thirty 30 days nor more than sixty 60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption to each

holder of such bonds registered as to principal to his last address appearing on the books of the

Company as kept by the Trustee

If less than all of the Series bonds are to be redeemed the particular bonds to be

redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee not more than forty-five 45 days prior to the date

fixed for redemption from the outstanding Series bonds on pro rata basis as provided in the

form of Series bond

Section Payments The principal of interest on or redemption price if any of the

Series bonds shall be payable at the office or agency of the Trustee in the City of Boston

Massachusetts in coin or currency of the United States of America which at the time of payment

is legal tender for public and private debts provided however that for so long as the Bond Bank

is the registered holder of the Series bonds all payments of principal interest or redemption

price on the Series bonds shall be paid directly to the Bond Bank at such address as shall

appear for the Bond Bank in the registration books of the Company kept at the office of the

Trustee Upon making such payment the Company shall provide the Trustee with prompt

written notice thereof For so long as the Bond Bank is the registered holder of the Series

bonds the Trustee shall be entitled to presume that all such payments have been made as

provided in this paragraph until such time as the Trustee has received written notice from the

Bond Bank that any such payment has not been made Any payment required to be made by the

Company to the Trustee hereunder or upon the Series bonds shall be reduced to the extent that

monies then held by the Bond Bank are available for application to the same purpose of such

payment Except as otherwise described herein the Company shall make such payments to the

Trustee at such times as are necessary to allow the Trustee to make all required payments on the

Series bonds

ARTICLE II

Authentication and Delivery of Series Bonds

Section Series bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $1458520 shall

forthwith be executed by the Company and delivered to the Trustee and shall be authenticated by

the Trustee and delivered whether before or after the filing or recording hereof at one time or

42-
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from time to time in accordance with the order of the Company evidenced by writing or

writings signed by the Company by its President and its Treasurer upon compliance with the

provisions of Section of Article of the Indenture

Section The Series bonds shall be in printed or typewritten form

Section Series bonds is closed series and no Series bonds additional to the

$1458520 in principal amount thereof to be issued hereunder shall be issued except for Series

bonds issued under the provisions hereof in substitution or exchange for or upon transfer or in

lieu of Series bonds previously outstanding hereunder

ARTICLE III

Covenants of the Company

Section The Company hereby covenants that it will undertake observe keep and

perform all the terms conditions restrictions and obligations on its part to be undertaken

observed kept and performed as set forth in the Original Indenture all indentures supplemental

thereto including this Supplemental Indenture and in the bonds heretofore issued thereunder

and now outstanding and those to be issued hereunder except that the phrase commencing with

provided that the average annual net earnings. and ending with .outside parties in Article

Section of the Original Indenture shall not apply to the Series bonds

Section For any default by the Company in any covenant stipulation promise or

agreement herein contained or contained in the Series bonds the Trustee and the bondholders

shall have the same rights and remedies as are provided in the Indenture In the event of any

acceleration of the Series bonds each holder of Series bond may exercise any right power

or remedy available at law or equity to enforce the rights under the Series bonds including

without limitation the right to seek judgment against the Company as to all amounts then due

and execute such judgment against the property of the Company subject always to the rights of

the bondholders under the Indenture or the right to seek injunctive relief against the Company or

to appoint receiver for said Company provided that any other remedies specifically available

only under the Indenture to the Trustee or to the holder of any First Mortgage bond issued under

the Indenture other than the remedies provided in this Section of Article III may be exercised

only upon compliance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Indenture The exercise by
the holder of any Series bond of any of the rights set forth in the immediately preceding

sentence shall not except as required by law affect any other rights or remedies which the

Trustee or any bondholder may have as result of any breach or default referred to in this

Section of Article III

ARTICLE IV

Amendments

Section Any amendment of the Original Indenture as it may have been amended not

provided for elsewhere and affecting the rights and obligations of the Company and of the
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holders of bonds outstanding thereunder at any time or from time to time may be made by the

Company by resolution of its Board of Directors and the Trustee with the written consent of the

holders of majority in aggregate principal amount of the bonds then outstanding thereunder or

by their attorneys duly authorized in writing provided however that no such amendment shall

be made without the consent of the holder of every bond affected thereby which would make

any change in the fixed maturity the rate or time or times of payment of the principal of or

interest or premium on any bond or reduction in the amount of principal or in the premium

thereon or otherwise affect the terms of payment of the principal of or interest or premium on

any bond ii affect the right of any bondholder to institute suit for the enforcement of any such

payment iii permit the creation of any lien ranking prior to or equal with the lien of the

Indenture other than additional series of bonds issued in compliance with the provisions of the

Indenture on any of the mortgaged and pledged property or iv deprive the holder of any

outstanding bond of the lien of the Indenture on any of the mortgaged and pledged property and

provided further that no such amendment shall affect the rights of the holders of one or more
but less than all of the series of bonds then outstanding without the written consent of the

holders of majority in aggregate principal amount of bonds then outstanding of each of the

series so affected Subject to the foregoing conditions this Twelfth Supplemental Indenture may
be amended at any time and from time to time by the Company by resolution of its Board of

Directors and the Trustee with the written consent of the holders of majority in aggregate

principal amount of the Series bonds then outstanding or by their attorneys duly authorized in

writing For all purposes of this Article IV the Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon an opinion

of counsel with respect to the extent if any to which any action permitted by this Section of

Article IV affects the rights under the Indenture of holders of any bonds then outstanding

Section Any amendment made as provided in Section of this Article IV shall be

conclusively binding upon the Company the Trustee and the holders of Series bonds and

subsequent series provided however that no such amendment shall in any maimer be so

construed as to change or modify any of the rights or obligations of the Trustee without its

written consent thereto

Section copy or summary of any amendment made as provided in Section of this

Article IV shall be sent by or on behalf of the Company by first class mail postage prepaid

within ten 10 days after the same has been made to each holder of Series bonds registered as

to principal to its last address appearing on the books of the Company kept by the Trustee

Section Instruments supplemental to this Indenture embodying any amendment of the

Indenture or of any indenture supplemental thereto or of the rights and obligations of the

Company or of the holders of the Series bonds and subsequent series made as provided in

Section of this Article IV may be executed by the Company and the Trustee and upon demand

of the Trustee shall be executed by the Company and the Trustee The Trustee may receive an

opinion of counsel as conclusive evidence that any such instrument or instruments comply with

the conditions and provisions of this Article IV and with the consent given by bondholders

14
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ARTICLE
Miscellaneous

Section Except as otherwise provided herein all of the terms provisions and

conditions of the Jndenture as hereby supplemented and amended shall be and remain in full

force and effect and shall apply to the property hereby mortgaged and pledged and to Series

bonds and to the holders thereof

Section This Supplemental Indenture shall be binding upon and inure to the benefits

of the Company and its successors and assigns and the Trustee and its successor or successors

Section This Supplemental Indenture may be simultaneously executed in any number

of counterparts and all said counterparts executed and delivered each as an original shall

constitute but one and the same instrument

IN WITNESS WHEREOF BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY has caused

these presents to be executed in its behalf by its President and the same attested by its Treasurer

thereunto duly authorized and its corporate seal to be hereto affixed and said U.S BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION in confirmation of its acceptance of said trust has caused these

presents to be executed in its behalf by Vice President and its corporate seal to be hereto

affixed and the same to be attested by the signature of Vice President or an Assistant Vice

President or an Assistant Secretary or Corporate Trust Officer as of the day and year first

written

Signed Sealed and Delivered

in Presence of

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER
COMPANY

By
President

ATTEST

Treasurer

U.S BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
Trustee

By
Vice President

ATTEST

Title

-15-
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ARTICLE
Miscellaneous

Section Except as otherwise provided herein all of the terms provisions and

conditions of the Indenture as hereby supplemented and amended shall be and remain in full

force and effect and shall apply to the property hereby mortgaged and pledged and to Series

bonds and to the holders thereof

Section This Supplemental Indenture shall be binding upon and inure to the benefits

of the Company and its successors and assigns and the Trustee and its successor or successors

Section This Supplemental Indenture may be simultaneously executed in any number

of counterparts and all said counterparts executed and delivered each as an original shall

constitute but one and the same instrument

IN WITNESS WHEREOF BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY has caused

these presents to be executed in its behalf by its President and the same attested by its Treasurer

thereunto duly authorized and its corporate seal to be hereto affixed and said U.S BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION in confirmation of its acceptance of said trust has caused these

presents to be executed in its behalf by Vice President and its corporate seal to be hereto

affixed and the same to be attested by the signature of Vice President or an Assistant Vice

President or an Assistant Secretary or Corporate Trust Officer as of the day and year first

written

Signed Sealed and Delivered

in Presence of

-15-

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER
COMPANY

By
President

ATTEST

Treasurer

U.S BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
Trustee

By
Vice President

ATTEST
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STATE OF MAINE
Cumberland ss 2008

Then personally appeared the above-named Clifford Mansfield Jr President and

Treasurer of said BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY and acknowledged the

foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed in his said capacities and the free act and deed

of said Company

Before me

ey a/Notary Public

rint Name__________________________

My commission expires

LOIS BROWN
NUTAY PUBLIC MAINE

MYCXMMtSSON PIRES NOVEMBEH 6314

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETIS

County of Suffolk ss __________ 2008

Then personally appeared _____________________ Vice President of U.S BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and

deed in his said capacity and the free act and deed of said Bank

Before me

Notary Public

Print Name___________________________

My commission expires

46-
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STATE OF MAINE
Cumberland 55 2008

Then personally appeared the above-named Clifford Mansfield Jr President and

Treasurer of said BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY and acknowledged the

foregoing instrument to be his free act and deed in his said capacities and the free act and deed

of said Company

Before me

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

County of Suffolk ss

Attorney at Law/Notary Public

Print Name_______________

My commission expires_____

Jv 2008

Then personally appeared CO1 13Od Vice President of U.S BANK
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his free act and

deed in his said capacity and the free act and deed of said

Before me

-16-

14q

My commission
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EXHIBIT

See Attached Easement Deeds

-17-
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WARRANTY DEED
EA$EMZWP DEO

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS thai JEFFREY THOMPSON JR and

COLLEEN THOMPSON of the Town of Old Orchard Beach County of York and State of

Maine in consideration clone dollar and other valuable consideration grant to BIDDEFO1tD

AND SACO WATER COMPANY Maine Corporation with prhioipal place of business at

181 Elm Street Biddeford 04005 with warranty covenants the following described property

perpetual casement over under and across certain parcel of land situated in Old

Orchard Beach in the County of York and State of Maine and being the length and breadth of

certain private road known as New Colony Drive hereafter the Road said Road being

located on the northwesterly aide of Ross Road so called and as shown on plan of Pilgrim

Place Condominium recorded in the York County Registry of Deeds in Condominium File 368

Page

the purpose of the within easement ia to allow the Grantee to connect water line to the

existing waier main located within said Road along with the right to aecess said connection for

the purpose of maintenance and repair of the waler line connection and related valve The

Grantee herein agrees that in the exercise of its riglna hereunder it shalt restore the surface of

the Road as near as possible to its condition prior to any such excrcis This easement pertains

only to the connection to the water main within the Road Grantee does not have and does not

assume any responsibility or liability in regard to said waler main

The within easement is for the benefit of end intended to allqw water line connection

io property of Eric Thompson being the saint premises conveyed to him by the Orantors

herein by deed dated April 192005 and recorded in the York County Registry of Deeds in

Book 14441 Page 544 and property of Dustin Thompson and AimeeV Thompson being
the seine premises conveyed to them by the Orantors herein by deed dated September 21 2005
and recorded in said Registry of Deeds in Book 14607 Page 48g

Ic
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The right ofibe Otamora to grant the within easement was reserved in deed from the

Orantots end olhem to Pilgrim Place Inc in deed dated March 18 1988 and rocunied in he

York County Registry of Deeds in Book 4690 Page 64

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said JEEFflY
COLLEEN THOMPSON have set their hands nix seal this

STATE OF MAiNE

YORK as

Then personally appeared th above nanied 3EFFREY THOMPSON JR and COLLEEN
THOMPSON and acknowledged theIoregoing inatniment to be their free act and deed before me

Hotaq Pub lic/AItornoy- at-Lw

Beth Gilman
Notary Public MalnMy Commssj0 Expj

April 13 2Db

END OF DOCUMENT

9IJZCL 2006
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SACO ISLAND WEST MAC Maine limited
liability company having

mailing address of 110 Main Street Saco Maine 04072 for consideration paid grants to

BIDDE1FORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY Maine corporation having

mailing address of IS Rim Street Biddeford Maine 04005 with QUITCI.AIM

COVENANT perpetual easement to locate install maintain repair replace and operate

water pipes lines valves pumps and appurtenances thereto Said easement shall from

Main Street in the City of Saco to Building /3 as such building is shown on plan

entitled ALTAJACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY PREPARED FOR SACO ISLAND WEST LLC

MAIN STREET SAco YORK COUNTY MAiNE Sheet Si dated November 15 2007 by Oak

Engineers and recorded in the York County Registry of Deeds in Plan Book 326 Pane

iii The location of said easement is depicted on the sketch entitled

1yhcLA dated
_______-- prepared by _______________

reduced copy of which is attached as Ethibit and made part hereof

Reference is hereby made to deed from Cutts Island Group to Saco island West LLC
dated October 2007 and recorded in the York County Registry of Deeds in inctk

1317111.1
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF has caused this instrument to be

this day of 2005

SACO ISLAND WEST LLC

Its

STATE OF MAINE
COUNTY OF___________

signed and

WINES

a4tLzc
By -j-/c-nnJ

On YIC 2008 personally app ed before me the above-

named person andiacknowledged the foregoing to be his fre ct and deed

No PubIicJMaine.Ateey-at4w
Printed Nanie

1311t li
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AGREEMENT made this jQ day of Aagust 2001 by and between flares Vt of the

City of Sacs County of York Maine and the DIDDEPORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY

corporation organized under the Private and Special Laws of the State of Maine and having place of

business in Biddeford York County Maine hereinafter sometimes refertvd to as the VI1LITY
WHEREAS Pierre Valles is the owner of certain real estate the premises situated on 30

tCU0 Ross Road so-called in the City of Sate County of York Maine and being mote particularly

bounded and describedjp YO5OUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS BOOK 15216 PAGE I2 and

WHEREAS 3EIoa BGisâ Is lot that has frontage on the public way of Ross Road in two

5-N locations one that has 25 feet of frontage on an existing water main and one that does not

WHEREAS Pierre Valise has requested that the improvements to provide public water

SI WIUJ consist of l4aebiarvia pipe of approxitnately 30 feet in length between the centeruf that portion of

the above referenced lot that has frontage on the existing water main in Ross fined and the presently

tJtUi4 existing water- main which is located within the public way of Roes Rasal and

WHEREAS constnsction of additional homes which would require further extension of the

watvrmaininReaakasd is ealfkdy and

WHEREAS the present cost of such extension is approximately $120.00 dollars per linear foot

plus excavation and backfill and

WHEREAS Pierre Vallae does not desire to pay form water main extension which may be

unnecessary but agrees that if additional service is required in the future the owner of the premises

described in YORK COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS BOOK 15214 PAGE 126 shall pay for

portion of the cost of such extension and

WHEREAS the parties hereto wish to enter into written agreement to evidence their

agreement

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the mutual agreemeists hereinafter set forth

it is agreed as follows

C0NNECmON The UTILITY shall allow the physical connection of I-inch copper service

pipe to the existing main located in Ran Road City of Sate County of York Maine and shall supply

water to such service pipe at its usual and customary charges

FUTURE EXTENSION In the evant future extension of the water main is required bacause

additional residences are constructed along Rosa Road it is agreed that the then owner of the premises

described in YORK COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS BOOK 15214 PACE 126 shall be

responsible for the payment of the then proportionate coat of the installation of an adequately sized

math fivum the end of the existing main on the date hereof to the centerline of said premises Said

proportionate share shall be calculated in accordance with the rules of the Maine Public Utilities

Commission then existing

RENL The owner of said feernises shall pey such cost of such extension within 20 days of

the submission of bill therefore In the event the bill is not so paid the UTILITY shall be entitled to

interest on the unpaid balance at the rate of TweLve Percent 12% per annorn shall be entitled to

collect the seine in civil action and shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys fees incurred in the

collection thercot

BENEFIT AND CONSTUCFIOTt The terms of this Agressnant shall be binding ton the

owner of the premises described in YORK COUNTY REGISTRY OF DEEDS BOOK 15216 PAGE
126 during the period of such ownership only and after conveyance no further obligation shall exist in

anyone other than the then owner or such owuema soeceerora This Agreernmmt shall inure to the benefit

of the UTWflY its successors and assigns and shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of the

State of Maine

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the pasties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seats nil as of the

day and date first above written

SIGNED SEALED AN DELIVERED

IN PRESENCE OF

8IDDEFCtD ANQ SACO WATER COMPANY

caw
C.S.Mansfue

its President

STATE OF MAINE
YORKss Date

Personally appeased the above named Finn acknowledged the foregoing

instrwnent to be his flee act and deed

Before me otary Public

MyCo Oaexp

Print Or
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KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

That NEW LIFE CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP Maine religious nonprofit

corporation having its principal offices in the City of l3iddeford County of York and

Slate of Maine in consideration of One $1.00 Dollar and other good and valuable

consideration paid by RIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY Maine

corporation duly organized and established under the Private and Special Laws of the

State of Maine on March 12 1881 and having its principal place of business located in

the City ofEiddeford County of York and State of Maine and mailing address of 181

Elm Street Biddeford Maine 04005 the receipt whereof it does hereby acknowledge

dnes hereby give grant bargain sell and convey unto the said Biddeford and Saco

Water Company its successors and assigns peipetual right and easement in common

with others to enter at any and all times by font and by vehicles upon the following

described parcel of land

certain lot or parcel of land located in the City of Biddeford County of York

and State of Maine and situated on the Southerly side of Alfred Road so-called also

known as Route 111 and being more ililly bounded and described as follows

For Complete Description See Exhibit annexed hereto and incorporated herein

/c7
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AND the right to construct and perpetually maintain through under and across the

aforesaid premises water pipes and Street services conduits and pipelines with all

necessary fixtures and appurtenances for conveying water and the right to lay re-lay

repair maintain remove and replace water pipe or pipes and street services upon or under

said premises with all necessary fixtures and appurtenances together with the right at all

times to make connection with said water pipes conduits and pipelines to land adjoining

said parcel by means of pipes or services to trim cut down and remove bushes to such

extent as in the judgment of the Grantee is necessary for any of the above purposes and

to enter upon said premises at any and all times with men vehicles machinery equipment

and materials for any of the foregoing purposes reserving to the Grantor its successors

and assigns the use and enjoyment of said premises for such purposes only as will in no

way interfere with the perpetual use thereof by the Grantee its successors and assigns for

the purposes above mentioned PROVIDED that no building or any kind of permanent

structure shall be erected on said premises by the Grantor its successors and assigns and

that neither the Grantor nor the Grantee their successors and assigns shall remove earth

from said premises or place fill thereon or install any means of drainage which shall

cause the removal of earth from said premises without the prior written permission of the

other Party their successors and assigns which consent shall not be unreasonably

withheld

The foregoing Easement is further granted subject to

the replacement by the Grantee corporation of the surface of the ground in

substantially the same condition as existed prior to any excavation which may be required

for the purposes hereinabove set forth and

the restriction that except in the case of catastrophic equipment failures

weather events or accidents Grantee corporation shalt exercise its foregoing easement

rights in such manner as to not prevent or unnecessarily disturb or hinder the passage of
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vehicular traffic by the business invitees of Grantor or its Lessees bearing in mind that

the access way is used in part as the entrance and exit road for car wash business the

current Lessee of the Grantor

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the perpetual right and easement over the

aforegranted and bargained premises with all the privileges and appurtenances thereot to

the said Biddeford and Saco Water Company its successors and assigns to its and their

own use and behoof forever

AND the said New Life Christian Fellowship does hereby covenant with the said

Grantee its successors and assigns that it is lawfully seized in fee of the prenilses that

they are free of all encumbrances except as herein noted and any and all state federal and

local laud use regulations ordinances statutes and acts including the zoning laws and

ordinances of the City of Biddeford Maine that it has good right to convey the same to

the said Grantee to hold as aforesaid and that it and its successors shall and will warrant

and defeud the same to the said Grantee its successors and assigns forever against the

lawful claims and demands of all persons

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the said New Life Christian Fellowship has caused

this instrument to be sealed with its corporate seal and signed in its corporate name by

Jeffrey Tarbox its President thereunto duly authorized this day of March in the

year of our Lord Two Thousand and Eight

Ic
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Signed Sealed and Delivered NEW LIFE CHRISTIAN FELLOWSRIP

In the presence of

fl/i

____ _______ By jj/j
JeiryATarbox
its President tliereunto duly authorized

STATE OF MAINE

YORK SS March 2008

Then personally appeared the above named Jeffrey Tarbox President said

New Life Christian Fellowship as aforesaid and acknowledged the foregoing instrument

to be his free act and deed in his said capacity and the free act and deed of said

Corporation

My Notary Commission 3efore mc
expires on __________________

Attorncy-at-Law/Ntle

Print or type name



Exhibit
D0Ct2 44t1 8k261$1 P0 149

perpetual right and easement as more specifically set forth in this

Easement Deed in over and under certain lot or parcel of land situated on the

Southerly side of Alfred Road so-called also known as Route 11111 in the City of

Hiddeford County of York and State of Maine and being more fully bounded and

described as follows

Beginning at point on the Southerly sideline of said Alfred Road said

point of beginning being located South 79 40 West distance of 201.66 feet

from an iron rod set in the ground in the Southerly sideline of said Alfred Road at

the Northwesterly corner ollaiid conveyed to New Life Advent Christian Church

nOW known as New Life Christian Fellowship by Quitcfaim Deed from Darilyn

Tarbox et al dated March 29 2002 and recorded in the York County Registry of

Deeds in Book 547 Page 222

Thence South 19 52 East by land of the Grantor 62.30 feet to point

Thence South 27 30 West by land of the Grantor 1620 feet to point

Thence continuing along the Easterly sideline of said Easement with

curve deflecting to the right distance of 43.25 feet to point said curve having

radius of 226.18 feet

Thence South 35 20 17 West by land of the Grantor 12.24 feet to

point

/b/
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Thence North 67 51 46 West by land of the Grantor 4464 feet to

point

Thence North 30 59 East by land of the Grantor 102.83 feet to point

on the apparent Southerly sideline of said Alfred Road

Thence North 79 40 East by the Southerly sideline of said Alfred

Road 59.19 feet to the poini of beginning

Together with the right to use in common with the Grantor and others the

existing access driveway from Route ill over the above-described premises as

the same may he from time to time relocated by the Grantor with the prior written

consent of the Grantee and together with the right of the Grantor its successors

and assigns to install such other utilities as are necessary to support the uses of the

remaining land of the Grantor its successors and assigns provided ncvertbeless

that the Grantee its successors and assi sand any other utjijt servin the

property of thGtantor it successors ai.i ns and serving Grantors lessee its

sub-lessees and their successors and assigns shall mak install jons repairs

pjçiated work in accordance with State of Mainiidards in order not to iuipj

or interfere with the orovision of services by the Grantee its successors and

assigns and of any other utility

The above-described Easement Area is more particularly shown on Plan

entitled Waterline Easement prepared by Gorrill-Palmer Consulting Engineers

Inc dated January 2008 being Plan No 8K2 and attached hereto as xhibit

/122
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EASEMENT

SACO ISLAND WEST LLC Maine limited
liability company having

DDC ki1i
i$2

mailing address of 110 Mam Street Saco Mame 04072 for consideration paid grants to

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY Maine corporation having

mailing address of 181 Elm Street Biddeford Maine 04005 with QUITCLAIM

COVENANT perpetual easement to locate install maintain repair replace and operate

water pipes lines valves pumps and appurtenances thereto Said easement shall from

Main Street in the City of Saco to Building as such building is shown on plan

entitled ALTAJACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY PREPARED FOR SACO ISLAND Wcsr LLC

MAIN STREET SACO YORK COuNTY MAtNE Sheet SI dated November 152007 by Oak

Engineers and recorded in tile York County Registry of Deeds in Plan Book 326 Page

J1 The location of said easement is depicted on the sketch entitled

dated _________ prepared by ___________

reduced copy of which is attached as Exhibit and made part hereof

Reference is hereby made to deed from Cutts Island Group to Saco Island West LLC
dated October 12007 and recorded in the York County Registry of Deeds in lliiis

15270 Pane 393

3t7U1.I
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF has caused this instrument to be

signed and witne this day of 2008

WITNESS SACO ISLAND WEST LLC

By t-w A- -n
Its

STATE OF MIIE
COUNTY OF____________

On 2008 personally appe cd before me the above

natned person andiacknowledged the foregoing to be his fre ct and deed

No PublicfMaine-Mtorney-at4aw

Printed Name

ywri Q9ii

SEI\l

131fl
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Exhibit

SINKING FUND PAYMENT SCHEDULE

Payment Sinking Fund

Date Amount

April 12009 $15000

April 2010 $15000

April 12011 $15000

April 2012 $15000

April 2013 $15000

April 2014 $30000

April 12015 $30000

April 2016 $30000

April 2017 $30000

April 2018 $30000

ReceIved

April 2019 $60000 ReCOPISQII Re eaffleeds

Cusherlwid Counb9

April 2020 $60000 PeMeIU thvleu

April 2021 $60000

April 2022 $60000

April 2023 $60000

April 2024 $100000

April 2025 $100000

April 2026 $100000

April 2027 $300000

April 2028 $333520

P\Usersmgoogins\Biddcford Saco Water\2008 Bond lssuc\I 2th Supp JndcntureOó2008Clean.doc

18

/67



EXHIBIT 4.1

Form of Subscription Agreement



SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY
181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Attn C.S Mansfield Jr President and Treasurer

Dear Mr Mansfield

The undersigned subscriber Subscriber hereby agrees to purchase shares the Shares of Common Stock of

Biddeford and Saco Water Company Maine corporation the Company on the terms and in the amount set forth

below

Subscriber hereby represents warrants agrees and acknowledges as follows

That Subscriber is aware that this investment involves substantial risks including those described in the

offering circular for this offering

That any financing plans cost estimates and market projections prepared by Management of the Company

are highly speculative and have not been independently verified and that NO REPRESENTATION OR
ASSURANCE HAS BEEN MADE TO OR RELIED UPON BY SUBSCRIBER CONCERNING THE PRESENT

OR FUTURE VALUE OF THE SHARES OR CONCERNING ANY RETURN TO BE RECEIVED iN

CONNECTION WITH AN INVESTMENT IN THE SHARES

That no federal or state agency has made any finding or determination as to the fairness for investment nor

any recommendation nor endorsement of the Shares

That Subscribers principal residence is located at the ownership registration address set forth below and

Subscriber has no present intention to change such residence to another State and that under penalties of perjury

Subscriber declares that the information set forth below regarding Subscribers identity and Social Security Number

or Taxpayer Identification Number is true correct and complete to the best of Subscribers knowledge

That Subscriber acknowledges that Verrill Dana LLP is serving as counsel to the Company in this

transaction and is not serving as counsel to Subscriber and that Subscriber has obtained such legal advice as

Subscriber deems necessary from Subscribers own counsel

The Company may accept this subscription by issuing the Shares to Subscriber No transfer or assignment of

any rights under this Agreement shall be effective without the prior written consent of the Company This

Agreement and the Offering Circular under which the Shares have been offered including any amendments thereto

state the entire agreement of the parties concerning the terms of this subscription If any provision of this

Agreement is deemed invalid or unenforceable the remaining provisions hereof shall be enforced to the fullest

extent permitted by law This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with Maine law and

the terms hereof may not be modified or waived except in writing signed by the party to be bound by such waiver

or modification

Pagelof2

ilaf



Subscription Commitment The undersigned Subscriber agrees to purchase shares of Common Stock of Biddeford

and Saco Water Company at the offering price of $67.50 per share as set forth below The Company only issues

whole shares Any investment amounts not divisible by $67.50 shall be rounded down to the nearest whole

share and the balance shall be returned to Subscriber

_______________________
shares at $67.50 per share for total investment of$____________________

Please include full payment with your Subscription Agreement

Ownership Information for this Subscriber Under penalties of perjury the undersigned Subscriber declares that

the information set forth below regarding Subscribers identity and Social Security Number or Taxpayer

Identification Number is true conect and complete to the best of the Subscribers knowledge

Subscriber Names

Street Address

P.O Box if any

City ___________________________________________ State ___________________ Zip Code _____

Telephone No _________________________________ Mobile Phone No ______________________

Email Address

Social Security Numbers Taxpayer Identification Nos
or

Please provide exact name and address --for individuals the principal residence address must be given

together with Social Security Number for entities legal name and principal business address must be

given if more than one owner spec ify form ofjoint ownership such as loint tenants with right of

survivors hip

State of Incorporation Etc If Subscriber is an entity in which state is the entity organized

EXECUTED by Subscriber on the day of 20 at _____________________________

city state

Joint owners all Signature _____________________________________________________

owners must sign Name/Title ________________________________________________________

Entities specify Signature _____________________________________________________

titles of signing Name/Title
___________________________________________________________

officers

ACCEPTED BY BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY on the day of 20 at

Biddeford Maine to be effective as of the date of Subscribers subscription

By
Authorized Agent

Page of
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EXHIBIT 6.1

Employment Agreement with Mansfield Jr
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EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

This AGREEMENT is made by and between the Biddeford Saco Water Company

Maine corporation the Company and C.S Mansfield Jr the Executive and dated

as of the 9th day of October 2008 The termsof this Employment Agreement shall supersede

those contained in the Employment Agreement between the Company and the Executive

dated October 2006

Whereas the Executive has advised the Board of Directors of the Company The

Board that he has begun the process of seriously considering the timing of his retirement

from the responsibilities of his current position with the Company and

Whereas the Board and the Executive agree that it is in the best interests of the

Company and its shareholders to develop succession plan for the orderly replacement

of the Exeputive diminish the inevitable distraction of the Executive by virtue of the

personal uncertainties and risks created by the pending change in his employment status and

encourage the Executives full attention and dedication to the Company both currently

and throughout this period of personal uncertainty by providing the Executive with an

acceptable plan for compensation and benefits

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY AGREED AS FOLLOWS

The period of this agreement shall commence on the date hereof and end on

December 31 2010

The Executive shall remain an active employee Participant under the terms of the

Companys defined benefit pension plan until December 31 2010

The Executives job description and responsibilities shall be unchanged from those

now existing for the period of time commencing on the date hereof and continuing

through June 30 2010

The Executives job description and responsibilities for the period of time

commencing on July 2010 and continuing until the end of the agreement period

shall be that of consultant and advisor The Executives status shall become that of

retired employee effective at the end of the normal workday on December 31 2010

Pagelof3



The Executives weekly and bonus compensation for the period of this agreement

shall be

$2 12.00 per week for the period of time commencing with the date of this

agreement and ending with the payroll check dated July 2009

$2216.00 per week for the period of time commencing with the payroll ch ck

dated July 2009 and ending with the payroll check dated June 30 2010

$2000.00 per week for the period of time commencing with the payroll check

dated July 2010 and ending with the payroll check dated December 29

2010 which shall be the final weekly payroll check issued under this

agreement unless it is later amended and

$7500.00 bonus payments to be issued on November 2008 August

2009 and June 30 2010

In the event of the death or disability of the Executive so that be is unable to fulfill his

job obligations the Company shall pay $1000.00 per week to the Executives spouse

or in the event the Executives spouse has predeceased him to the Executives estate

for period of 52 weeks

The Company shall provide the Executive with medical dental short term disability

and life insurance as well as all other benefits typically afforded to all regular

employees of the Company in the same manner as they are afforded to all other

Company employees throughout the entire period of this agreement

In the event of termination of the Executive or change in governance of the

Company severance compensation for the Executive shall be in accordance with the

Companys policy adopted on June 14 2001

This agreement may be amended at any time during the period of agreement by

mutual consent of the Executive and the BoardQ

Page2of3 73



IN WITNESS WHEREOF said EXECUTIVE has hereunto set his hand and said

COMPANY has caused this instrument to be signed in its name and behalf by its BOARD of

Directors

Biddeford and Saco Water Company Board of Directors

itlIDQ
David Briggs

Richard Hull III

Michael Morel

Wayne Sherman

Executive

eiIVv4LIA\
C.S Mansfield Jr

4-i4 t5ctwivt4L -4 -i1i
IL1 tr MM Cu

ttcAte tz/iç ccjr
rCV1 TIu-r

1trI1

LO
Wit

qO/

ot 40tiptcki4
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CU LA Mt1 4ff
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EXHIBIT 6.2

Deferred Compensation Plan



BIDDEFORD SACO WATER COMPANY
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN FOR

SELECT MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES

Article Introduction

The primary purpose of the Biddeford Saco Water Company Deferred Compensation Plan

for Select Management Employees the Plan is to provide competitive level of retirement in

come to eligible employees by permitting such employees to defer amounts of compensation that are

not deferred under the tax-qualified plan Biddeford Saco Water Company 401k Profit Sharing

Plan Trust Participation in the Plan shall be limited to select group of management or highly

compensated employees within the meaning of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of

1974 as amended The Plan takes effect October 2006

Article II Definitions

2.01 Additional Compensation shall mean the amount of Participants Compensation

that is paid as bonuses commissions overtime payments incentive payments and like forms of irre

gular or additional compensation

2.02 Administrator shall mean the Administrator appointed in accordance with Section

6.01

2.03 Board shall mean the Board of Directors of Biddeford Saco Water Company

2.04 Code shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended

2.05 Compensation shall mean the amount paid by the Employer to Participant for ser

vices rendered that is reportable on the Participants Form W-2 for federal income tax purposes and

shall not include any amount that is not includible in the Participants gross income pursuant to Code

Sections 125 402a8 402h or 403b

2.06 Deferral Account shall mean bookkeeping account established under the Plan to

which are credited contributions and income in accordance with Section 4.02

2.07 Employer shall mean Biddeford Saco Water Company

2.08 ERISA shall mean the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 as

amended

2.09 Participant shall mean member of select group of management or highly com

pensated employees of the Employer who is designated by the Board and listed on Schedule as

attached hereto and hereafter amended

/72



2.10 Plan shall mean the Biddeford Saco Water Company Deferred Compensation

Plan for Select Management Employees as set forth herein and hereafter amended

2.11 Plan Year shall mean the calendar year

2.12 Regular Compensation shall mean the amount of Participants Compensation for

Plan Year excluding the Participants Additional Compensation for such Plan Year

2.13 Unforeseeable Emergency shall mean severe financial hardship of the Participant

resulting from

An illness or accident of the Participant the Participants spouse or the Participants

dependent as defined in Code Section 152a

Loss of the Participants property due to casualty including the need to rebuild

home following damage to home not otherwise covered by insurance or

Other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as result of

events beyond the control of the Participant including any circumstance described in Proposed Trea

sury Regulation Section .409A-3g3i or other applicable guidance

Whether Participant has suffered an Unforeseeable Emergency shall be determined by the

Administrator based on the relevant facts and circumstances

Article III Deferral Election

3.01 Deferral Election Period The period for making deferral election for Plan Year

shall be the 30-day period ending on the first day of such Plan Year Notwithstanding the preceding

sentence to the contrary an employee of the Employer who is first designated as Participant during

Plan Year may make deferral election within the 30-day period following the designation but

such election shall apply only with respect to Regular Compensation Additional Compensation or

both as the case may be payable for services to be performed after the date the election is made

3.02 Deferred Compensation Agreement deferral election shall be made by delivering

deferred compensation agreement to the Administrator One agreement may be used to defer Regu
lar Compensation Additional Compensation or both when Participant makes such deferral elec

tions at one time The agreement shall be written instrument in the form prescribed by the Admin
istrator and executed by Participant and the Administrator which shall incorporate the terms of this

Plan by reference and shall include such additional terms and provisions not inconsistent with the

terms of this Plan as the Administrator may prescribe

3.03 Amount Each deferral election shall specify the percentage up to 100 percent of

Participants Regular Compensation Additional Compensation or both that shall be deferred for

Plan Year
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3.04 ModJIcation Under no circumstances may deferral election be made more fre

quently than once with respect to any Plan Year deferral election once made for Plan Year

may not be modified

3.05 Termination An election to defer Regular Compensation and Additional Compensa

tion shall continue in effect until the Participant terminates the election or ceases to be Participant

Participant may terminate an election to defer Regular Compensation and Addi

tional Compensation upon the occurrence of an Unforeseeable Emergency by delivering written

notice of termination to the Administrator Deferral shall cease as of the first payroll period follow

ing receipt of the notice by the Administrator Such notice shall not in any case be effective with re

spect to amounts previously deferred

If Participant ceases to be member of select group of management or highly

compensated employees within the meaning of ERTSA his or her deferral elections shall terminate

automatically but the loss of such status shall not cause amounts previously deferred to become pay
able other than in accordance with Article

Article IV Deferral Accounts

4.01 DeferralAccount The Employer shall maintain Deferral Account for each Partici

pant who has made deferral election

4.02 Adjustments The Administrator shall adjust Participants Deferral Account as fol

lows

At the end of each pay period credit such account with the amount if any deferred by

the Participant during such period

As of the first day of each month debit such account by the amount ifany distri

buted to the Participant or designated beneficiary since the date of the last monthly adjustment to

the account and ii credit such account with income at the applicable interest rates on the balance

as of the first day of the preceding month For purposes of this Section the applicable interest rate

for Plan Year shall be the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal on the first business day

of such Plan Year or such other rate as is prescribed in the deferred compensation agreement for

such Plan Year

4.03 Account Status Participant shall have at all times fully vested and nonforfeitable

right to his or her Deferral Account The Employer shall provide each Participant with an account

statement at least annually

Article Distributions

5.01 Distribution to Participant

Participants Deferred Account shall be paid to him or her in the form of lump

sum or in substantially equal consecutive installments over period not to exceed 10 years payable
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weekly monthly quarterly or annually as specified by the Participant in the applicable deferred

compensation agreement that the Participant executes The form of payment determined under this

paragraph may not be modified by subsequent deferred compensation agreements If Partici

pant executes subsequent deferred compensation agreement without specifying form of payment

for deferred amounts covered under the agreement the Participants initial deferred compensation

agreement shall govern the form of payment of amounts deferred under such subsequent agreement

plus earnings thereon

Payment shall be made on or shall commence with the first regular payroll day of the

month following the earlier of the dates determined under if the Participant has not specified

fixed date in the applicable deferred compensation agreement or

The date on which the Participant ceases to render any and all services to the

Employer Participant shall have ceased to render all services to the Employer when he or

she is neither employed by the Employer nor serving as member of the Board or of any

committee of the Employer or

The date on which the Participant attains specified age or such other fixed

date as specified by the Participant in the applicable deferred compensation agreement that

the Participant executes The date determined under this paragraph may not be modified

by subsequent deferred compensation agreements Such agreements however may specify

different payment date with respect to amounts deferred under such subsequent agreements

plus earnings thereon If Participant executes subsequent deferred compensation agree

ment without specifying payment date for deferred amounts covered under the agreement

the Participants initial deferred compensation agreement shall govern the time of payment

for amounts deferred under such agreement plus earnings thereon

5.02 Accelerated Distributions Notwithstanding Section 5.01 to the contrary distribu

tion to or on behalf of Participant shall be accelerated under the following circumstances

If Participant suffers an Unforeseeable Emergency that is not and may not be re
lieved through reimbursement or compensation from insurance or otherwise by liquidation of the

Participants assets to the extent such liquidation would not itself cause severe financial hardship

or by cessation of deferrals under the Plan the amount reasonably necessary to satisfy the emergency
need shall be paid to the Participant from his or her Deferred Account in lump sum The payment

may include any amounts necessary to pay any Federal state or local income taxes or penalties rea

sonably anticipated to result from the distribution but the amount reasonably necessary shall also

take account of additional compensation to the Participant resulting from cancellation of his or her

deferral election In addition iffollowing the death of Participant his or her beneficiary or benefi

ciaries suffers an Unforeseeable Emergency the foregoing shall apply as if the beneficiary were

Participant

distribution shall be accelerated for domestic relations orders to pay the Federal In

surance Contributions Act FICA taxes or taxes required under Section 409A of the Code or to dis

tribute Participants account balance if it is $10000 or less as permitted by applicable Treasury

regulations under Section 409A of the Code



5.03 Distribution Upon Death

In the event of Participants death his or her Deferred Account shall be paid to the

beneficiary that has been designated pursuant to subsection in lump sum or in substantially

equal consecutive annual installments over period not to exceed 10 years as elected by the Partici

pant pursuant to subsection If payment commenced in accordance with Section 5.01 prior to the

Participants death payment shall continue in accordance with the form of payment then in effect

Participant shall specify the manner in which payment shall be made to his or her

designated beneficiary in the first deferred compensation agreement that the Participant executes

The manner of payment under all subsequent deferred compensation agreements shall be governed

by the terms of the Participants initial deferred compensation agreement

Each Participant shall from time to time by completing and signing form furnished

by the Administrator designate any person or persons who may be designated concurrently contin

gently or successively the Participants estate or any trust or trusts created by the Participant to

receive amounts that are payable under this Plan to the Participants designated beneficiary or bene

ficiaries Each beneficiary designation shall revoke all prior designations and will be effective only

when filed in writing with the Administrator If Participant fails to designate beneficiary or if

beneficiary dies before the date of such Participants death and no contingent beneficiary has been

designated then the amounts which are payable as aforesaid shall be paid to the Participants estate

If payment of benefits to beneficiary commences and such beneficiary dies before all amounts to

which such beneficiary is entitled have been paid the remaining benefits shall be paid to the succes

sive beneficiary or beneficiaries ifany designated by the Participant otherwise to the beneficiarys

estate

5.04 Distributions to Specfled Employees If stock of the Employer is publicly traded on

an established securities market or otherwise as of the date of the Participants separation from ser

vice and the Participant is key employee on such date then notwithstanding any other provision

of this Plan any payment due upon such separation from service shall be paid six months follow

ing the date on which such payment would otherwise be made ifthe Participant were not key em
ployee Whether the Employee is key employee shall be determined pursuant to Code Section

409A and the regulations thereunder with the identification date being each December 31 and the

determination being applicable for the 12-month period beginning on the following April

Article VI Administration

6.01 Appointment From time to time the Board shall appoint one or more persons to

serve as the Administrator The Board or subdivision thereof shall exercise the power and fulfill the

responsibilities of the Administrator if at any time an Administrator has not been appointed he

reunder or the position is otherwise vacant

6.02 Power and Responsibilities The complete authority to control and to manage the op
eration and administration of the Plan shall be placed in the Administrator The Administrator shall

have sole discretion to construe the Plan and to determine all questions relating to eligibility for and
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entitlement to benefits Further the Administrator shall have the sole discretion to determine the

time and form of benefit payments under the Plan

6.03 Rules Subject to the provisions of this Plan the Administrator fromtime to time may

establish rules for the administration and interpretation of the Plan Such rules may be changed

without advance notice to Participants The determination of the Administrator as to any disputed

questions shall be conclusive All actions decisions and interpretations of the Administrator in ad

ministering the Plan shall be performed in uniform and nondiscriminatory manner

6.04 Claims Procedure If any person believes that he or she is entitled to distribution

hereunder but has not received notice of such distribution or believes that the amount of any distri

bution is incorrect he or she shall submit written claim for distribution or corrected distribution

to the Administrator In the event that such claim is denied the Administrator shall give written no

tice of such denial to the claimant by certified or registered mail within sixty 60 days after the

claim was filed with the Administrator provided however that such 60-day period may be extended

to one hundred twenty 120 days by the Administrator if it determines that special circumstances

exist which require an extension of the time required for processing the claim Such denial shall set

forth

the specific reason or reasons for the denial

the specific Plan provisions on which the denial is based

any additional material or information necessary for the claimant to perfect the claim

and an explanation of why such material or information is necessary and

an explanation of the Plans claim review procedure

Following receipt of such denial the claimant or his or her duly authorized representative

may

aa request review of the denial by filing written application for review with the Admin
istrator within sixty 60 days after receipt by the claimant of such denial

bb review documents pertinent to the claim at such reasonable time and location as shall

be mutually agreeable to the claimant and the Administrator and

cc submit issues and comments in writing to the Administrator relating to its review of

the claim

The Administrator shall after consideration of the application for review render decision

and shall give written notice thereof to the claimant by certified or registered mail within sixty 60
days after receipt by the Administrator of the application for review provided however that such

60-day period may be extended to one hundred twenty 120 days by the Administrator if it deter

mines that special circumstances exist which require an extension of the time required for processing

the application for review Such notice shall include specific reasons for the decision and specific

references to the pertinent Plan provisions on which the decision is based
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6.05 Claim Exhaustion and Time Limitations Before pursuing legal remedy claimant

shall first exhaust all claims review and appeals procedures under the Plan No action may be

brought in court on claim for benefits under this Plan after the later ofi two years after the claim

arose or ii one year after the decision on appeal under the previous section or one year after the

expiration of the time to take an appeal ifno appeal is taken

6.06 Administrative Committee If committee is appointed as the Administrator any act

that the Plan authorizes or requires the Administrator to do may be done by majority of its mem
bers The action of such majority expressed from time to time by vote at meeting or in writing

without meeting shall constitute the action of the Administrator and shall have the same effect for

all purposes as ifassented to by all members of the Administrator at the time in office The members

of the Administrator may authorize one or more oftheir number to execute or deliver any instrument

make any payment or perform any other act which the Plan authorizes or requires the Administrator

to do

6.07 Delegation The Administrator may employ counsel and other agents may delegate

ministerial duties to such agents or to employees of the Employer and may procure such clerical ac

counting actuarial consulting and other services as it may require in carrying out the provisions of

the Plan

6.08 IndemnJIcation The Employer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Administrator

and any member of the Administrator if committee is appointed as the Administratoragainst all

expenses and liabilities arising out of its acts or omissions with respect to the Plan provided the

Administrator would be entitled to indemnification pursuant to the by-laws of the Employer

Article VII Miscellaneous

7.01 Termination or Amendment The Board in its sole discretion may terminate this Plan

or amend the Plan in whole or in part provided that no such termination or amendment shall have

the effect of

terminating or modifying any Participants deferral election in effect for the year in

which such Plan termination or amendment occurs except to the extent permitted under Article III

reducing any Participants Deferred Account as of the date of such termination or

amendment

accelerating the time or form of distribution of any Participants Deferred Account

except to the extent permitted by Code Section 409A and the regulations thereunder or

restricting any right of Participant beneficiary or other person or estate entitled to

benefits hereunder

7.02 EmployersRights Nothing contained herein shall confer upon Participant the right

to be retained in the service of the Employer or any other right not expressly provided for herein nor

will the existence of this Plan impair the right of the Employer to discharge or otherwise deal with

Participant



W2$ PM 8iddeforcI sa.co wc.tr Co 2t1 22 t44 PI.S

7.03 Participants Rights This Plan is unuSed forpurposes of the Code and ERISA and

is not intended to meet the requirements of Section 401aofthe Code and should be interpreted ac

cordingly This Plan constitutes mere promise by the Employer to make benefit payments in the

future and the Participant hereunder shall have no greater rights than general unsecured creditor of

the Employer Participants and their beneficiaries heirs successors and assigns shall have no legal

or equitable rights claims or interest in any specific property or assets of the Employer

7.04 Accounts NotAssignable The Administrator shall pay all amounts payable hereunder

only to the person or persons designated by the Plan and not to any other person or corporation To

the maximum extent permitted by law no right or benefit under this Plan shall be assignable or sub

ject in any manner to alienation sale transfer claims of creditors pledge attachment or encum
brances of any kind If court orders an assignment of benefits despite the previous two sentences4

the affected Participants benefit will be reduced accordingly

7.05 Forfeiture Participants benefit from the Plan maybe forfeited on account of lost

payee eseheat law recapture of amounts improperly credited to Parti.cipmts Deferral Account or

improperly paid to or with respect to Participant expenses paid from Participants Deferral ke

count or investment losses If payee is lost but the Participant or his or her beneficiary later

claims such benefit such benefit shall be reinstated without interest or earnings for the forfeiture pe
riod

7.06 Documents Each Participant shall receive copy of this Plan and thc Administrator

will make available for inspection by the Participant copy of any rules and regulations adopted by
the Administrator in administering the Plan Each Participant also will receive copy of any docu

ments pertaining to trust if the Employer decides to set up trust to hold any assets or insurance

policies under he Plan

07 Taxes Any and all taxes that may be due and owing with respect to any payment
made under the Plan shall be the sole responsibility of tho persons to whom and for whose benefit

such payment is made The Employer shall have the right to withhold from any payment made under

the Plan all amounts that are required by law to be withheld

7.08 Governing Law This Plan is established under and will be construed according to the

laws of the State of Maine except to the extent such laws maybe preempted by ERISA

IN WITNESS WHEREOF Biddetbrd Save Water Company has caused this document to

he executed by its duly authonzed officer on this j2ne day 2006 to be effec

tive as of October 2006

BIDDEFORI SACO WATER COMPANY

By________________
WyneA Sherman

Clerk

/J



SCHEDULE

The following persons are Participants within the meaning of Section 2.09 of the Plan

Clifford Mansfield Jr President and Treasurer



EXHIBIT 6.3

Severance Compensation Plan



SEVERANCE COMPENSATION

POLICY It is the policy of the Biddefordi and Saco Water Company BSWC to provide

severance compensation to Officers who ae tenninated by BSWC or whose

responsibilities change substantially because of either change in governance of BSWC
or change in control of BSWC Severance compensation is not to be paid to an Officer

or his/her Estate in the event of voluntary termination termination for cause or

termination because of the death or disabilty of the Officer

the term Officer applies to the President

rc

PAYMENT AMOUNT An Officers sevrance compensation shall equal two months of

the Officers current salary for every year bf employment at BSWC but not to be less

than three months nor more than twenty-four months salary Under special

circumstances and in the sole discretion othe Board of Directors of BSWC one

additional month of pay will be provided lieu of formal termination notice to the

Officer Such payments shall be made mcnthly to the Officer unless lump sum

termination payment is elected as hereafte provided During the period of severance

pay the Officer will not continue to accru earned time but will continue to receive all

other benefits such as pension accruals ahd health dental life and disability group

insurance as well as continue to be responsible for all associated payroll deduction

obligations In the event that severance cdmpensation is to be paid to an Officer because

of either change in governance of BSWt or change in control of BSWC and the

period and/or benefits of the severance co1npensation that would be available under

similarcircumstances to the corresponding Officer of either the parent organization or the

business entity that is acquiring control
or governance of BSWC are greater than those

available under this policy the severance ompensation for the BSWC Officers may be

adjusted to match that available to the cortesponding Officer of said parent organization

or business entity at the sole discretion o1 each individual BSWC Officer

LUMP SUM PAYMENT terminated fficer eligible for severance compensation

because of change in governance or confrol may elect to receive lump sum severance

compensation payment equal to the preseiit value of the flow of cash payments that

would otherwise be paid to the Officer pusuant to the policy The twelve 12 month

U.S Treasury Bill rate shall be used as th discount rate in such cases

LIMIT ON COMPENSATION Notwithtanding anything else in thi policy and solely

in the event of termination based on 4ange in control of BSWC the amount of

severance compensation paid to the Officer shall not include any amount that the BSWC
would be prohibited from deducting for federal income tax purposes by virtue of 280G

of the Internal Revenue Code or any succ ssor provision so-called golden parachute

payments

SCOPE This policy and any reference tc

Treasurer and Assistant Treasurer of BSV

DEFiNITION Change in Control shall

that any person and all other persons who
mean the time that the BSWC first determines

constitute group within the meaning of

/Y12



Severance Compensation

Page of

June 14 2001

13d2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Exchange Act have acquired direct

or indirect beneficial ownership within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange

Act of twenty percent 20% or more of BSWCs outstanding securities

CONTINGENCIES Severance compensation is contingent upon the Officers

acceptance of formal severance agreement which among other matters releases BSWC
from and against any and all claims costs and/or liabilities by the Officer because of or

associated with the termination except for any breaches by BSWC of this policy Such

compensation is also contingent upon the Officer having been in the employ of BSWC
for one continuous year prior to termination

OUTPLACEMENT COUNSELING maximum of $5000.00 for outplacement

counseling services will also be provided to the Officer as appropriate

COMPLIANCE All severance arrangements will comply with applicable state and

federal regulations and laws including but not limited to the Age Discrimination in

Employment Act Title VII of the Civil Rights Act and the Maine Jiuman Rights Act

Approved by VOTE of the Board of Directors of the Biddeford and Saco Water

Company on June 14 2001

ooster

Chairman

4__
C.S Mansfield Jr

President/Treasur4

1j d%
Clerk

1-1//I



EXHIBIT 6.4

Line of Credit Agreement with Biddeford Savings Bank



REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS REVOLVING LINE OF CREDIT AGREEMENT is dated as of October /P
2001 by and between BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY Maine corporation

having business address of 181 Elm Street Biddeford Maine 04005 herein called

Borrower and BIDDEFORD SAVINGS BANK Maine banking corporation with

principal place of business at 254 Main Street Biddeford Maine 04005 herein called

Lender

In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises hereinafter set forth Borrower and

Lender agree as follows

Definition of Terms For the purposes of this Agreement unless the context otherwise

requires the following terms when capitalized shall have the meanings assigned to them in this

section If such terms are not capitalized they shall have the meaning of the capitalized term or

standard dictionary meaning depending upon the context

LIBOR shall mean the rate per annum rounded upward if necessary to the nearest

1/32 of one percent as determined on the basis of the offered rates for deposits in U.S Dollars

for the respective selected time period i.e thirty sixty ninety or one hundred eighty days

Interest Period which appears in the Wall Street Journal as the London Interbank Offering

Rate on the day that is two London Banking Days preceding the first day of the Interest

Period

Prime rate shall mean the highest prime rate then prevailing as published in the Wall

Street Journal or its successor publication for unsecured loans to responsible commercial or

industrial customers

Interest Period shall mean the time period calculated in days selected by Borrower for

which interest shall remain fixed if Borrower elects the LIBOR interest alternative described

below

Loan Documents shall mean the Loan Documents the Commitment Letter from

Biddeford Savings Bank to Borrower dated May 30 2001 and signed by Borrower on July 27

2001 and as supplemented by letter from Biddeford Savings Bank to Borrower dated June 18

2001 copies of which are attached as Schedule this Agreement any notes or other agreements

setting forth repayment obligations including any renewals extensions and refundings thereof

any mortgage security agreements or financing documents and any agreements or documents

and with respect to this Agreement and such other agreements and documents any amendments

or supplements thereto or modifications thereof executed or delivered pursuant to the terms of

this Agreement or the Commitment Letter all with respect to the $1250000.00 revolving credit

line



Generally Accepted Accounting Principles shall mean those generally accepted

accounting principles and practices which are recognized as such by the American Institute of

Certified Public Accountants acting through its Accounting Principles Board or by the Financial

Accounting Standards Board or through other appropriate boards or committees thereof and

which are consistently applied for all periods after the date hereof so as to properly reflect the

financial conditions and the results of operations and changes in financial position of Borrower

and its consolidated subsidiaries except that any accounting principle or practice required to be

changed by the said Accounting Principles Board or Financial Accounting Standards Board or

other appropriate board or committee of the said Boards in order to continue as generally

accepted accounting principal or practice may so be changed In the event of change in

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Lender and Borrower will thereafter negotiate in

good faith to revise any covenants of this Agreement affected thereby in order to make such

covenants consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles then in effect

Working Capital shall be defined as Current Assets less Current Liabilities

Current Assets shall mean all assets of Borrower which may be properly classified as

current assets in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Current Liabilities shall mean all liabilities of Borrower which may be properly

classified as current liabilities in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

Commitment Letter is that letter from Biddeford Savings Bank to Borrower dated May

30 2001 and signed by Borrower on July 27 2001 and as supplemented by letter from

Biddeford Savings Bank to Borrower dated June 18 2001 copies of which are attached as

Schedule

Indebtedness means at any date and without duplication all items except items of

capital stock or capital paid-in surplus or retained earnings which are in accordance with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles would be included in determining total liabilities as

shown on the liability side of the consolidated balance sheet of the Borrower as of the date on

which such indebtedness is to be determined including the obligations and liabilities of the

Borrower for borrowed money and any lease of property real personal or mixed which under

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles should be capitalized on Borrowers balance sheet

iiall indebtedness secured by any mortgage pledge lien or conditional sale or other title

retention agreement to which any property or asset held by such Borrower is subject whether or

not the indebtedness so secured thereby shall have been assumed iii all indebtedness of others

which Borrower without the proper written consent of Bank have directly or indirectly

guaranteed endorsed or sold with recourse or agreed contingent or otherwise to purchase or

repurchase or otherwise acquire or in respect of which the Borrower has agreed to supply or

advance funds whether by way of loan stock purchase capital contributions or otherwise or

otherwise to become directly or indirectly liable and iv the unfunded or unreimbursed portion

of all letters of credit issued for the account of Borrower



Total Assets are all assets of Borrower determined in accordance with Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles

Total Liabilities are all liabilities of Borrower determined in accordance with Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles

Intangible Assets are those assets of Borrower which are not physical in nature and

have no mathematical certainty of value expressed in dollar terms such as goodwill covenants

not to compete franchise patents trademarks or similar items determined in accordance with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Assets located and notes and receivables due from

obligors domiciled outside of the United States of America shall also be Intangible Assets

Affiliate of Borrower shall mean any person firm or entity directly or indirectly

controlling controlled by or under common control with Borrower For the purposes of this

definition control including with correlative meanings the terms controlled by and under

common control with as used with respect to Borrower or any other person firm or entity

shall mean the possession directly or indirectly of the power to direct or cause the direction of

the management and policies of Borrower whether through the ownership of Voting Shares or

by contract or otherwise

Tangible Net Worth shall be the Total Assets of Borrower less Intangible Assets and

less Total Liabilities

Debt Service Coverage shall be the ratio of net operating income plus depreciation to

principal and interest payments due under all indebtedness of Borrower Such determination

shall be made in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and shall be on

consolidated basis

General Terms and Credit Arrangements

2.1 Subject to the terms of this Agreement Lender agrees to make Advances to

Borrower which shall not exceed the Ceiling Amount at any one time outstanding of ONE
MILLION TWO HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS $1250000.00 which the

Borrower may borrow in full or in part repay in full or in part and reborrow in accordance with

the terms of this Agreement

2.2 The interest rate for each advance will be set at the highest prime rate then

prevailing as published in the Wall Street Journal or its successor publication minus One

Percent 1% adjusted daily or the thirty 30 sixty60 ninety 90 or one hundred eighty

180 day LIBOR plus One and Eighty Five Hundredths Percent 1.85% which shall be fixed for

the interest period initially selected by the Borrower and reset at the end of said duration at

which time the Borrower may make an alternative selection among those set forth above In the

event that the Borrower fails to make an alternative selection it shall be deemed to have selected

/4/



the highest prime rate then prevailing in the Wall Street Journal or its successor publication

minus One Percent 1% adjusted daily

Said interest at said rates as they may vary from time to time shall be paid monthly in

arrears on the Twentieth day of each succeeding month hereafter herein called Monthly

Payment Date with final payment of interest when the indebtedness evidenced hereby is paid

in full If any such monthly interest payments are not paid when due the entity entitled to

payment hereunder may collect late charge not to exceed Five Cents $.05 for each dollar of

each such payment more than Ten 10 days in arrears Upon default in the terms and conditions

of the Loan Documents the interest rate on the sums due hereunder shall be three percent 3%
per annum above the rate otherwise due

Interest shall be computed on the basis of the actual number of days outstanding based

upon 360 day year

In the event the Wall Street Journal or its successor publication shall no longer publish

such base rate prime rate or LIBOR rate Lender may select an index rate which is based upon

similaror comparable factors as used in determining the prime rate or base rate

2.3 Principal amounts together with any accrued interest advanced under an interest

rate calculated or any of the aforesaid prime rate bases may be prepaid at any time Principal

amounts together with any outstanding interest advanced under an interest rate calculated on any

of the aforesaid LIBOR basis may only be paid at the end of the LIBOR interest rate period and

not otherwise Borrower shall specify which particular advance is being paid at such time that

any payment is made in the event that Borrower does not so specif the Lender shall apply any

such payment to that portion of sums advanced and then outstanding that are then being

calculated on the highest prime then prevailing as published in the Wall Street Journal or its

successor publication minus One Percent 1% adjusted daily

The commitment of Lender to make further Advances under this Agreement may be

terminated by Lender upon the occurrence of any of the Events of Default under Section hereof

and in any event shall terminate on June 30 2002 All other rights and duties of the parties

hereto shall continue in full force and effect until the total sums due Lender hereunder including

principal interest and any other proper charges provided for herein are paid in full

2.4 Borrower hereby requests and authorizes Lender to

2.4.1 Charge Borrowers Revolving Credit Line and credit Borrowers checking account

with Lender for sums as requested by Borrowers properly executed check or draft received by

Lender if required by Lender otherwise as requested orally by Borrower as long as such oral

requests are permitted by Lender In lieu of crediting Borrowers checking account with Lender

Lender may if requested by Borrower disburse Advances hereunder by check or cash or wire or

otherwise transfer Advances hereunder to the account of Borrower at another lending institution

or at Borrowers request make Advances to others for the account of Borrower hereunder



Borrower understands and agrees that any checks or drafts drawn on Borrowers Revolving

Credit Line shall be in the minimum amount of Five Thousand Dollars $5000.00

2.4.2 Bill Borrower for interest due hereunder as of each succeeding Monthly Payment

Date

2.4.3 Record all Advances payments and interest properly chargeable or creditable in

accordance with customary accounting practice arising out of this Agreement to Borrowers

Revolving Credit Line ledger maintained by Lender Lender shall render monthly statement of

interest due and the then outstanding principal balance and other items shown thereon shall be

considered correct complete accepted by and conclusively binding upon Borrower unless

Borrower gives Lender written notice of exceptions within twenty 20 days from the mailing by
Lender to Borrower of any such written statement

2.5 Except as expressly stated in this Agreement Lender does not directly or

indirectly have any obligation or duty of any kind whatsoever to renew or extend any

indebtedness of Borrower to Lender to grant or extend any further loans or credit to Borrower to

amend modify or supplement this Agreement or to otherwise alter its present rights powers or

remedies Notwithstanding the foregoing this Revolving Line of Credit Agreement shall be

automatically extended for an additional year unless on or before May of any year either party

receives written notice from the other to the contrary

Representations and Warranties In order to induce Lender to make the advances

Borrower represents and warrants to Lender that

Biddeford and Saco Water Company is corporation duly organized and in good

standing under the laws of the State of Maine and has the power to own its

property and to carry on its business in each jurisdiction in which Borrower

operates

Borrower has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement to make the

borrowing hereunder to execute and deliver the Loan Documents and to incur the

obligations provided for in the Loan Documents all of which have been duly

authorized by all necessary corporate action

the Loan Documents are the legal and binding obligations of Borrower
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms except as limited by

bankruptcy insolvency or other laws or general application relating to the

enforcement of creditors rights

neither the execution and delivery of this Agreement and the other Loan

Documents nor consummation of any of the transactions herein or therein

contemplated nor compliance with the terms and provisions hereof or thereof

will contravene or conflict with any provision of law statute or regulation to
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which Borrower is subject or any judgment license order or permit applicable to

Borrower or any indenture mortgage deed or trust or other instrument to which

Borrower maybe subject no consent approval authorization or order of any

court governmental authority or third party is required in connection with the

execution and delivery by Borrower of this Agreement or any of the other Loan

Documents or to consummate the transactions contemplated herein or therein

all financial statements delivered by Borrower to Lender prior to the date hereof

are true and correct fairly present the financial condition of such Borrower and

have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting

Principles consistently applied and no material adverse changes have occurred in

the financial condition or business of Borrower since the date of the most recent

financial statements which Borrower have delivered to Lender

no litigation investigation or governmental proceeding is pending or to the

knowledge of any of Borrowers officers threatened against or affecting

Borrower which may result in any material adverse change in Borrowers

business properties or operations

there is no fact known to Borrower that Borrower has not disclosed to Lender in

writing which may result in any material adverse change in Borrowers business

properties or operations

Borrower owns all of the assets reflected on its most recent balance sheet free and

clear of all liens security interests or other encumbrances except as previously

disclosed in writing to Lender

the principal office chief executive office and principal place of business of

Borrower is in Biddeford Maine

all taxes required to be paid by Borrower have in fact been paid

Borrower is not knowingly in violation of any law ordinance governmental rule

or regulation to which it is subject and is not in default under any material

agreement contract or understanding to which it is party and

Borrower and any properties or assets owned by Borrower are not in violation of

in any material respect any environmental laws nor is there existing pending or

threatened any investigation or inquiry by any governmental authority pursuant to

any environmental laws nor is there existing or pending any remedial obligations

under any environmental laws Borrower represents warrants and covenants that

the execution delivery and performance of this Agreement and any other

documents required by Lender relating to this loan transaction are not violation

of nor contrary to any covenants warranties or agreements of Borrower with any
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other persons or parties This Agreement evidences loan for business and

commercial purposes and not for personal family or household purposes

Affirmative Covenants Borrower covenants that from and after the date hereof and so

long as the Loan Documents are in effect or any amounts remain unpaid on account of any one or

more of the Advances it will comply with the following terms

4.1 Financial Data Borrower will maintain full and correct books and records

showing in detail the earnings and expenses of the business of Borrower will permit Lender and

its representatives to examine the books and records and all supporting vouchers and data any

time and from time to time upon request by Lender at its place of business in Biddeford Maine

or at such other place as Borrowers books and records may be customarily kept All financial

data which has been or may hereafter be furnished to Lender to induce it to enter into this

Agreement or otherwise does or shall fairly represent the financial condition of Borrower and all

other information furnished Lender shall be accurate and complete insofar as necessary to give

Lender true and accurate description of Borrowers financial condition Borrower shall furnish

all such financial information as Lender may request in form and frequency deemed

appropriate by Lender in particular Borrower shall furnish to Lender each year the annual

audited financial statement of Borrower including the balance sheet income statement and

statement of cash flows prepared and certified by certified public accountant or other person

acceptable to Lender within one Hundred Twenty 120 days after the end of Borrowers fiscal

year and shall furnish quarterly financial statements either management prepared or Certified

Public Accountant prepared compilations within Ninety 90 days of the end of such period

4.2 Financial covenants Borrower will maintain minimum Debt Service

Coverage ratio measured annually of .2x calculated as follows

Net operating income depreciation

Annual principal interest payments

and maximum debt to Tangible Net Worth ratio as follows 2.51 at December 31 2001

and thereafter

4.3 Notice of Default Litigation Borrower will promptly give notice in writing to

Lender ofa the occurrence of any default or event of default under the Loan Documents or

under any other agreement or instrument relating to any obligation of Borrower for borrowed

money and any material adverse change in the business affairs of the Borrower

4.4 Use of Proceeds Borrower will use all Advances requested hereunder exclusively

as working capital for the ongoing operations of Borrowers business as water utility company
and for no other purposes without the prior written approval of Lender

4.5 Costs To the extent allowed by law Borrower agrees to reimburse Lender for all

expenses incurred by Lender in connection with the enforcement of Lenders rights under this

Agreement Lender is authorized to pay at any time and from time to time any or all of such



expenses add the amount of such payment to the amount of the indebtedness and charge interest

thereon at the highest prime rate then prevailing as published in the Wall Street Journal or its

successor publication minus One Percent 1% adjusted daily and together with any default

rates or changes specified herein

4.6 Deposit Accounts Borrower will maintain all primary depository accounts with

Lender during the term of this financing Borrower agrees to transfer its operating payroll and

dividend accounts to Lender In the event that Borrower fails to maintain said accounts the

failure shall be deemed an event of default hereunder

Negative Covenants Until payment in full of the Advances and all other obligations and

liabilities of Borrower hereunder Borrower covenants that it shall not unless Lender shall

otherwise consent in writing

create incur or assume any indebtedfess or bo ow money except for the

Advances iitrade debt incurred i4 the ordinary course of Borrowers business

and iii any existing or new debt reflected on Borrowers most recent balance

sheet under the August 1923 Ind4-iture as the same may have been amended

restated or replaced or any existingltax exempt indebtedness

sell any of its accounts receivable with or without recourse

endorse guarantee or otherwise become liable for the obligations.of any person

firm or corporation except for endorsements of negotiable instruments by

Borrower in the ordinary course of business

liquidate dissolve or reorganize or merge or consolidate with or acquire all or

substantially all of the assets of any other company firm or association or make

any other substantial change in its capitalization or its business if after giving

effect to such transfer an event of default would occur

own purchase or acquire directly or indirectly any promissory notes stock or

securities of any other person firm or corporation other than securities

guaranteed as to the principal and interest by the United States Government or

make any loans or advances to any other person except that reasonable

shareholder loans or employee advances may be made

permit any transfer of Borrowers funds to be made to any Affiliate except for

directors fees royalties and/or license fee payments and except for transfers

between each other

Borrower further covenants that if it is in default of its obligations to make any payment

of principal or interest hereunder and has received written notice of said default from Lender it

shall not pay any dividends on any of its outstanding stock or purchase redeem or repurchase

any of its stock
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Security Borrowers obligations under this Agreement are unsecured In the event of

default Lender reserves the right to demand that the obligations of Borrower become secured or

Lender may take all actions deemed appropriate by Lender in its sole discretion to obtain

secured position including without limitation recourse to legal and equitable remedies

Events of Default Upon the occurrence of any of the following Events of Default

7.1.1 The issuance or filing of any attachment levy or other judicial process of or on

Borrower or on any of its assets or the sale or other disposition by Borrower of any of its assets

or property except in the ordinary course of business or the insolvency or business failure of

Borrower or an assignment for the benefit of creditors of Borrower or commencement of any

proceedings under any state or federal bankruptcy or insolvency law or laws for the relief of

debtors by or against Borrower or the appointment of receiver trustee or court appointee for

all or any part of the property of Borrower or

7.1.2 Failure to pay any of the monthly interest payments Advances or any other

indebtedness or charge hereunder when due or

7.1.3 If any representation or warranty or any statement of material fact made by

Borrower in this Agreement or in any certificate report financial or other statement furnished at

any time under or in connection with this Agreement is untrue in any material respect or

7.1.4 Default in the observance or perfonnance of any covenants or agreements

contained in this Agreement or any other instrument given to secure this Agreement now or

hereafter or any guaranty of the obligations created hereunder or

7.1.5 If there shall occur and be continuing any event which constitutes or which with

the lapse of time or the giving of notice or both would constitute default under any other

evidence of indebtedness relating to any existing or future obligation of Borrower for borrowed

money or

7.1.6 The occurrence of such change in the condition or affairs financial or

otherwise of the Borrower as in the good faith judgment of Lender materially impairs the

prospect of payments due and to be due Lender under this Agreement or

7.1.7 The failure of Borrower or any Guarantor of Borrowers obligations to observe the

terms of the commitment letter from Biddeford Savings Bank to Borrower dated May 30 2001

and signed by Borrower on July 27 2001 and as supplemented by letter from Biddeford

Savings Bank to Borrower dated June 18 2001 copies of which are attached as Schedule

Then and in any such event Lender may declare by notice of default given to Borrower

the Commitments hereunder immediately terminated and may in addition declare any and all

Advances and other indebtedness hereunder to be forthwith due and payable whereupon said

Commitments shall be terminated and the principal amount of such Advances and other



indebtedness hereunder together with accrued interest and other charges thereon shall become

immediately due and payable without presentment demand protest or other notice of any kind

all of which are hereby expressly waived

Miscellaneous

8.1 Nolic All notices requests and demands to or upon the respective parties

hereto shall be deemed to have been given or made when hand delivered as follows or when

deposited in the mails postage prepaicl addressed as follows or to such other address as may be

hereafter designated in writing by the respective parties hereto

Borrower Biddeford and Saco Water Company
181 Elm Street

Biddeford Maine 04005

Attention Clifford Mansfield Jr President

Lender Biddeford Savings Bank

254 Main Street

Biddeford Maine 04005

Attention Peter Sylvestre Vice President

8.2 Stoff During the continuance of an Event of Default any deposits or other sums
credited by or due from Lender to Borrower or other property of Borrower held by Lender may
be set off against any and all liabilities direct or indirect absolute or contingent due or to

become due now existing or hereafter arising of Borrower to Lender to the extent allowed by
law

8.3 No Waiver Cumulative Remedies No failure to exercise and no delay in

exercising on the part of Lender any right power or privilege hereunder shall operate as

waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise of any right power or privilege hereunder

preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right power or

privilege The rights and remedies herein provided are cumulative and not exclusive of any rights

or remedies provided by law

8.4 Successors This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of

Borrower Lender and their respective successors heirs and assigns provided however that the

rights and duties of Borrower arising hereunder are not assignable delegable or otherwise

transferable by Borrower without consent of Lender Lender shall have the absolute and

unconditional right to assign the obligations of Lender hereunder without the consent of or

notice to Borrower



8.5 Governing Law This Agreement and the other Loan Documents are being

executed and delivered and are intended to be performed in the State of Maine and the

substantive Laws of Maine shall govern the validity construction enforcement and interpretation

of this Agreement and all other loan documents except to the extent otherwise specified

therein or ii federal laws governing maximum interest rates shall provide for rates of interest

higher than those permitted under the Laws of the State of Maine

8.6 Invalid Provisions If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal

invalid or unenforceable by court of competentjurisdiction then such provision shall be

severed from this Agreement and the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect

and shall not be affected by the illegal invalid or unenforceable provision or by its severance

from this Agreement

8.7 Expenses Borrower will promptly pay all reasonable costs fees and expenses

paid or incurred by Lender incident to this Agreement or incident to the collection of the Loans

hereunder including the fees and expenses of counsel to Lender

8.8 Ikadinga Section headings are for convenience of reference only and shall in no

way affect the interpretation of this Agreement

8.9 Oral Modification Borrower and Lender hereby acknowledge that under

Maine law no promise contract or agreement to lend money extend credit forebear from

collection of debt or make any other accommodation for the repayment of debt for more than

$250000.00 may be enforced in court against the Lender unless the promise contract or

agreement is in writing signed by the Lender Accordingly Borrower cannot enforce any oral

promise unless it is contained in Loan Document signed by Lender nor can any change

forbearance or other accommodation relating to the loan this Agreement or any loan document

be enforced unless it is in writing and signed by Lender Borrower hereby acknowledges that

all future promises contracts or agreements of the Lender relating to any other transaction

between Borrower and Lender cannot be enforced in court unless they are in writing and signed

bLenikr Borrower further agrees that the requirement of writing described in this paragraph

shall apply to this Agreement and any associated loan documents any extensions modifications

renewals forbearances or any other accommodations relating to this Agreement or said

associated loan documents and to any other credit relationship between Borrower and the Lender

whether existing now or created in the future whether or not the amount involved exceeds

$250000.00

8.10 WAWER OF RIGHT TO JURY TRIAL IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED BY
AND BETWEEN BORROWER AND LENDER THAT BOTH PARTIES HEREBY
KNOWINGLY INTELLIGENTLY AND VOLUNTARILY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN

ANY ACTION PROCEEDING COUNTERCLAIM OBJECTION TO CLAIM IN

BANKRUPTCY CASE OR OTHER LITIGATION OR CLAIM OF ANY TYPE BROUGHT
BY EITHER BORROWER OR LENDER AGAINST THE OTHER ARISING OUT OF OR IN

ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS MORTGAGE THE NOTE OR THE OBLIGATIONS

WITHOUT IN ANY WAY LIMITING THE SCOPE OR EFFECT OF THIS WAIVER BOTH

11
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PARTIES SPECIFICALLY AGREE THAT THIS WAIVER SHALL BE EFFECTIVE IN ANY
ACTION ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO ANY ALLEGED
MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENT OF THE TERMS OF THE MORTGAGE NOTE OR
OBLIGATIONS OR ANY LOAN EVIDENCED THEREBY WHETHER IN WRITING

ORAL OR BY ALLEGED CONDUCT iiANY ENFORCEMENT OR ATTEMPTED
ENFORCEMENT OF ANY OF THE TERMS OR PROVISIONS OF THIS MORTGAGE THE

NOTE OR THE OBLIGATIONS iNCLUDiNG WITHOUT LIMITATiON FORECLOSURE
AND iii ANY CHALLENGE WHETHER BY CLAIM COUNTERCLAIM DEFENSE OR

OTHERWISE TO THE EXISTENCE VALIDITY OR ENFORCEABILITY OF THE

MORTGAGE THE NOTE OR THE OBLIGATIONS OR ANY LOANS EVIDENCED

THEREBY OR ANY TERM OR PROVISION THEREOF

iN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Revolving Credit

Agreement to be executed as of the date first written above

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY

By C4 4f 77

Its Prc4 74I
It

revcorp6/O 129151 2/zdir
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Biddeford Savings
wiwt

September 2008

Mr Clifford Mansfield Jr

President

Biddeford and Saco Water Company

181 Elm Street

Biddeford Maine 04005

Dear Jerry

Biddeford Savings Bank is pleased to extend $500000 increase to $2250000 on an existing unsecured

line of credit to Biddeford and Saco Water Company This letter when properly signed and accepted will

constitute an agreement between Biddeford Savings Bank of Biddeford Maine hereinafter referred to as

the Bank which agrees to lend and Biddeford and Saco Water Company of Biddeford Maine

hereinafter referred to as the Borrower which agrees to borrow in accordance with the following terms

and conditions in addition to those as outlined in the loan documents

BORROWER Biddeford and Saco Water Company

AMOUNT $2250000 line of credit

PURPOSE To provide working capital for the companys ongoing operations

GUARANTORS None

INTEREST RATE The interest rate will be at the highest prime rate then prevailing as published in the

Wall Street Journal currently 5.00% minus 1% adjusted daily and based on actual days outstanding

over 360 day year OR the 30 60 90 or 180 London Interbank Offering Rate LIBOR plus 1.85%

Indicative LIBOR pricing as of September 2008 is as follows 30 days 4.34% 60 days 4.34% 90

4.66% 180 days 4.96%

PREPAYMENTS Principal amounts together with any accrued interest outstanding under any Prime

Rate advance may be prepaid at any time Principal amounts together with any accrued interest outstanding

under any L1BOR Rate advance may be prepaid at the end of the LIBOR interest rate period

LATE CHARGE The Borrower shall pay late charge of five percent 5% of any payment due under the

loan which is not received by the Bank within 10 days of the due date

DEFA ULT RATE The Bank shall have the right to charge interest payable on demand on the unpaid

balance of the loan at an mterest rate equal to the promissory note rate plus 3% per annum during the

continuation of any period in which the Borrower is in default in any of its obligations to the Bank under or

in connection with the loan.-

TERMS Interest only monthly The line of credit will mature on June 30 2009

COLLATERAL Unsecured

COMMITMENT FEE At closing
the Borrower will pay to the Bank non-refundable commitment fee of

$1000

P.O Box 525 Biddeford Maine 04005 ph 207-284-5906 www.biddefordsavings.com



IvIr Clifford Mansfield Jr

Page Two

September 2008

DEPOSITACCOUNTS As consideration for this loan the Borrower is to continue maintaining all

primary depository accounts with the Bank during the term of this financing Should these accounts be

transferred from Biddeford Savings Bank the Bank will have the right to reevaluate the interest rate and

fees charged on the loans

RIGHT OF SET OFF The Borrower agrees that all cash or other property in possession of the Bank

including compensating balances or any deposits will be collateral for the entire loan without further

agreement unless otherwisepeciflcally agreed in writing

FINANCiAL STATEMENTS Audited fmancial statements on the Borrower are to he submitted

annually within 120 days of fiscal year end prepared by an independent Certified Public Accounting firm

acceptable to the Bank Internally prepared financial statements on the Borrower to be submitted

quarterly within 90 days of period end

FINANCIAL COVENANTS During the termof the proposed financing the Bonower will be required to

maintain the following financial covenants measured annually as foiows

Minimum debt service coverage ratio of .2x calculated as follows

Net operating income depreciation

Annual principal interest payments

Maximum debt to gible net worth ratio as follows

sr
12/31/2008 and thereafter

AUTHORITY TO ACT The Borrower shall provide all evidence of its organization existence legal good

standing and authority to enter into said transadtions as may be required by the Bank and its counsel The

Borrower will also be required to provide evidence that all permits licenses and approvals required to

operate the Borrowers business have been obtined

INSURANCE MA TTERS The Borrower shall provide fire and other casualty insurance coverages for the

full replacement value of buildings improvemeits machinery equipment and other tangible property

Other irsurance coverage may be required by the Bank which shall include comorhensive general liability

and workers compensation insurance

LEGAL AND COSTS The Borrower shall be esposible for bearing the cost of all legal work to

document this transaction All instruments exectited nd delivered in connection with the closing of this

loan shall be in formand substance satisfactoryto th
Banks counsel All other matters relating to the law

shall be made to meet the satisfactjcjn of such càunsei All costs incurred by the Bank to document this

transaction will be borne by the Borrower regatdlessof whether the loan is actually closed or the fmancing
consummated

WRJTTENMODIFICATION The Borrower may not maintain any action against the Bank on any

agreement to lend money extend credit forbear from collection of debt or make any other

accommodation for repayment of debt for more than $25000 wiless the promise contract or agreement
is in writing and signed by duly authorized representative of the Bank



Mr Clifford Mansfield Jr

Page Three

September 2008

COMPLIANCE WITH LAW The transaction committed herein is subject to satisfactory compliance with

all applicable federal state and local laws inchidmg without limitation ordinances pertaining to land use

and environment

NONASSIGNABILITY OF COMMITMENT This commitment is expressly offered only to the

Borrower and only for the
purposes described herein This commitment may not be assigned without the

written permission of Biddeford Savings Bank

EXFTION DATE Subject to your cdnti4ued favorable fmancial condition in the sole judgement of

the Bank this loan is available for your use through June 30 2009 and is subject to review prior to

renewal However the Bank shall be under noobligation hereunder unless acceptance of the terms hereof

is delivered to it within sixty 60 days from tle date of this letter

The parties hereto agree that this commitment shall survive any loan closing under this commitment and

that each of the obligations and undertakings of the Borrower hereunder shall be continuing and shall not

cease until the entire loan together with interest and fees is paid in full

This commitment may be terminated by the Bn1c at any time upon discovery by the Bank of material

adverse change in or any misrepresentations oi erroneous statements about the Borrowers position with

respect to solvency credit worthiness goverm4lent regulation or any other substantial factor In the event

of such termination the Bank is entitled to collect and retain all commitment fees herein required of the

Borrower Such termination shall become effective upon the mailing of notice of termination by the Bank

by certified first-class mail to the Borrower at the address shown on this commitment

If you are in agreement please acknowledge your acceptance of this commitment by signing and returning

the original of this letter You may retain sigtied copy for your records Jerry thank you for considering

Biddeford Savings Bank for your ncing needs and we look forward to long term relationship with

your company

Si er

ete vestre

Se ice President

ACCEPTED AND ACKNOWLEDGED

Biddeford and Saco Water Company

By C4
W/JJ

ts Date



9Biddeford Savings

May21 2010

Mr Clifford Mansfield Jr President

Biddeford and Saco Water Company Inc

181 ElmStreet

Biddeford Maine 04005

RE Commercial Line of Credit 300003164

Dear Jerry

This letter is to notify you that your Commercial Line of Credit will reach its one-year

anniversazy on June 30 2010

The terms of this original note requires that election be made to renew for another

year or pay off the note

Should you choose to renew for another year Biddeford Savings Bank would be happy to

automatically renew your note because of your excellent credit history Should your

current balance be zero it is still important for you to contact us as to what your choice

will be

Please indicate your selection below and return the copy of this letter prior to June
12010

We wish to take this opportunity to thank you for banking with Biddeford Savings Bank
If you have any questions regarding this matter please feel free to call me at 284-5906

_______
Please renew my note for one year ________/

Borrowers Signature

P.O Box 525 Bjcjçjefo Maine 04005 ph 207-284-5906 wwwbiddetor4savings.com
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SAFE DRINKING WATER REVOLVING LOAN FUND EQUITY LOAN

MAINE MUNICIPAL BOND.BANK

and

BIDDEFORD AND SACO WATER COMPANY

LOAN AGREEMENT

Dated as of June 24 2008
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WITNES SETH

This LOAN AGREEMENT dated as of June 24 2008 between Maine Municipal Bond

Bank public body corporate and politic constituted as an instrumentality of the State of Maine

exercising public and essential governmental functions hereinafter referred to as the Bank
created pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 225 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes

Annotated as amended hereinafter referred to as the Act having its principal place of

business in Augusta Maine and Biddeford and Saco Water Company corporation located at

Biddeford Maine which is public water system constituting Municipality within the

meaning of paragraph of subsection 7-A of Section 5903 of the Act and incorporated under

the laws of the State of Maine the Company

WHEREAS the Bank is constituted as public body corporate and politic and an

instrumentality of the State of Maine being body corporate and politic with full and lawful

power and authority to enter into this Loan Agreement and

WHEREAS the United States pursuant to the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act the

Safe Drinking Water Act requires each state to establish drinking water revolving fund to

be administered by an instrumentality of the State as condition to receipt of capitalization

grants under the Safe Drinking Water Act and

WHEREAS the State of Maine has pursuant to 6006-B of the Act as amended the

Act established in the custody of the Bank revolving loan fund the Fund to be used for

purposes of the Safe Drinking Water Act and

WHEREAS the Bank has the responsibility to administer the Fund and subject to the

approval of the State of Maine Department of Health and Human Services DHHS to provide

financial assistance to public water systems for the construction of eligible facilities all as set

forth in the Act and

WHEREAS the Company has submitted to the Bank an application for financial

assistance for project and the Bank has reviewed and approved said application and DHHS has

certified to the Bank that the project is eligible for immediate financing under the Act and

WHEREAS the Bank pursuant to this Loan Agreement proposes to make loan to the

Company to finance the project or to refinance bonds or notes issued for the same purpose and

WHEREAS to secure the payment of the sums to be paid by the Company to the Bank

pursuant to this Loan Agreement and to secure the satisfaction and performance of all other

covenants and obligations made or undertaken by the Company under this Loan Agreement the

Company has issued the Bond to the Bank pursuant to the Mortgage as hereinafter defined and

the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture as hereinafter defined and

L-
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WHEREAS approval of plans or reports for the Project has been obtained or will be

obtained prior to the initiation of construction by the Company from DHHS subject to the

provisions of applicable State environmental standards set forth in law rules and regulations

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of the premises and of the mutual representations

covenants and agreements herein set forth the Bank and the Company each binding itself its

successors and assigns do mutually promise covenant and agree as follows

ARTICLE

DEFINITIONS RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

Section 1.1 Definitions The following capitalized terms as used in this Loan

Agreement shall have the following meanings

Act means Chapter 225 of Title 30-A of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated as

amended

Bank means the Maine Municipal Bond Bank established under the Act and any

successor entity

Bond means the Companys Series Bond in the original principal amount of up to

$1458520 issued under the Mortgage and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and delivered by

the Company to the Bank in the form attached in Exhibit hereto

Business Day means any day on which State offices are open to conduct business

Company means Biddeford and Saco Water Company corporation located in

Biddeford Maine which is public water system constituting Municipality within the

meaning of paragraph of subsection 7-A of Section 5903 of the Act and incorporated under

the laws of the State and any successor entity

DHHS means the State of Maine Department of Health and Human Services and any

successor entity

Eligible Project means project permitted to be financed by the Fund pursuant to the

Safe Drinking Water Act and the Act

Fund means the revolving loan fund established pursuant to Section 6006-B of the Act

Hazardous Materials means without limitation asbestos gasoline petroleum products

explosives radioactive materials polychlorinated biphenyls or related or similar materials or

any other substance or material defined as hazardous or toxic substance material or waste by

any applicable federal State or local law ordinance rule or regulation



Indebtedness shall mean all obligations for payments of principal and interest with

respect to money borrowed incurred or assumed by the Company from another Person

including purchase money mortgages financing or capital leases installment purchase contracts

or other similarinstruments in the nature of borrowing by which the Company will be

unconditionally obligated to pay Nothing in this definition or otherwise shall be construed to

count Indebtedness more than once

Interest Payment Date shall mean each date on which interest is payable on the Loan as

set forth in Exhibit hereto

Lien means any mortgage pledge leasehold interest security interest choate or

inchoate interest security interest choate or inchoate lien judgment lien easement or other

encumbrance on title including but not limited to any mortgage or pledge of security interest

in or lien or encumbrance on any Property of the Company which secures any Indebtedness or

any other obligation of the Company

Lien Waiver shall mean with respect to each contractor or subcontractor of the

Company for the Project sworn statement and waiver of Liens covering all work for which

payment is to be made to the date of payment including disclaimers from suppliers of fixtures

equipment and materials of any purchase money security interest therein

Loan means the loan or loans made by the Bank to the Company pursuant to this Loan

Agreement

Loan Account means that account so designated established by the Bank within the

Fund

Loan Agreement means this Loan Agreement dated as of June 24 2008 between the

Bank and the Company as the same may be amended from time to time in accordance with

Section 7.4 hereof

Loan Origination Fee means an amount equal to one percent 1.0% of the principal

amount of the Loan

Mortgage means the Companys Indenture dated August 1923 as supplemented and

amended by Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 1948 Supplemental Indenture

dated as of January 1951 Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1959 Supplemental

Indenture dated as of October 1967 Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 1976

Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1979 Supplemental Indenture dated as of May
1987 Supplemental Indenture dated as of June 1993 Supplemental Indenture dated as of

September 1998 the Tenth Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 2002 the Eleventh

Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 22 2005 and the Twelfth Supplemental

Indenture

Mortgaged Property means all of the properties revenues and other rights of the

Company described in the Mortgage

a/f



MPUC means the Maine Public Utilities Commission

Person shall include an individual association unincorporated organization

corporation partnership joint venture or government or agency or political subdivision thereof

Project means the project described in Exhibit hereto

Project Costs means the incuned costs including issuance costs of the Company

which are eligible for financial assistance from the Fund under the Act which are allowable

costs under the Regulations and which are reasonable necessary and allocable by the Company

to the Project under generally accepted accounting principles an estimate of which is set forth in

Exhibit hereto and made part hereof

Property shall mean any and all assets of the Company any land leasehold interests

buildings machinery equipment hardware and inventory of the Company wherever located and

whether now owned or hereafter acquired any and all rights titles and interests in and to any and

all fixtures and property whether real or personal tangible or intangible and wherever situated

and whether now owned or hereafter acquired

Rates means the rates established by the Company for water service approved by the

MPUC

Regulations means the regulations of DHHS adopted pursuant to and in furtherance of

the Act as such may be amended from time to time

Resolution means the resolution adopted by the Bank approving the Loan

Safe Drinking Water Act means the federal Safe Drinking Water Act 42 U.S.C 300g

Servicing Fee means five percent 5.0% of the payments of principal and interest due

on the Loan in any year or such lesser amount as shall be designated by the Bank

State means the State of Maine

Statement means the Statement of Revised Principal Amount provided by the Bank

pursuant to Section 3.1C hereof

Technical Consultant means an entity with engineering and technical expertise in the

area of municipal drinking water systems which shall be designated by the Bank and may
include DHHS

Trustee means U.S Bank National Association or its successors in trust as trustee

under the Mortgage and the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture



Twelfth Supplemental Indenture means the indenture supplemental to the Mortgage

dated as of June 24 2008 in the form set forth in Exhibit hereto

Section 1.2 Rules of Construction Unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary

the following rules shall apply to the construction of this Loan Agreement

Words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and

vice versa

All references herein to particular articles or sections are references to

articles or sections of this Loan Agreement

The captions and headings herein are solely for convenience of reference

and shall not constitute part of this Loan Agreement nor shall they affect its meaning

construction or effect

The terms hereby hereof hereto herein hereunder and any
similar terms as used in this Loan Agreement refer to the Loan Agreement in its entirety

and not the particular article or section of this Loan Agreement in which they appear and

the term hereafter means after and the term heretofore means before the date of

execution of this Loan Agreement

ARTICLE II

REPRESENTATIONS

Section 2.1 Representations of the Bank The Bank represents and warrants as follows

The Bank is public body corporate and politic and an instrumentality of

the State established and existing under the laws of the State including the Act The

Bank is authorized to use amounts in the Loan Account of the Fund to make the Loan to

the Company in each case to undertake and complete the Project

The Bank has complied with the provisions of the Act and has full power
and authority to execute and deliver this Loan Agreement and to consummate the

transactions contemplated hereby and perform its obligations hereunder

The Bank is not in default under any of the provisions of the laws of the

State which would affect its existence or its powers referred to in the preceding paragraph

By Resolution duly adopted by the Bank and still in full force and effect

the Bank has authorized the execution delivery and due performance of the Loan

Agreement and the taking of any and all action as may be required on the part of the

Bank to carry out give effect to and consummate the transactions contemplated by each



of the foregoing and all approvals necessary in connection with the foregoing have been

received

The execution and delivery by the Bank of this Loan Agreement and the

consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will not violate any indenture

mortgage deed of trust note loan agreement or other contract or instrument to which the

Bank is party or by which it is bound or to the best of the Banks knowledge any

judgment decree order statute rule or regulation applicable to the Bank and all

consents approvals authorizations and orders of governmental or regulatory authorities

which are required for the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby have

been obtained and

There is no action suit proceeding or investigation at law or in equity

before or by any court public board or body pending or to the knowledge of the Bank

threatened against or affecting the Bank or to the knowledge of the Bank any basis

therefor wherein an unfavorable decision ruling or finding would adversely affect the

transactions contemplated hereby or which in any way would adversely affect the

validity of this Loan Agreement or any agreement or instrument to which the Bank is

party and which is used or contemplated for use in consummation of the transactions

contemplated by each of the foregoing

Section 2.2 Representations of the Company The Company represents and warrants as

follows

The Company is public water system constituting Municipality

within the meaning of paragraph of subsection 7-A of Section 5903 of the Act and

incorporated under the laws of the State

The Company has been duly incorporated and is validly existing as

corporation under the laws of the State it has full legal right power and authority to enter

into this Loan Agreement the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and the Bond and to carry

out and consummate all transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and it has by

proper action duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement the

Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and the Bond Attached in Exhibit hereto are copies

of the Companys articles of incorporation certified by the Secretary of State of the

State and good-standing certificate and ii certified copies of its Bylaws and

resolutions of its governing body authorizing the execution and delivery of the Loan

Agreement the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture and the Bond

The execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement the Twelfth

Supplemental Indenture and the Bond and the consummation of the transactions herein

and therein contemplated will not conflict in any material respect with or constitute

breach of or default by it under its articles of incorporation its by-laws or any statute

indenture mortgage deed of trust lease note loan agreement or other agreement or

instrument to which it is party or by which it or its properties are bound and will not

constitute violation of any order rule or regulation of any court or governmental agency



or body having jurisdiction over it or any of its activities or properties Additionally the

Company is not in breach default or violation of any statute indenture mortgage deed

of trust lease note loan agreement or other agreement or instrument which would allow

the obligee or obligees thereof to take any action which would preclude performance of

this Loan Agreement the Mortgage the Twelfth Supplemental Indenture or the Bond by

the Company

There are no actions suits or proceedings of any type whatsoever pending

or to its knowledge threatened against or affecting the Company or its assets properties

or operations which if determined adversely to it or its interests could have material

adverse effect upon its financial condition assets properties or operations and the

Company is not in default with respect to any order or decree of any court or any order

regulation or decree of any federal state municipal or governmental agency which

default would materially and adversely affect its financial condition assets properties or

operations or the completion of construction equipping and operation of the Project to be

financed or refinanced from the proceeds of the Loan

Neither any information exhibit or report furnished to the Bank by the

Company in connection with the negotiation of this Loan Agreement the Mortgage the

Twelfth Supplemental Indenture or the Bond nor any of the foregoing representations

contains any untrue statement of material fact or omits to state material fact necessary

to make the statements therein in light of the circumstances under which they were

made not misleading

The Company represents and warrants that to the best of the Companys

knowledge after due inquiry and investigation there are no Hazardous Materials on

the Mortgaged Property except those in compliance with all applicable federal State and

local laws ordinances rules and regulations ii no owner or occupant nor any prior

owner or occupant of the Mortgaged Property has received any notice or advice from any

governmental agency or any source whatsoever with respect to Hazardous Materials on
from or affecting the Mortgaged Property and iii there are no claims litigation

administrative or other proceedings whether actual or threatened or judgments or orders

relating to the location of Hazardous Material on the Mortgaged Property or on the

surrounding areas The Company covenants that the Mortgaged Property shall be kept

free of Hazardous Materials and neither the Company nor any occupant of the

Mortgaged Property shall use transport store dispose of or in any manner deal with

Hazardous Materials on the Mortgaged Property except in compliance with all applicable

federal State and local laws ordinances rules and regulations The Company shall

comply with and ensure compliance by all occupants of the Mortgaged Property with all

applicable federal State and local laws ordinances rules and regulations and shall keep

the Mortgaged Property free and clear of any Liens imposed pursuant to such laws

ordinances rules and regulations In the event that the Company receives any notice or

advice from any governmental agency or any source whatsoever with respect to

Hazardous Materials on from or affecting the Mortgaged Property the Company at its

own expense shall immediately notify the Bank The Company shall conduct and

complete all investigations studies sampling and testing and all remedial actions



necessary to clean up and remove all Hazardous Materials from the Mortgaged Property

in accordance with all applicable federal State and local laws ordinances rules and

regulations The obligations and liabilities of the Company under this paragraph shall

survive any entry of judgment of foreclosure or the delivery of deed in lieu of

foreclosure of the Mortgage For purposes of this section due inquiry and investigation

shall mean reasonable review of the records of the Company but shall not be deemed to

require formal site assessment or environmental testing

The Bond constitutes validly issued legally binding obligation of the

Company secured as set forth therein

The Company has full legal right and authority and all necessary permits

licenses and approvals other than such permits licenses or approvals which are not by

their nature obtainable priorto substantial completion of the Project required as of the

date hereof to own the Project to carry on its activities relating thereto to undertake and

complete the Project and to carry out and consummate all transactions contemplated by

this Loan Agreement

The Company represents that it has not made any commitment or taken

any action which will result in valid claim for any finders or similar fees or

commitments in respect of the issuance and sale of the Bond and the making of the Loan

under this Loan Agreement

Each of the facilities comprising part of the Project are eligible for

financing from the Fund and its estimated cost is equal to or in excess of $1458520 The

Company intends the Project to be and continue to be an Eligible Project under the Safe

Drinking Water Act and the Act during the term of this Loan Agreement

The Project is or will be when completed in compliance with all

applicable federal State and local laws and ordinances including rules and regulations

relating to zoning building safety and environmental quality The Company intends to

proceed with due diligence to complete the Project pursuant to Section hereof The

Company will comply with all requirements of DHHS necessary to construct the Project

The Company represents that it is in compliance with 5953-B3E of

the Act and copies of DullS approval and certifications required thereby are attached as

Exhibit and

The Company has pledged all of its revenues under the Mortgage to the

holders of all bonds issued thereunder including the Bond



ARTICLE III

LOAN PROVISIONS

Section 3.1 Loan Clauses The Loan Subject to the conditions and in accordance

with the terms of this Loan Agreement the Bank hereby agrees to make the Loan and the

Company hereby agrees to accept the Loan The Loan shall be in the aggregate principal amount

of up to $1458520 As security for the obligation of the Company to repay that portion of the

principal amount of the Loan as it may be reduced pursuant to Section 3.1C below the

Company hereby agrees to sell to the Bank the Bond in the aggregate principal amount of up to

$1458520 and in the form attached hereto as Exhibit

Maturities Interest Rates Redemption Provisions The Bond will bear interest

from the date of its issuance and delivery payable on October and April of each year

commencing October 2008 Subject to any applicable legal limitations the principal amounts

maturities redemption premiums and the rate or rates of interest borne by the Bond shall be as

set forth in Exhibit as it may be amended in accordance with Section 3.1C hereof The

principal amount of the Loan if not previously paid shall be due on April 2028

Allocation For Reduced Loan Size If the amount disbursed under this Loan

Agreement pursuant to Section 3.6 through final completion of the Project is less than the full

amount of the Loan the principal amount of the Loan shall be reduced by an amount equal to

the difference between the principal amount of the Loan and the total amount disbursed the

Loan Reduction Amount and ii within 45 days afterthe Project is certified by DHHS as

substantially complete the Bank shall provide the Company and the Trustee with Statement of

Revised Principal Amount reflecting such reduction the Statement The Bank shall attach

revised Exhibit to the Statement to reflect the Loan Reduction Amount Unless otherwise

agreed to by the parties the revised Exhibit attached to the Statement shall reflect ratable

reductions in the annual payments of principal over the remaining term of the Loan and the Loan

Reduction Amount shall be applied ratably on the basis of the amounts of such payments of

principal that would otherwise be due

Section 3.2 Security for Loan The Company has delivered or caused to be

delivered to the Trustee at the Companys expense an opinion of counsel with respect to the

Mortgaged Property as required by Section 5C of Article of the Mortgage

The Bond is issued under and secured pro rata with all series of bonds

outstanding under the Mortgage as it may be amended and supplemented

Section 3.3 Other Amounts Payable The Company hereby expressly agrees to pay to

the Bank

the Banks Loan Origination Fee

the Banks issuance costs for the Loan made hereunder and



the Banks Servicing Fee which shall be payable in semi-annual installments on

each Interest Payment Date

Section 3.4 Intentionally Omitted

Section 3.5 Deposit of Loan Proceeds Proceeds of the Loan shall be retained by the

Bank until disbursed to the Company pursuant to this Loan Agreement Earnings on undisbursed

amounts of the Loan shall be for the account of the Bank

Section 3.6 Disbursement of Loan Proceeds Copies of each requisition the form

of which is attached hereto as Exhibit shall be delivered to the Bank and the Technical

Consultant Each requisition shall contain Lien Waivers and bills invoices evidence of payment

or such other evidence that Project Costs for which disbursement is requested have been incurred

by the Company

The Bank will make payments of proceeds of the Loan to the Company upon

submission of requisition approved by the Bank and the Technical Consultant provided

however that proceeds for costs other than pre-design/engineering costs as defined and approved

by DHHS shall not be disbursed until all approvals required by DHHS priorto construction

have been obtained

Section 3.7 Remedies If the Company or any authorized representative is not

complying with federal or State laws regulations or requirements relating to the Project and

following due notice by the Bank the Project is not brought into compliance within reasonable

period of time or ii the Company is in violation of any covenant set forth herein

the Bank may deny certification of disbursement requests until the Project is brought

into compliance or the covenant violation is cured by written notice of such determination of

noncompliance or violation and denial and until such time as the Bank revokes such

determination of noncompliance or violation and denial and

The Bank shall have all the remedies permitted by law and by this Loan

Agreement including the remedies set forth in Section 6.2 herein

The Bank may rely on any advice or direction received by it from the Technical

Consultant in making any determination under this Section 3.7

Section 3.8 Effective Date and Term This Loan Agreement shall become effective

upon its execution and delivery by the parties hereto shall remain in full force and effect from

such date and shall expire on such date as the Bond shall be discharged and satisfied in

accordance with the provisions thereof

-10-
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ARTICLE IV

THE PROJECT

Section 4.1 Completion of the Project The Company agrees that it will undertake

and complete the Project for the purposes and in the manner set forth in this Loan Agreement

and in accordance with all federal State and local laws ordinances and regulations applicable

thereto The Company shall obtain all necessary approvals from any and all governmental

agencies requisite to the completion of the Project Upon completion of the Project the

Company shall obtain all required permits and authorizations from appropriate authorities if

required for operation and use of the Project as contemplated by this Loan Agreement

The Company shall provide or cause to be provided payment and performance

bonds assuring the performance of the work to be performed under all construction contracts

entered into with respect to the Project and payment of all contractors and subcontractors

thereunder All payment and performance bonds required hereunder shall be issued by

independent surety companies authorized to transact business in the State

The Company will take and institute such proceedings as shall be necessary

to cause and require all contractors and material suppliers to complete their contracts diligently

and in accordance with the terms of the contracts including without limitation the correcting of

defective work

Section 4.2 Payment of Additional Project Costs In the event that Loan proceeds are

not sufficient to pay the costs of the Project in full the Company shall nonetheless complete the

Project and pay that portion of the Project Costs as may be in excess of available Loan proceeds

and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement therefor from the Bank or the holders of any

Bonds except from the proceeds of additional financing which may be provided by the Bank

pursuant to project financing agreement

Section 4.3 Completion Certificate The Company shall deliver to the Bank and the

Technical Consultant certificate of an authorized officer stating that the Project has been

completed in accordance with this Loan Agreement within seven Business Days following

such completion The Company shall in addition notify the Bank and the Technical Consultant

in writing within thirty 30 days of the actual date of initiation of operation of the Project

Section 4.4 No Warranty Regarding Condition Suitability or Cost of Project Neither

the Bank nor the Technical Consultant makes any warranty either express or implied as to the

Project or its condition or that it will be suitable for the Companys purposes or needs or that the

proceeds of the Loan will be sufficient to pay the costs of the Project Review or approval of

engineering reports facilities plans design drawings and specifications or other documents or

the inspection of Project construction by the Technical Consultant or the Bank does not relieve

the Company of its responsibility to properly plan design build and effectively operate and

maintain the Project as required by laws regulations permits and good management practices

The Technical Consultant and the Bank or their representatives are not responsible for increased

costs resulting from defects in the plans design drawings and specifications or other Project

documents Nothing in this section prohibits the Company from requiring more assurances
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guarantees or indemnity or other contractual requirements from any party performing Project

work

Section 4.5 Insurance The Company will keep or cause to be kept the Project

insured against loss or damage by fire flood lightning windstorm vandalism malicious

mischief and other hazards casualties contingencies and all other extended coverage risks to

their full insurable value subject to such deductibles and exclusions as the Company deems

reasonable and prudent and as are customary for public water systems similarlysituated and

will promptly pay when due all premiums on such insurance

Each insurance policy maintained pursuant to subsection 4.5A hereof shall

contain in form acceptable to the Bank provision to the effect that the policy will not be

cancelled without at least ten days prior written notice to the Bank the standard waiver of

subrogation and endorsement and any other endorsement required by the Bank The

Company shall deliver satisfactory evidence of continuing coverage to the Bank at least thirty

days before the expiration of the old policies

The Company shall carry and maintain such public liability insurance for personal

injuries or property damage to the extent and in the manner customary for similarpublic water

systems similarly situated Any insurance issued in compliance with this subsection 4.5C shall

contain provision to the effect that the policy will not be canceled without at least ten days

prior written notice The Company shall deliver satisfactory evidence of continuing coverage to

the Bank at least thirty days before the expiration of the old policies

ARTICLE
COVENANTS

Section 5.1 Application of Loan Proceeds The Company will apply the proceeds of the

Loan solely for the eligible costs of the Project

Section 5.2 Construction of the Project The Company will cause the Project to be

designed and constructed in accordance with plans and specifications delivered to the Technical

Consultant and consistent with Exhibit hereto and will proceed with the acquisition and

construction of the Project in conformity with law and with all applicable requirements of

governmental authorities having jurisdiction with respect thereto subject to such modifications

of plans and specifications as may be approved by the Technical Consultant as necessary or

advisable to effectuate the purposes of the Act

Section 5.3 Completion of the Project The Company shall with all practical dispatch

and in sound and economical manner consistent in all respects with Section 4.1 hereof

complete or cause to be completed the acquisition and construction of the Project and do all

other acts and things necessary and possible to entitle it to receive Rates with respect to the

Project at the earliest practicable time and obtain from the Technical Consultant certification of

completion of the Project The Company shall cause to be prepared as-built plans and

specifications for the Project at or priorto completion thereof



Section 5.4 Operation and Maintenance After completion of the Project the Company
shall at all times operate the Project or otherwise cause the Project to be operated properly and in

sound and economical manner and shall maintain preserve and keep the Project or cause the

Project to be maintained preserved and kept in good repair working order and condition and

shall from time to time make or cause to be made all necessary and proper repairs replacements

and renewals so that at all times the operation of the Project may be properly conducted in

manner that is consistent with prudent engineering and operating practices and the Company

shall not discontinue operation of or sell or otherwise dispose of the Project except for portions

of the Project sold or otherwise disposed of in the course of ordinary repair and replacement of

obsolete or worn out parts without the approval of the Bank so long as the Loan is outstanding

and except for release of the Project or any part thereof from the lien of the Mortgage pursuant

to the provisions of Article IV thereof Any request for approval shall be accompanied by
letter from the Technical Consultant approving the proposed discontinuance sale or disposition

Section 5.5 Compliance With Law The Company will at all times construct and

operate the Project and otherwise cause the Project to be constructed and operated in compliance

with all applicable federal State and local laws ordinances rules regulations permits approvals

and this Loan Agreement

Section 5.6 Covenants as to Corporate Existence Etc The Company hereby covenants

Except as otherwise expressly provided herein to preserve its corporate or

other separate legal existence and all its rights and licenses to the extent necessary or

desirable in the operation of its business and affairs and to be qualified to do business in

each jurisdiction where its ownership of Property or the conduct of its business requires

such qualifications provided however that nothing herein contained shall be construed

to obligate it to retain or preserve any of its rights or licenses no longer used or useful in

the conduct of its business

At all times to cause its business to be carried on and conducted and its

Property to be maintained preserved and kept in good repair working order and

condition and all needful and proper repairs renewals and replacements thereof to be

made

To do all things reasonably necessary to conduct its affairs and carry on its

business and operations in such manner as to comply in all material respects with any and

all applicable laws of the United States and the several states thereof and duly to observe

and conform to all valid orders regulations or requirements of any governmental

authority relative to the conduct of its business and the ownership of its Property

provided nevertheless that nothing herein contained shall require it to comply with

observe and conform to any such law order regulation or requirement of any

governmental authority so long as the validity thereof or the applicability thereof to it

shall be contested in good faith provided however that no such contest shall subject the

Bank to the risk of any liability and in any event that the Company shall indemnify the

Bank against any liability resulting from such contest



Promptly to pay all lawful taxes governmental charges and assessments at

any time levied or assessed upon or against it or its Property provided however that it

shall have the right to contest in good faith any such taxes charges or assessments or the

collection of any such sums and pending such contest may delay or defer payment

thereof provided however that no such contest shall subject the Bank to the risk of any

liability and in any event that the Company shall indemnify the Bank against any

liability resulting from such contest

Section 5.7 Additional Indebtedness The Company will not issue any indebtedness

secured by assets or revenues of the Company whose security interest is senior to that of the

Trustee under the Mortgage on behalf of the holders of bonds issued and to be issued under the

Mortgage including the Bank except as permitted by the Mortgage

Section 5.8 Ownership Subject to Section 5.4 hereof the Company will at all times

retain ownership of the Project

Section 5.9 Establishment of Project Accounts Audits The Company shall maintain

Project accounts in accordance with generally accepted accounting standards as required by the

MPUC The Company will permit the Technical Consultant and the Bank or their authorized

representatives to review or audit all records relating to the Project and will produce or cause to

be produced all records relating to any work performed under the terms of this Loan Agreement

for examination at such times as may be designated by any of them or their authorized

representatives and shall permit extracts and copies of Project records to be made by them or

their authorized representatives and shall fulfill information requests by them or their authorized

representatives

Section 5.10 Records The Company will retain all files and records relating to

construction of the Project for at least six years following the date of completion of the Project as

certified pursuant to Section 4.3 hereof All other files and records relating to the Project shall

be retained so long as this Loan Agreement remains in effect As-built plans and specifications

for the Project shall be retained for the useful life of the Project

Section 5.11 Project Access The Company shall permit representatives of the

Technical Consultant and the Bank to have access to the Project at all reasonable times and all

contracts for construction or operation of all or portion of the Project shall contain provisions

that permit such access and shall permit extracts and copies of Project records to be made by the

foregoing persons

Section 5.12 Engineering Inspection The Company shall provide competent and

adequate resident inspection of all Project construction under the direction of professional

engineer licensed in the State The Company shall direct such engineer to inspect work

necessary for the construction of the Project and to determine whether such work has been

performed in accordance with the approved plans and specifications Any work not in

accordance with approved plans and specifications shall be remedied unless such

noncompliance is waived by DHHS and the Bank
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Section 5.13 Intentionally Omitted

Section 5.14 General Rate Covenant The Company hereby certifies that it has

established and will charge Rates with respect to the Project or the system of which the Project

is part in accordance with law and in amounts such that revenues of the Company with respect

to the Project shall be sufficient together with other funds available to the Company for such

purposes to pay all costs of operating and maintaining the Project in accordance with this Loan

Agreement including the establishment of reasonable or required reserves and to pay all

amounts due under this Loan Agreement and the Bond

The Company covenants that it shall from time to time revise and charge Rates

with respect to the Project such that the revenues and funds described in paragraph shall be

sufficient to pay the costs described in paragraph

Section 5.15 Notice of Impaired System In the case of any material damage to or

destruction of the Project or any part thereof or actual or threatened proceedings for the purpose

of taking or otherwise affecting by condemnation eminent domain or otherwise all or part of

the Project any action suit or proceeding at law or in equity or by or before any governmental

instrumentality or agency or any other event whatsoever which may impair the ability of the

Company to construct or operate the Project or set and collect Rates the Company shall

promptly notify the Bank

Section 5.16 Compliance With Federal Program Requirements The Company

covenants that the Project will comply with the Federal requirements applicable to activities

supported with federal funds list of which is included as Exhibit

Section 5.17 Compliance With Federal Single Audit Act The Company covenants to

comply with the requirements of the Federal Single Audit Act to the extent it applies to the

expenditure of federal funds including any portion of the Loan the principal repayment of which

has been forgiven The Company agrees to submit to the Bank copies of any audit prepared and

filed pursuant to the requirements of this Section

Section 5.18 Continuing Information The Company agrees to submit to the Bank when

available its annual report and audited annual financial statements

ARTICLE VI

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 6.1 Events of Default Each of the following events shall constitute and be

referred to herein as an Event of Default

The Company shall fail to make any payment of the principal of the

premium if any and interest if any on the Bond when and as the same shall become due
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and payable whether at maturity by proceedings for redemption by acceleration or

otherwise in accordance with the terms thereof

The Company shall fail duly to observe or perform any other covenant or

agreement on its part under this Loan Agreement for period of thirty 30 days after the

date on which written notice of such failure requiring the same to be remedied shall

have been given to the Company by the Bank If the breach of covenant or agreement is

one which cannot be completely remedied within the thirty 30 days after written notice

has been given it shall not be an Event of Default as long as the Company has taken

active steps within the thirty 30 days after written notice has been given to remedy the

failure and is diligently pursuing such remedy and ii such failure is remedied within

sixty 60 days after written notice has been given or if such failure cannot reasonably be

remedied within such sixty 60 days the Company continues thereafter to diligently

pursue and obtain such remedy

The entry of decree or order by court having jurisdiction in the

premises adjudging the Company bankrupt or insolvent or approving as properly filed

petition seeking reorganization arrangement adjustment or composition of or in

respect of the Company under the Federal Bankruptcy Code or any other applicable

federal or State law or appointing receiver liquidator assignee or sequestrator or

other similarofficial of the Company or of any substantial part of its Property or

ordering the winding up or liquidation of its affairs and the continuance of any such

decree or order unstayed and in effect for period of sixty 60 consecutive days

The commencement by the Company of proceedings to be adjudicated

bankrupt or insolvent or the consent by it to the commencement of bankruptcy or

insolvency proceedings against it or the filing by it of petition or answer or consent

seeking reorganization or relief under the Federal Bankruptcy Code or any other similar

applicable federal or State law or the consent by it to the filing of any such petition or to

the appointment of receiver liquidator assignee trustee or sequestrator or other

similarofficial of the Company or of any substantial part of its Property or the making

by it of an assignment for the benefit of creditors or the admission by it in writing of its

inability to pay its debts generally as they become due

Upon having actual notice of the existence of an Event of Default the Bank shall serve

written notice thereof upon the Company unless the Company has expressly acknowledged the

existence of such Event of Default in writing delivered by the Company to the Bank or filed by

the Company in any court

Section 6.2 Remedies in General Upon the occurrence and during the continuance of

any Event of Default the Bank may take such action as the Bank deems necessary or appropriate

to collect amounts due hereunder to enforce performance and observance of any obligation or

agreement of the Company hereunder or to protect the interests securing the same and may
without limiting the generality of the foregoing and in accordance with applicable law



Exercise any or all rights and remedies given hereby or available

hereunder or given by or available under any other instrument of any kind securing the

Companys performance hereunder

Take any action at law or in equity to collect the payments then due on the

Bond whether on the stated due date or by declaration of acceleration or otherwise for

damages or for specific performance or otherwise to enforce performance and observance

of any obligation agreement or covenant of the Company hereunder

Apply to court of competent jurisdiction for the appointment of

receiver but only in the case of an Event of Default not described in Section 6.1b
hereof of any or all of the property of the Company such receiver to have such powers

as the court making such appointment may confer The Company hereby consents and

agrees to the appointment of such receiver and that such receiver may be given the right

power and authority to the extent the same may lawfully be given to take possession of

and operate and deal with such property and the revenues profits and proceeds

therefrom with like effect as the Company could do so and to borrow money and issue

evidences of indebtedness as such receiver

Declare any or all of the unpaid principal and interest of the Loan due and

payable and exercise any rights and remedies under the Mortgage as the holder of bonds

secured thereby

Section 6.3 Discontinuance or Abandonment of Default Proceedings If any

proceedings taken by the Bank on account of any Event of Default shall have been discontinued

or abandoned for any reason or shall have been determined adversely to the Bank then and in

every case the Bank and the Company shall be restored to their former position and rights

hereunder respectively and all rights remedies and powers of the Bank shall continue as though

no such proceeding had taken place

Section 6.4 Remedies Cumulative No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Bank

hereby or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute shall be exclusive but shall

be cumulative with all others Such remedies are not mutually exclusive and no election need be

made among them but any such remedy or any combination of such remedies may be pursued at

the same time or from time to time so long as all amounts realized are properly applied and

credited as provided herein No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon

any Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be waiver

thereof but any such right or power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be

deemed expedient by the Bank No consent or waiver express or implied by the Bank to or of

any Event of Default shall be construed as consent or waiver to or of any other Event of

Default No waiver of any Event of Default or other indulgence shall be effective unless

expressed in writing by the Bank Any failure by the Bank to insist upon strict performance by
the Company or any Person of any of the terms or provisions of this Loan Agreement shall not

be deemed to be waiver of any terms or provisions of this Loan Agreement and the Bank shall

have the right thereafter to insist upon strict performance of any and all of such terms and

provisions The Company agrees for itself its successors and assigns that the acceptance before



the expiration of the right of redemption and after the commencement of foreclosure proceedings

of this Loan Agreement of insurance proceeds eminent domain awards rents or anything else of

value to be applied on or to the indebtedness arising under the Bond andlor secured by this Loan

Agreement by the Bank or any Person holding under it shall not constitute waiver of such

foreclosure and this Loan Agreement by the Company shall be that agreement referred to in

Section 6204 of Title 14 of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated as necessary to prevent such

waiver of foreclosure This Loan Agreement by the Company is intended to apply to the

acceptance and such application of any such proceeds awards rents and other sums or anything

else of value whether the same shall be accepted from or for the account of the Company or

from any other source whatsoever by the Bank or by any Person holding under the Company at

any time or times in the future while any of the indebtedness secured hereby shall remain

outstanding In the event of any waiver of an Event of Default hereunder the parties shall be

restored to their former positions and rights hereunder but no such waiver shall extend to any

other or subsequent Event of Default or impair any right arising as result thereof

Section 6.5 Application of Moneys Collected Any amounts collected pursuant to action

taken under this Article VI shall be credited against amounts due on the Bond

Section 6.6 Attorneys Fees and Other Expenses If as result of the occurrence of an

Event of Default the Bank employs attorneys or incurs other expenses for the collection of

payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation

or agreement on the part of the Company the Company will on demand reimburse the Bank for

the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred

ARTICLE VII

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.1 Notices All notices certificates or other communications hereunder shall

be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when hand delivered or mailed by registered or

certified mail postage prepaid return receipt requested to the address set forth below

Bank

Maine Municipal Bond Bank

University Drive

P.O Box 2268

Augusta Maine 04338-2268

Attn Robert Lenna

Technical Consultant

State of Maine Department of Health and Human Services

10 State House Station

Augusta Maine 04333-0011

Attn Division of Health and Engineering

-18- LO



Company
Biddeford and Saco Water Company
181 Elm Street

P.O Box 304

Biddeford Maine 04005

Attn President

Any of the foregoing parties may designate any further or different addresses to which

subsequent notices certificates or other communications shall be sent by notice in writing given

to the others

Section 7.2 Binding Effect This Loan Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall

be binding upon the Bank and the Company and their respective successors and assigns

Section 7.3 Severability In the event any provision of this Loan Agreement shall be

held illegal invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction such holding shall

not invalidate render unenforceable or otherwise affect any other provision hereof

Section 7.4 Amendments Supplements and Modifications This Loan Agreement may

be amended supplemented or modified to provide for additional Loans by the Bank to the

Company All amendments supplements and modifications shall be in writing between the

Bank and the Company

Section 7.5 Execution in Counterparts This Loan Agreement may be executed in

several counterparts each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one

and the same instrument

Section 7.6 Applicable Law This Loan Agreement shall be governed by and construed

in accordance with the laws of the State of Maine including the Act

Section 7.7 Captions The captions or headings in this Loan Agreement are for

convenience only and shall not in any way define limit or describe the scope or intent of any

provisions or sections of this Loan Agreement

Section 7.8 Intentionally Omitted

Section 7.9 Further Assurances The Company shall at the request of the Bank

authorize execute acknowledge and deliver such further resolutions conveyances transfers

assurances financing statements and other instruments as may be necessary or desirable for

better assuring conveying granting assigning and confirming the rights security interests and

agreements granted or intended to be granted by this Loan Agreement and the Bond

Section 7.10 Intentionally Omitted

Section 7.11 Intentionally Omitted
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MAINE-MUNICIPAL ROircB ANK

I/V..

Its Executive Director

BIDDEFORD AND SAG WATER COMPANY

Bv CA
Its President

rt

Section 7.12 Covenant Against Discrimination The Company in the performance of

Loan Agreement will not discri mate or permit discrimination against any person or group
on the grounds of race color religion national origin age sex marital status

handicap political beliefs mental retardation or history of mental disorder in any
met prohibited by the laws of the United States or of the State

IN WITNESS wIrnRECW the Bank and the Company have caused this Loan Agreement
be executed and delivered as of the 24th day of June 2008



Exhibit

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

SRF 2005-10 Installation of Process Blower at the Biddeford Saco

Water Company Water Treatment Plant

SRF 2006-8 Construction of Transmission Main Across Wetlands

Adjacent to the Saco River and

SRF 2006-10 Installation of new Flexible-Membrane Cover on the

Biddeford Saco Water Companys 7.5 Million Gallon Reservoir
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Exhibit

PROJECT COSTS

Design $40000.00

Engineering $45000.00

Contractors $1145000.00

Contingency $129764.40

Other legal administration $55000.00

Sub-Total of Project Costs $1414764.40

Total Issuance Costs/Fees $43755.60

Total Project and Issuance Costs $1458520.00
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Exhibit

DESCRIPTION OF RATES

See Attached Copy of MPUC-Approved Rates
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ANNUAL AND SEASONAL RATES

UNMETERED DOMESTIC AND
COMMERCIAL RATES

Availability

This schedule is available for all existing unmetered domestic and commercial water services in the

territory including both yearly and seasonal except municipal and private fire protection but will not be available

for new services installed after the effective date of these rates unless such services are deemed by the utility to be

unsuitable for metering

Minimum Charge

The Minimum Charge under these Unmetered Rates shall be the Family or First Fixture Charge

Rates

The following charges are per year for yearly customers and per season for seasonal customers

Whether the billing is semi-annual or annual will be at the option of the Company

Family Charge includes faucet in kitchen sink set tubs

and lavatory First Fixture or any single water

connection $121.18

Each additional Fixture 16.24

Each additional Family having use of first fixture

toilet bathtub or shower in common an

additional charge shall be made for each such

fixture toilet bath tub or shower used in

common of 16.24

Building Purposes

Applies to all Divisions of the Biddeford and Saco Water Company

deposit of $25.00 will be required of Contractor or Owner for service with water used during

construction The Company will repay this deposit less charge per month equal to the minimum meter rate

applying in that division for the elapsed time between the installation of the service and the notice by the Contractor

or Owner that he has finished with the use of the service for construction

It is required of the applicant for this service that the Company be notified when construction is completed

and the structure is ready for use so that the service can be billed under one of the standard rates of the Company

Discou at

On the July billings for Seasonal Customers discount of $2.00 will be allowed if paid on or before the

20t of July or within twenty 20 days of the date of the bill

Discounts will only apply provided no previous bill remains unpaid
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ANNUAL METER RATE

Availability

This schedule is applicable to all Customers in the territory taking water service continuously throughout

the twelve months of the year except for municipal and private fire protection to be used solely by the Customer on

his own premises

Rate Consumption Charge

Quarterly Billing

First 1200 cu ft or any part thereof per Quarter _....$30.27

Next 7800 cu ft per Quarter ____________________
Next 21000 cu ft per Quarter ____________________
Next 60000 cu ft per Quarter _____________________
Excess 90000 cu ft per Quarter

_1.2555 per lOOcu ft

0.8818 per 100 Cu ft

0.6282 per 100 Cu ft

0.5440 per 100 Cu ft

Monthly Billing

First 400 cu ft or any part thereof per Month ______$ 10.09

Next 2600 Cu ft per Month ______________________
Next 7000 cu ft per Month ______________________
Next 20000 cu ft per Month _____________________
Excess 30000 Cu ft per Month ___________________

1.2555 per 100 Cu ft

0.88 18 per 100 cu ft

0.6282 per 100 Cu ft

0.5440 per 100 Cu ft

Each meter shall be billed in accordance with this schedule Meters on different services but serving the

same Customer will not be added together under one billing but each meter will be billed separately in accordance

with this schedule

Minimum Charge

The Minimum Charge for different sizes of meters will be billed on either the monthly or quarterly basis in

accordance with the Companys billing procedure and these minimums shall be as follows

Availability

Quarterly

Allowance Charg
1200 30.27

1800 37.80

3300 56.64

5400 83.00

15600 186.40

27000 286.92

73200 584.76

125100 881.24

299100 1827.80

366900 2196.63

SEASONAL METER RATE

This schedule applies to all Seasonal Customers using water service less than twelve months of the year

including Customers who use water from the Company on an intermittent basis to supplement their own source of

water supply or for purposes of irrigation

Whenever necessary to prorate bill for Seasonal Customer Season shall be defined as the period

between April 15 and October 15 of each year
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Meter Monthly

Size Allowance Charg
5/8 400 10.09

3/4 600 12.60

1100 18.88

1-1/2 1800 27.67

5200 62.13

9000 95.64

24400 194.92

41700 293.75

99700 609.27

10 122300 732.21



Rate

Consumption Charge

First 2400 Cu ft or fraction thereof per season

Next 27600 Cu ft per season
_______________

Next 70000 Cu ft per season ______________

Excess 100000 cu ft per season ____________

$120.63

__1 .4250 per 100 Cu ft

...........1.2686 per 100 Cu ft

_0.7489 per 100 cu ft

Meter

Size

5/8

3/4

11/2

Consumption

Allowed

2400

3600

9700

17700

48200

80400

215000

368500

Minimum

Per Season

120.63

137.73

224.66

338.66

744.82

1153.30

2263.19

3412.75

For each connection

For each connection

For each connection

For each connection

For each 10 connection

For each 12 connection

165.48 per Year or Season

330.80 per Year or Season

468.60 per Year or Season

799.40 per Year or Season

1019.90 per Year or Season

1496.80 per Year or Season

Private Hydrants 109.74 per Year or Season each

Automatic Sprinklers No additional charge over and above the connection charge
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Each meter shall be billed in accordance with this schedule Meters on different services but serving the

same customer will not be added together under one billing but each meter will be billed separately in accordance

with this schedule

Minimum Charge

The Minimum Charge for the season for various sizes of meters shall be as follows

The Company will bill this minimum charge when the water is first turned on or else on July of each

year discount of $2.00 will be allowed on this bill if paid on or before July 20 or within twenty 20 days from

the date of the bill provided no previous bill remains unpaid No other discount will be allowed

ANNUAL AND SEASONAL RATES
FOR PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION

Connections to SuppJy Automatic Sprinklers and/or Private Hydrants



HYDRANT AND MUNICIPAL RATES FOR

CITIES AND TOWNS SERVED

Availability

This schedule is available to all Cities and Towns serviced as listed below

For Standard Fire Hydrants connected to the utilitys system on March 32008 there shall be paid to

the utility by the municipality served Monthly Fire Protection Charge as follows

City of Biddeford

For the 477 Standard Fire Hydrants 22086.37 per month

City of Saco

For the 418 Standard Fire Hydrants 19354.52 per month

Town of Old Orchard

For the 216 Standard Fire Hydrants 10001.38 per month

Town of Scarborough

For the 82 Standard Fire Hydrants 3796.82 per month

Total Monthly Charge 55239.09

Total Annual Charge $662869.08

II charge of 1% per month will be assessed after 30 days from the billing date on all unpaid fire

protection charges

III For each additional Standard Fire Hydrant connected to any main on or after March 2008 charges

will be governed by Chapter 690 of the Commissions Rules and Regulations

CUSTOMER DISCONTINUANCE OR
INTERRUPTION CHARGE

charge of $5.00 will be made by the Company for turning off and turning back on again water service at

the request of the Customer during normal business hours 730 AM to 400 P.M Monday through Friday If the

customer requests these services be performed other than during normal business hours the charge will be $30.00

INSTALLATION OF
REMOTE READING METER

charge of $25.00 will be made by the Company for installing remote reading meter on an existing

service if the remote reading meter is 5/8 or 3/4 meter and is installed at the request of the customer for his/her

convenience
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Exhibit

INTEREST AND PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

MMBB Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund

BREAKDOWN OF BORROWER PAYMENTS

BORROWER Biddeford Saco Water Company

EST CLOSING DATE 24-Jun-08

INTEREST RATE 2.230%

DAILY INTEREST RATE 0.006%

SOURCES USES OF PAYMENT

BORROWER EQUITY LOAN EQUITY LOAN

DATE PAYMENT ADMIN FEE PRINCIPAL INTEREST TOTAL

October 12008 $10150.51 447.22 $8944.37 $9391.59

April 12009 $32825.63 1563.13 $15000.00 $16262.50 $32825.63

October 2009 $16900.01 804.76 $16095.25 $16900.01

April 12010 $32650.01 1554.76 $15000.00 $16095.25 $32650.01

October 12010 $16724.40 796.40 $15928.00 $16724.40

April 12011 $32474.40 1546.40 $15000.00 $15928.00 $32474.40

October 2011 $16548.79 788.04 $1 5760.75 $1 6548.79

April 12012 $32298.79 1538.04 $15000.00 $15760.75 $32298.79

October 12012 $16373.18 779.68 $15593.50 $16373.18

April 2013 $32123.18 1529.68 $15000.00 $15593.50 $32123.18

October 12013 $16197.56 771.31 $15426.25 $16197.56

April 12014 $47697.56 2271.31 $30000.00 $15426.25 $47697.56

October 12014 $15846.34 754.59 $15091.75 $15846.34

April 12015 $47346.34 2254.59 $30000.00 $15091.75 $47346.34

October 12015 $15495.11 737.86 $14757.25 $15495.11

April 12016 $46995.11 2237.86 $30000.00 $14757.25 $46995.11

October 12016 $15143.89 721.14 $14422.75 $15143.89

April 12017 $46643.89 2221.14 $30000.00 $14422.75 $46643.89

October 12017 $14792.66 704.41 $14088.25 $14792.66

April 2018 $46292.66 2204.41 $30000.00 $14088.25 $46292.66

October 12018 $14441.44 687.69 $13753.75 $14441.44

April 12019 $77441.44 3687.69 $60000.00 $13753.75 $77441.44

October 2019 $13738.99 654.24 $13084.75 $13738.99

Ppr\\ 12020 $76738.99 3654.24 $60000.00 $13084.75 $76738.99

October 2020 $13036.54 620.79 $12415.75 $13036.54
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April 12021 $76036.54 3620.79 $60000.00 $12415.75 $76036.54

October 12021 $12334.09 587.34 $11746.75 $12334.09

April 12022 $75334.09 3587.34 $60000.00 $11746.75 $75334.09

Octoberl2022 $11631.64 553.89 $11077.75 $11631.64

April 2023 $74631.64 3553.89 $60000.00 $1 1077.75 $74631.64

October 2023 $10929.19 520.44 $10408.75 $10929.19

April 12024 $115929.19 5520.44 $100000.00 $10408.75 $115929.19

October 2024 $9758.44 464.69 $9293.75 $9758.44

April 12025 $114758.44 5464.69 $100000.00 $9293.75 $114758.44

October 12025 $8587.69 408.94 $8178.75 $8587.69

April 12026 $113587.69 5408.94 $100000.00 $8178.75 $113587.69

October 2026 $7416.94 353.19 $7063.75 $7416.94

April 12027 $322416.94 15353.19 $300000.00 $7063.75 $322416.94

October 2027 $3904.69 185.94 $3718.75 $3904.69

April 12028 $354100.69 16861.94 $333520.00 $3718.75 $354100.69

$2057516.40 97977.03 $1458520.00 $501019.37 $2057516.40



REDEMPTION PRICE

UPON OPTIONAL REDEMPTION

The remaining Principal amount of the Bond and this Loan may be redeemed at any time on or

after the date the Project has been completed and the Company has delivered to the Bank the

completion certificate required by Section 4.3 of this Loan Agreement without premium

together with interest if any on the Bond accrued and unpaid to the redemption date
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FORM OF BOND
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Exhibit

FORM OF REQUISITION

FOR DISBURSEMENT OF
LOAN PROCEEDS

To be delivered first to State of Maine Department of Health and Human Services for approval

and second to the Maine Municipal Bond Bank for approval and for disbursement

Maine Municipal Bond Bank

University Drive

P.O Box 2268

Augusta Maine 04338

Re Biddeford and Saco Water Company

Ladies and Gentlemen

Pursuant to Section 3.6 of the Loan Agreement dated as of June 24 2008 between the

Maine Municipal Bond Bank and Biddeford and Saco Water Company the Loan Agreement

we hereby request disbursement in the amount of for Project Costs Capitalized terms

used but not defined herein have the meaning set forth in the Loan Agreement In connection

with this requisition we hereby represent and certify the following

This requisition is requisition number

Payments aggregating have been incurred by the Company for Project

Costs See DWSRF Reimbursement Form DWSRF-1 as attached

The amount of this requisition together with all priorrequisitions does not

exceed the amount of the Loan

All amounts requisitioned hereunder are for eligible Project Costs which are

unpaid or unreimbursed and have not been the basis of any previous disbursement from Loan

proceeds

Promptly upon receipt of the amounts requisitioned hereunder the Company shall

make payments for the unpaid amounts set forth in paragraph of this requisition

Biddeford and Saco Water Company

Date

By______________________

Attached hereto are invoices evidencing each such amount incurred and the person to

whotn such amount is payable
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APPROVAL OF MAINE MUNICIPAL BOND BANK

Requisition Number _______ is in part approved2 by the

Maine Municipal Bond Bank pursuant to Section 3.6 of the Loan Agreement dated as of June 24

2008 between the Maine Municipal Bond Bank and the Company

Maine Municipal Bond Bank

Date

By_____________________

Those portions of the requisition that are approved and those portions that are not approved are described in Schedule

attached hereto with explanations for items not approved

Attached hereto as Exhibit are reasons for denial of approval
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Exhibit

iNTENTIONALLY OMITTED

34



Exhibit

INTENTIONALLY OMITTED
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Exhibit

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES APPROVAL
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Exhibit

LIST OF FEDERAL LAWS AND AUTHORITIES

ENVIRONMENTAL

Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 PL 93-291

Clean Air Act 42 U.S.C 7506c

Coastal Barrier Resources Act 16 U.S.C 3501 et seq

Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 PL 92-583 as amended

Endangered Species Act 16 U.S 1531 et seq

Executive Order 11593 Protection and Enhancement of the Cultural Environment

Executive Order 11988 Floodplain Management

Executive Order 11990 Protection of Wetlands

Farmland Protection Policy Act U.S.C 4201 et seq

Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act PL 5-624 as amended

National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 PL 89-665 as amended

Safe Drinking Water Act section 1424e PL 92-523 as amended

Wild and Scenic Rivers Act PL 90-542 as amended
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ECONOMIC

Demonstration Cities and Metropolitan Development Act of 1966 PL 89-754 as

amended

Section 306 of the Clean Air Act and Section 508 of the Clean Water Act including

Executive Order 11738 Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water

Pollution Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts Grants or Loans

SOCIAL LEGISLATION

Age Discrimination Act PL 94-135

Civil Rights Act of 1964 PL 88-3 52

Section 13 of PL 92-500 Prohibition against sex discrimination under the Federal Water

Pollution Control Act

Executive Order 11246 Equal Employment Opportunity

Executive Orders 11625 and 12138 Womens and Minority Business Enterprise

Rehabilitation Act of 1973 PL 93-112 including Executive Orders 11914 and 11250

MISCELLANEOUS AUTHORITY

Uniform Relocation and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 PL 1-646

Executive Order 12549 Debarment and Suspension
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Exhibit

FORM OF THE TWELFTH SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE
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COMPANY DOCUMENTS



Exhibit M-1

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

Copy Included in the Closing Documents

42



Exhibit M-2

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD-STANDING

Copy Included in the Closing Documents
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Exhibit M3

GENERAL CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY

Copy Included in the Closing Documents

P\Users\mgoogins\Biddeford Saco Water\2008 Bond Issue\Loan Agreement 062008Clean.doc
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Consent of accountants



CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation in this Offering Circular on Form -A of our report dated March 22

2010 relating to the balance sheets of Biddeford Saco Water Company as of December 31 2009 and

2008 and the related statements of income changes in stockholders equity and cash flows for the years

then ended

Portland Maine

August 2010
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Opinion of Verrill Dana LLP



VerrillDanaLLP
Attorneys at Law

ONE PORTLAND SQUARE
PORTLAND MAINE 04112-05 86

207-774-4000 FAX 207-774-7499

www.verrilldana.com

September 29 2010

Biddeford and Saco Water Company
181 Elm Street

Biddeford ME 04005

Re Offering Statement on Form 1-A

Ladies and Gentlemen

We have acted as special counsel to Biddeford and Saco Water Company Maine business

corporation the Company in connection with an offering statement on Form 1-A the Offering

Statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933 as

amended the Act relating to the offering by the Company of an aggregate of 31000 shares of

common stock of the Company the Shares

For purposes of our opinions set forth below we have examined originals or copies of such

records and certificates of officers certificates of public officials and other documents as we have

deemed relevant and necessary as basis for this opinion In such examination we have assumed

without independent verification the genuineness of all signatures the authenticity of all documents

submitted to us as originals the conformity to originals of documents submitted to us as copies and the

authenticity of the originals of such documents As to questions of fact material to this opinion we have

relied without independent verification upon representations contained in certificates of officers of the

Company and public officials

Based upon the foregoing and subject to the qualifications set forth below we are of the opinion

that the Shares to be offered and sold pursuant to the Offering Statement will be validly issued fully paid

and non-assessable upon issuance on the terms set forth in the Offering Statement

This opinion is limited to matters governed by the laws of the State of Maine and no other

jurisdiction and is further limited to the matters expressly addressed above We consent to the filing of

this opinion as an Exhibit to the Offering Statement In giving this consent we do not thereby admit that

we are within the category of persons whose consent is required under Section of the Act or the

General Rules and Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission

Very truly yours

\VL$Ii4IV4

VERRILL DANA LLP

GSF/MCC

Portland Augusta Boston Hartford Washington D.C
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Solicitation of interest letter



BIDDEFORD SACO WATER CO
Supplying

BIDDEFORD SACO OLD ORCHARD BEACH
AND PINE POINT

181 ELM STREET P.O BOX 304

BIDDEFORD MAINE 04005-0304

CS MANSFIELI Jr President Treasurer TELEPHONE
ROBERT THERIAULT Assist Treasurer Area Code 207

THOMAS CARR Ill Distdbution Superintendent 282-1543

CHRISTOPHER MANSFIELD Deputy Manager

December 82009

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

As most of you are aware the Biddeford and Saco Water Company faces need to raise

significant capital over the coming years Our Board of Directors previously proposed

amendments to our charter that would have allowed the Company to make an offering of

preferred stock to institutional investors and other large purchasers That proposal met with

mixed reactions from shareholders and by narrow margin failed to garner sufficient votes for

approval Some who oppesed tie amendments expressed preference for the Company to meet

its capital needs through an offering of common stock rather than preferred stock

The Company is now examining possible offering of common stock Net proceeds from such

an offering would be used to reduce the balance on the Companys line of credit and to put the

Company in position to earn greater return on its invested capital

As first step in the contemplated common stock offering the Company is seeking to

determine whether existing shareholders might be interested in purchasing common shares

in such an offering We anticipate that the Company would offer up to $2500000 of common
stock at some slight discount to the most recent sale price which on November 30 was $81.00

per share

This solicitation of interest is being made to determine the level of interest in such an offering

among our existing sharelolders We are mailing this letter to shareholders who live in selected

states that allow this kind of solicitation to be made without first incurring the full expense of

preparing the kind of registration statement needed for formal offering and sale of shares if

we receive sufficient indications of interest then our plan would be to go ahead with formal

offering As you consider this possible offering we ask you to please be advised of the

following

This is solicitation of Interest only No money or other consideration is

being solicited at this time and if sent in response will not be accepted

No sale of the securities will be made or commitment to purchase

accepted until the delivery of final offering statement that includes

complete information about the Issuer and the offering

An indication of interest made by prospective investor involves no

obligation or commitment of any kind

c2ao



This solicitation of interest is being made pursuant to exemptiois from

registration under fedemi and state securities Jaws No sale may be

made until the offering statement is qualified by the SEC and Is either

registered in tIls state or exempted from registration

Name of company Biddeford and Saco Water Company

Chief executive officer C.S Mansfield Jr

Business and products The Company is public utility supplying drinking

water and fire protection services on the southern

Maine coast to the communities of Biddeford Saco

Old Orchard Bcach and the Pine Pont section of

Scarborough regulated by the Maine Public Utilities

Commission

We ask now that you assist us in evaluating whether shareholders would be interested in

purchasing common stock from the Company If you feel that you might be interested

in participating in such an offering and would like to receive an offering circular or

prospectus providing further details please let us know To do so please return the

enclosed form or send me quick note by mail email or faz stating
that you might be

interested and giving us some idea of the potential dollar amount that you might be

interested in investing in common shares if priced appropriately Doing so will not

involve any commitment on your part or ours but would help us gau the level of

shareholder interest in such an offering The actual registration process will involve

significant expense to the Company Your Board wishes to avoid this expense if there is

little interest on the part of existing shareholders You may respond to our inquiry by fax

at 207282-1544 email at info @biddefordsacowater.com or by using the enclosed

mailing envelope If you might have interest iii purchasing shares we would appreciate

receiving response from you within the next two weeks if possible

Thank you for yow continued support of the Biddeford and Saco Water Company

On behalf of the Board of Directors

C.S Mansfield Jr President



Bidde ford Saco Water Company
181 Elm Street

PRO Box 304
Bidde ford ME 04005-0304

EXPRESSION OF INTEREST IN POSSIBLE COMMON STOCKISSUE

By returning this form understand that am only expressing that might be interested

in purchasing some amount of common shares if offered to shareholders by the Biddeford

and Saco Water Company This expression of interest involves

NO OBLIGATION OR COMMITMENT OF ANY KIND

Possible investment amount

Names

Address

Comments

Telephone
Facsimile

207 282-1543

207 282-1544
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Notice of preemptive rights
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BIDDEFORD SACO WATER Co
Supplying

BIDDEFORD SACO OLD ORCHARD BEACH
AND PINE POINT

181 ELM STREET P.O BOX 304

BIDDEFORD MAINE 04005-0304

C.S MANSFIELD Jr President treasurer TELEPHONE

ROBERT THERIAULT Assist Treasurer Area Code 207

THOMAS CARR III Distribution Superintendent 282-1543

CHRISTOPHER MANSFIELD Deputy Manager

May 28 2010

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

This past December sent letters to shareholders in selected states Maine Massachusetts and Florida to gauge

possible interest in common stock offering by Biddeford and Saco Water Company directly to shareholders As

discussed in the letter and at prior shareholder meetings the Company faces need to raise significant capital

over the coming years

Based on feedback received from shareholders in response to my letter the Company has decided to proceed with

an offering of common stock at price of $67.50 per share Net proceeds from the offering would be used to

reduce the balance on the Companys line of credit and to put the Company in position to cam greater retum

on its invested capital

The Company has concluded that Biddeford and Saco Water Company shareholders have statutory preemptive

rights under Maine law preemptive right is apro rota right to pure hase portion of new common stock

offering sufficient to preserve that shareholders current ownership percentage

We have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission Form 1-A offering statement covering an offering

of 31000 shares of common stock at the offering price of $67.50 per share As described below we plan to

pursue this offering in selected states where most of our shareholders reside By virtue of your preemptive rights

however as record or beneficial owner of Biddeford and Saco Water Company common stock you will have

pro rata right to purchase shares regardless of where you reside

The Company is conducting this offering primarily in Maine Massachusetts Florida illinois California

Connecticut New Hampshire Pennsylvania and Maryland The securities laws of those states allow the

Company to make an offering without incurring substantial additional expense Shareholders from those states

who offer to purchase common stock may do so if they wish in amounts not limited to their pro rata percentage

of the offered shares subject however to availability and other conditions set forth in the form of Subscription

Agreement for this offering

For those of you who reside in states other than Maine Massachusetts Florida Illinois Califomia Connecticut

New Hampshire Pennsylvania and Maryland you have preemptive right to purchase your pro rata portion of

the offering i.e up to 30% of the total number of shares of Biddeford and Saco Water Company common stock

that you already own Depending on the securities laws in your state the Company may be able to offer you

shares in excess of your pro rata percentage of the offering We plan to assess this once we know which

shareholders might be interested in purchasing more than their pro rate percentage

To exercise your preemptive rights you must return to us the enclosed Preemptive Rights Election by July

72010 i.e within 40 days of the date of this letter If we receive the form from you by that date we will send

you copy of the final offering circular for this offering together with Subscription Agreement Returning the

enclosed Preemptive Rights Election will obligate you to purchase binding offer to purchase can be

made by you only by submitting signed Subscription Agreement in the form provided with the final

offering circular

Thank you for your continued support of the Biddeford and Saco Water Company

On behalf of the Board of Directors

C.S Mansfield JrPresident



Biddeford Saco Water Company
181 Elm Street

P.O Box 304

Bidddoirl ME 040054304

Telephone 2072824549
Facshnilc 207282-1544

PREEMPTIVE RIGHTS ELECTION

The undersigned represents that he or she owns the following number of shares of Biddeford and Saco

Water Company common stock either in the undersigneds name directly or through an account with

bank or securities firm

TOTAL SHARES OWNED IN THE COMPANY ___________ number now owned

The undersigned understands that pursuant to statutory preemptive rights he or she has the right to

purchase portion of the common stock being offered by the Company namely up to 30% of the

number of shares he or she now owns example in the case of shareholder who now owns

1000 shares of Company common stock he or she has apreemptive right to purchase up to 300

shares 30% of the offered common stock Depending on the state in which the shareholder resides

the Company may be able to sell the shareholder more than his or her pro rata portion he or she

elects to do so

The undersigned wishes to reserve ______________ shares number for possible future

purchase by him or her at $67.50 per share payable by check or wire transfer to the Company This

is not commitment to purchase commitment can only be made by executing Subscription

Agreement in the form to be provided by the Company after the shareholder has received the

Companys offering circular for this offering

NOTE IF YOU DO NOT WISH TO PURCHASE ANY SHARES THROUGH THIS

OFFERING YOU DO NOT NEED TO RETURN THIS FORM

Date _______________2010

Signatures

Print Name and Address _____________________________________________________

Comments or questions


